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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors

This report includes forward-looking statenseih particular, statements about our expectatioelgefs, plans, objectives or assumptions
of future events or performance are contained asriporated by reference in this report. We havedasese forward-looking statements on
our current expectations about future events. Whééelieve these expectations are reasonableafdrlwoking statements are inherently
subject to risks and uncertainties, many of whieghtseyond our control. Our actual results may diffi@terially from those suggested by tr
forward-looking statements for various reasonduitiag those discussed in this report under thelingd'Risk Factors’beginning at page 1
Given these risks and uncertainties, you are caediamot to place undue reliance on forward-loolstagements. The forward-looking
statements included in this report are made onbf #ise date hereof. We do not undertake and speltyf decline any obligation to update
any of these statements or to publicly announceetelts of any revisions to any forward lookingtetents to reflect future events or
developments. When used in the report, unlesswibeindicated, “we,” “our” and “us” refers to Biogst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Overview

BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. is a biotechgglcompany that designs, optimizes and developslmyugs that block key enzymes
involved in cancer, cardiovascular diseases, auinine diseases, and viral infections. BioCryst iratgs the necessary disciplines of biolc
crystallography, medicinal chemistry and computedeling to effectively use structure-based druggeto discover and develop small
molecule pharmaceuticals.

Our lead product candidate, Fodosine™, isasition-state analog inhibitor of the target eneyparine nucleoside phosphorylase
(“PNP™). The compound is currently in a Phase tlalf which is planned to be a pivotal trial, fat@nts with T-cell acute lymphoblastic
leukemia (“T-ALL"). The trial is being conducted der a special protocol assessment (“SPA”) negatiaith the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration (“FDA”). Additionally, Fodosine™ isurrently being studied in a Phase /Il trial wéth oral formulation in cutaneous T-cell
lymphoma (“CTCL") and we are in active discussionth the FDA to determine what would be requirednitiate a pivotal trial in CTCL
during 2007. Fodosine™ has been granted Orphan &atgs by the FDA for three indications: T-celhrAdodgkin’s lymphoma, including
CTCL; chronic lymphocytic leukemia (“CLL") and retad leukemias including T-cell prolymphocytic leukia, adult T-cell leukemia, and
hairy cell leukemia; and for treatment of B-cellteclymphoblastic leukemia (“B-ALL"). Additionallthe FDA has granted “fast track” status
to the development of Fodosine™ for the treatmén¢lapsed or refractory T-cell leukemia. In Feli2006, we announced an exclusive
licensing agreement with Mundipharma Internatidtaldings Limited (“Mundipharma”) to develop and corarcialize Fodosine™ in
markets across Europe, Asia and Australasia foirusacology.

Our second most advanced drug candidate &ypeir, an inhibitor of influenza neuraminidase. Weinitiated clinical development of
peramivir during 2006 with a focus on intravenond atramuscular delivery. During 2006, we testecamivir in multiple Phase | trials in
healthy volunteers and early in 2007 we initiatd®hase Il trial with the intramuscular formulatidém.January 2007, we announced the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services (*HHS”) hadirded the Company a $102.6 million, four-yeantiaet for the advanced
development of peramivir. Funding from the contraitt support manufacturing of clinical lots, prasevalidation, clinical studies and other
product approval requirements.

In November 2005, the Company announced itdmtered into an exclusive worldwide licensing agnent with F.Hoffmann-La Roche
Ltd and Hoffmann-La Roche Inc. (“Roche”) to devebpd commercialize BCX-4208, our second gener@idR inhibitor for the prevention
of acute rejection in transplantation and for tleatment of autoimmune diseases.

BioCryst is a Delaware corporation origindthynded in 1986. Our principal office is located2480 Parkway Lake Drive, Birmingham,
Alabama 35244, and our telephone number is (205)4600. For more information about BioCryst, pleaisé our website at
www.biocryst.com. The information on our websiteat incorporated into this Form 10-K.

1




Table of Contents

Our Business Strategy

Our business strategy is to use structureebdrey design technologies to develop innovatiseglsmolecule pharmaceuticals to treat a

variety of diseases and disorders. We focus ouwg discovery efforts on building potent, selectimbibitors of enzymes associated with
targeted diseases. Enzymes are proteins that oaes@ble biological reactions necessary for tlogssion of the disease or disorder. The
specific enzymes on which we focus are called emztargets. We aim to design compounds that wiibihlan enzyme target by fitting the
active site of a particular enzyme. Inhibition meamterfering with the functioning of an enzymeget; thereby stopping or slowing the
progression of the disease or disorder. The prat@f@ments of our strategy are:

Select and License Promising Enzyme Targets for Biscovery of Sma-Molecule PharmaceuticalsWe use our technical expertise
and network of academic and industry contacts &huate and select promising enzyme targets todedor the discovery of small-
molecule pharmaceuticals. We choose enzyme tattygtsneet as many of the following criteria as faes

— serve important functions in disease pathw

— have known animal or c-based models that would be indicative of resultsumans
— address large potential markets or niche areassigttificant unmet medical need; a
— have multiple potential clinical applicatior

Focus on High Value-Added Structure-Based Drug DgsiTechnologiesWe focus our drug discovery activities and expeandi on
applications of structure-based drug design teaies to design and develop drug candidates. Stextased drug design is a process
by which we design a drug candidate through detailealysis of the enzyme target, which the druglickrte must inhibit in order to
stop the progression of the disease or disorderb&lieve that structurbased drug design is a powerful tool for efficidavelopment ¢
small-molecule drug candidates that have the pialeontbe safe, effective and relatively inexpeedi® manufacture. Our structure-
based drug design technologies typically allowauddsign and synthesize multiple drug candidatasitinibit the same enzyme target.
We believe this strategy can lead to broad patesteption and enhance the competitive advantagearafompounds

Develop or License Inhibitors that are Promising @didates for CommercializatiorWe test multiple compounds to identify those
are most promising for clinical development. Weebasr selection of promising development candidatedesirable product
characteristics, such as initial indications okesafind efficacy. We believe that this focusedtega allows us to eliminate unpromising
candidates from consideration sooner without inngrsubstantial clinical costs. In addition, wees¢ldrug candidates on the basis of
their potential for relatively efficient Phase IdaRhase 1l clinical trials that require fewer patgeto initially indicate safety and efficacy.
We will consider, however, more complex candidatih longer development cycles if we believe thyt offer promising commerci
opportunities

An important element of our business straisdg control fixed costs and overhead through remting and entering into license

agreements with other parties. We maintain a stieathcorporate infrastructure that focuses onstrangest areas of expertise. By
contracting with other specialty organizations,bedieve that we can control costs, enable our dauglidates to reach the market more
quickly and reduce our business risk. Key elemehtair contracting strategy include:

Entering Into Relationships with Academic Instituins and Biotechnology CompanieMany academic institutions and biotechnology
companies perform extensive research on the maleaul structural biology of potential drug devetemt targets. By entering into
relationships with these institutions, we believe ean leverage this respective research to signific reduce the time, cost and risks
involved in drug development. Our collaborativeatiEnships with such organizations may lead tditlemsing of one or more drug
targets or compounds. Upon licensing a drug tasgptomising compound from one of these institudicdhe scientists froi
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the institution typically become working pants@s members of our structure-based drug designsteéWe believe this makes us a more
attractive development partner to these sciergiate they can continue to have some involvemetitarcontinuing development of the
program. In addition, we collaborate with outsid@erts in a number of areas, including crystallpbgsa molecular modeling,
combinatorial chemistry, biology, pharmacology, aogy, cardiology, immunology and infectious disssasThese collaborations ene

us to complement our internal capabilities withadtling costly overhead. We believe this stratetpwal us to save valuable time and
expense, and further diversify and strengthen ouffglio of drug candidates. An example of suclolaborative relationship is the
arrangement that we have with Albert Einstein Gmlef Medicine of Yeshiva University (“AECOM”) ariddustrial Research Limited
(“IRL™) who are the licensors of our PNP inhibitor progra

. Developing Drug Candidates or Licensing Them to ®@tHParties.We generally plan to advance drug candidates thrinigal and/or
early-stage drug development. For larger diseadiedtions requiring complex clinical trials, ouragegy is to license drug candidates to
pharmaceutical or biotechnology partners for fis@velopment and global marketing. We believe paships are a good source of
development payments, license fees, future evemheats and royalties. They also reduce the costsisks, and increase the
effectiveness, of late-stage product developmeugtlatory approval, manufacturing and marketing.#keve that focusing on
discovery and early-stage drug development whitebtng from our partners’ proven development anchmercialization expertise
will reduce our internal expenses and allow usaweeha larger number of drug candidates progrelsgenstages of drug development.
However, after establishing a lead product candidaé are willing to license that candidate duang stage of the development proc
we determine to be beneficial to the company artti¢ailtimate development and commercializatiothaf drug candidate. For some
smaller niche disease indications markets, we rhapse to develop, manufacture, and where apprepmatket and distribute any
approved drugs ourselves, such as Fod(™ for certain 7-cell and E-cell cancers in the U.!

. Entering into relationships with Contract Researddrganizations *CRO’s"). We outsource a significant portion of our R&D tardh
parties in order to avoid fixed overhead and remf@insed on our core competencies. For exampleelyéneavily on others to
manufacture our products and on CRO'’s for our céihand regulatory operations. Using these vendggsre able to capitalize on their
strengths and expertise without having to builchsafrastructure internally

Products in Development

The following table summarizes BioCryst's madtanced projects as of February 28, 2007:

Program and Candidate Disease

Category/Indication Delivery Form Development Stage Worldwide Rights
PNP Inhibitor (Fodosin™)
T-ALL i.v./oral Phase Ik BioCryst/Mundipharmi
CLL oral Phase |
B-ALL V. Phase /11
CTCL oral Phase /11
Neuraminidase Inhibitor (peramivir) V. Phase BioCryst
Viral i.m. Phase |
Roche/BioCryst ha
PNP Inhibitor (BCX-4208) cc-promotion rights
Autoimmune disease inthe U.S. ir
Transplantation rejectic oral Phase limited indications
Hepatitis C Polymerase Inhibitors oral Preclinical BioCryst
Viral

Additional Products

In addition to the programs shown above, v8e attain exclusive rights to potent inhibitorgafainfluenza neuraminidase and additional
PNP inhibitors. We will continue to evaluate anstteach of these compounds to determine which dhmutaken into clinical testing.
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PNP Inhibitors
T-cell Related Diseases

Overview. The human immune system employs specialized, ¢etleiding T-cells, to control infection by recagimg and attacking
disease-causing viruses, bacteria and parasitesliSTare an essential part of the body’s immurséesy that serve a dual purpose to both
orchestrate and participate in the body’s immuispoase. For the most part, this system works fissiyeto protect the body. However, when
T-cells multiply uncontrollably, T-cell proliferaté diseases, such as T-cell cancers, can occur.

The link between T-cell proliferation and {hrine nucleoside phosphorylase, or PNP, enzymdivsasliscovered approximately twenty-
five years ago when a patient, who was genetichdficient in PNP, exhibited limited T-cell activjtput reasonably normal activity of other
immune functions. In other patients lacking PNRvégt the T-cell population was selectively dejglét however, B-cell function tended to be
normal. Based on these findings and the resuktelbtulture studies, inhibiting PNP appears todpice selective suppression of T-cells
without significantly impairing the function of athcells.

Acute Lymphoblastic Leukemid@he most common form of leukemia in childrendste lymphoblastic leukemia (“ALL"). According to
the American Cancer Society, 5,200 new cases (addlthildren combined) will be diagnosed in thététhStates in 2007 (T-cell and B-
cell). ALL results from an acquired injury to theNB of a single cell in the bone marrow.

T-cell Lymphoma Lymphoma is a general term for a group of cantteasoriginate in the lymphatic system. About &), Americans wil
be diagnosed with a non-Hodgkin’s lymphoma in 286@ approximately 15% of these will be considerezgkll lymphomas. T-cell
lymphoma results when alymphocyte (a type of white blood cell) undergoenalignant change and begins to multiply, evemjuaibwding
out healthy cells and creating tumors, which emddlg lymph nodes and invade other sites in thg . l@ACL is a primary skin neoplasm and
accounts for nearly 50% of all T-cell malignancies.

T-cell Mediated Autoimmune Diseas&kere are more than 80 clinically distinct autoinmawdliseases such as psoriasis, rheumatoid
arthritis, multiple sclerosis, and Crohn’s diseaseich appear to have activated T-cells as a nggarof their pathogenesis. These diseases
occur when the immune system attacks the body’saila rather than invading microorganisms. Thaefmhibition and/or elimination of
activated T-cells could have a beneficial effectlmese diseases.

Transplant Rejectiorilhe greatest threat to transplant patients is tiejeof the transplanted organ by the badgivn immune system. F
this reason, transplant recipients must take dimgsppress the immune response and prevent mjaggually for the rest of their lives. A
regimen combining several drugs is usually gived s treatment has to be continued indefinitEly: kidney transplant recipients, rejection
of the new kidney by the patient’s immune systemlead to loss of the transplanted organ and arrétudialysis. For heart, lung and liver
transplant patients, loss of the transplanted opgasents an immediate threat to life.

B-cell Related Cancers

Overview. There are two types of lymphocytes in the broasesse — T-cells and B-cells. Although PNP inbitsitvere developed
specifically to block the T-cells, recent work indies that the same biochemical event — the irluéareaccumulation of deoxyguanosine
triphosphate (dGTP) also occurs in malignartells. Furthermore, work of Dr. Varsha Gandhi at Miderson Cancer Center has shown
PNP inhibitors, when actinig vitro on B-cells from patients with CLL induce accumuatiof dGTP with resultant apoptosis (cell death).

These studies open the possibility of trea@hdy, B-ALL and B-cell non-Hodgkin’s Lymphoma (NHLyith Fodosine. Importantly, Bell
malignancies are considerably more prevalent tharhg T-cell leukemias and lymphomas.
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Our PNP Inhibitor(s)

PNP Inhibition. PNP is an enzyme that plays an important role-aell proliferation, because it is necessary tonmadn normal DNA
synthesis in human T-cells. Selective inhibitiorPOfP causes certain nucleosides, including deoxyagiae, to accumulate. As the
concentration of deoxyguanosine increases withaells, it is converted by specific enzymes to dGARigh concentration of dGTP in T-
cells causes an imbalance in the intra-cellulautiieotide pool and thus causes cell death.

In June 2000, we licensed a series of pothifit hibitors from AECOM and IRL. The lead drug datate from this collaboration,
Fodosine™js a more potent inhibitor of human lymphocyte fieshtion than other previously known PNP inhib&o€linical data in our pa
and ongoing clinical trials, plus extensive preickh studies indicate that Fodosine™ can modulatelTactivities. Fodosine™ is an
investigational PNP inhibitor for the potentialdtment of T-cell leukemias and lymphomas. In Felyr@806, we licensed Fodosine™ to
Mundipharma to develop and commercialize in marketsss Europe, Asia and Australasia for use inlogy.

During 2002, we exercised the option to ad@éa compound, BCX-4208, to the series of inhibiwrf®NP licensed from AECOM and
IRL. Preclinical results indicated that BCX-4208snaamore potent inhibitor than Fodosine™. We cotepla Phase | single ascending dose
clinical trial and a Phase Ib multi-dose clinia#@l, both in healthy volunteers. In November 2008, licensed BCX-4208 to Roche for the
world wide development and commercialization inoemmune diseases and transplant rejection.

PNP Inhibitor (Fodosine™)
Overview

The first clinical trial with an intravenousriulation of Fodosine™, which began in 2002, w&hase | clinical trial that enrolled T-ALL
patients at the M.D. Anderson Cancer Center in koysTexas. Simultaneously, there were preclinstadlies being conducted at the M.D.
Anderson Cancer Center which indicated that Fo@d¥imduces the same biochemical changes in vaadthes types of leukemia cells that
are responsible for the inhibition of T-leukemidis€lhe results of these preclinical studies Isdaiexpand beyond the single starting trial in
T-ALL by initiating additional clinical trials forefractory patients with B-ALL, CTCL, and hematoiognalignancies. Based on the
encouraging results of these initial studies, veeveorking with our partner, Mundipharma, to devetogtrategy for the simultaneous
development of Fodosine™ in multiple indicationgigsntravenous, oral and combination dosing regisne

Current Development Strategy (T-ALL, CTCL, B-ALLnd CLL)

Fodosine™ Clinical Development for Aggressive T-eEllignancies. During 2004, we initiated a Phase lla trial toatinpatients with
aggressive T-cell malignancies. Despite encouraggrglts observed with other T-cell specific agettits prognosis for patients with relapsed
or refractory leukemia or lymphoma is poor andttresnt options remain limited. The goal of the Phéeselinical trial was to determine the
therapeutic effect produced by Fodosine™ as iteslto the proposed mechanism of action in theitibn of proliferating T-lymphocytes in
patients with T-ALL.

Based on the results of the Phase lla trialhave negotiated a SPA agreement with the FDAhfodesign of a multicenter, open-label,
non-randomized repeat-dose registration study atuate an intravenous treatment of Fodosine™ falbly an oral treatment of Fodosine™
in patients with relapsed or refractory T-ALL. Tisiudy is designed to determine the rate of corapkahission achieved with Fodosine™
and will be a multinational trial which will includsites in the United States, Eastern and Wesiamope and South America. We announced
the start of this trial in January 2007.

We have obtained orphan drug status for Fo@d%iin multiple indications in both the U.S. and@ne and the FDA has granted “fast
track” status to the development of Fodosine ™ Hertteatment of relapsed or refractory T-cell leake Our current intent is to maintain
significant rights in this program and for BioCrytsielf to potentially market and distribute Fodwsi™ in the United States for treatment of T-
cell cancers.
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In 2004, we initiated a Phase I/11 trial with oral formulation of Fodosine™ for treatment afipnts with CTCL. Based on the
encouraging results of this trial, we are in actligcussions with the FDA to determine what wowdddéquired to initiate a pivotal trial in
CTCL during 2007.

In February 2006, we and Mundipharma entemgmlan exclusive license agreement to develop amihercialize Fodosine™, in markets
across Europe, Asia and Australasia for use inlogyo The agreement covers a number of marketssia &nd Australasia including Japan,
Australia, New Zealand, China and India. This dudie@ation should help maximize the global developmemmmercialization, and market
potential of Fodosine™ in a variety of serious nesaticonditions potentially including T-cell leukesmiCTCL, CLL, T-cell non-Hodgkin’s
lymphoma and B-cell non-Hodgkin’s lymphoma. Basadceclinical studies conducted at the M.D. Andaer€ancer Center which indicated
that Fodosine™ induces the same biochemical changesious other types of leukemia cells thatrasponsible for the inhibition of T-
leukemia cells, we initiated two small clinical dies late in 2005 in B-cell leukemias, which arerenprevalent than T-cell leukemias. First,
we initiated a Phase Il trial with oral Fodosinefi¥patients with CLL in an advanced stage and ragrgdo fludarabine, the current standard
of therapy. Next, we initiated a Phase /11 clifitiéal of Fodosine™ to determine the safety ofa@pdoses of an intravenous (1V) formulation
of the drug in patients with B-ALL. We are compietithe evaluation of patients from these trials aredreviewing the results with
Mundipharma to determine the best clinical stratggiyng forward.

PNP Inhibitor (BCX-4208)
Overview

During the fourth quarter of 2004, we beganical development of BCX-4208, a second-generafibif® inhibitor, as a drug candidate for
the treatment of T-cell mediated autoimmune disg&areluding psoriasis, and transplant rejectioithdugh BCX-4208 and Fodosine™ are
both investigational PNP inhibitors, BCX-4208 difdrom Fodosine™ in significant ways. For exampBl€X-4208 is more potent, and has
the ability to suppress PNP for longer perioddrakét Thus, BCX-4208 has potential advantages owdo&ine™ for the treatment of diseases
requiring long-term, chronic administration of afPhhhibitor.

Current Development Strategy

We completed our initial Phase | study, a lempse pharmacokinetic trial in healthy volunteeesly in 2005 and during the third quarter
of 2005, we initiated a Phase Ib multi dose tmiahéalthy volunteers to evaluate the safety, tbiéta and pharmacokinetics of multiple oral
doses of BCX-4208. In November 2005, we and Rocim@anced an exclusive license agreement for thédwite development and
commercialization of BCX-4208 for the preventionagite rejection in transplantation and for thatireent of autoimmune diseases. This
collaboration provided substantial strategic anshemic benefit to us and also all the essentiahefds for the rapid, comprehensive and
competitive development of BCX-4208. The two comipamave established a joint committee to setlihizal development strategy and the
future development program for BCX-4208.

We completed the dosing of subjects in thesBlla trial during 2006 and we are currently wogkinth Roche to plan the further
development of BCX-4208 and anticipate that a Phats@l will be initiated during 2007.

Neuraminidase Inhibitor

Influenza

Seasonal Influenz&easonal influenza, commonly known as the flu,viga infection characterized by symptoms inclugfever, cough,
sore throat, fatigue, headache, and/or chills. Adicg to the U.S. Centers for Disease Control amy&htion (“CDC"), an estimated 5% to
20% of the American population suffers from inflaarannually, more than 200,000 people are hosmthlfirom flu complications, and
approximately 36,000 people die. Influenza is pattirly dangerous to the elderly, young childred paople with certain health conditions.
Outbreaks of seasonal flu tend to follow predictgtmtterns usually occurring in the winter. Neworaes are developed annually based on
known flu strains and are usually available for d@naual flu season. There are also antiviral treatmavailable for the treatment of people
infected with influenza.
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Avian Influenza According to information from the CDC, avian uinéinza, or bird flu is an infection caused by visuadich occur
naturally among birds. This form of flu is very ¢agious among birds and can lead to serious illardssometimes death. There are two |
forms of disease that infect domestic poultry, alew pathogenic form and the other a highly pagmigiform. The latter form can cause
disease that affects multiple internal organs aitld &ymortality rate between 90-100% in these bivihin 2 days.

While there are many different subtypes ofittikienza A virus, only three subtypes are knowibé currently circulating among humans.
Avian influenza A viruses are found chiefly in lrcbut there have been confirmed cases of infeatitlmmans, generally as a result of
contact with infected birds. These infections himgeto symptoms ranging from those of normal flurtore severe and life threatening
conditions. Influenza A (“H5N1") is a subtype of eafluenza virus that is highly contagious amongibiand can be very deadly to them. Of
the avian influenza viruses that have crossedgheiss barrier to infect humans, the H5N1 virusdassed the largest number of detected
cases of severe disease and death in humans. amtisi$ virus does not spread easily from onequets another, but as influenza A viruses
constantly change, they could mutate over timeateelthe ability to spread rapidly among humans.

Pandemic InfluenzaPandemic influenza is a global disease outbreatkdccurs when a new influenza virus emergesagp#ople have
had no previous exposure. This situation occurg kemely and only occurred three times in theh2@ntury.

Influenza Prevention and Treatmerfthe development of effective therapeutics haietiged medical researchers due to the seasonal
variation in viral strains and the highly infectinature of influenza. Patients, therefore, hawédid treatment options. Amantadine and
rimantadine are used for treatment of influenzaufdre ineffective against influenza B. In additithhese drugs cause some adverse side
effects, and the virus tends to develop resistéméeese drugs. The CDC has recommended againgséhef amantadine and rimantadine for
the treatment or prophylaxis of influenza in thetga States until susceptibility to these antivireddications has been re-established among
circulating influenza A viruses.

Vaccines are available against the diseashdué limitations: people require advance vacaimatvaccines are limited by their specificity
to particular strains of the virus; and vaccindsmlittle protection if the vaccine is inaccuralie.addition, many people decline the required
injections because of fear and/or discomfort. Tiitg of the virus to change its structure to althe body’s natural defenses is a serious
obstacle to developing an effective vaccine agairiktenza. Different strains can arise when swafantigens on the virus (the portion of the
virus that causes an immune reaction in humans3ngiodminor genetic mutations each year as the véplicates. Because of this mutability,
the immunity acquired in response to infection lpaaicular strain of the virus does not provideguhte protection against viruses that
subsequently arise. The production of a new vaceamh year is not only complex and expensive, Isatan inefficient method of global
disease control.

Inhibiting Influenza Neuraminidasesearch during the past two decades has seentidrahgances in understanding the molecular
structure and function of the influenza virus. ddagable attention has been focused on the enzymeminidase, which is located on the
surface of the virus. Neuraminidase assists indglease and spread of the flu virus by breakingt@nical strands that hold the new viruses
to the cell surface, allowing the replicated vitospread and infect other cells. This processressgs until the host’s immune response can
produce enough antibodies to bring the infectiodenrcontrol. Inhibiting the neuraminidase enzymepsenew viruses attached to the cell
surface, thereby preventing the spread of the \@ngsthe further infection of other cells. The sdugent quantities of virus in the bloodstre
are not enough to cause disease but are sufficiéentiuce the body to mount an immune response.

In addition to our neuraminidase inhibitor glieandidate, both Roche, in collaboration with &lé&ciences, and GlaxoSmithKline
(“GSK”") have neuraminidase inhibitors. Roche’s rauinidase inhibitor is a twice-a-day, orally actieuraminidase inhibitor, while GSK'’s
neuraminidase inhibitor is administered by dry pewitihaler twice a day. Both drugs are approvedrfarketing in the United States and
other countries for treatment of influenza. Rochedsraminidase inhibitor is also approved for psdakis use for prevention of influenza. In
addition to these companies with neuraminidaseitdrs, there are other companies working to dgveldditional antiviral drugs to be used
against various strains of influenza.
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Some studies in laboratories suggest that sdniese neuraminidase inhibitor drugs should wrtkeating avian influenza infections in
humans, but additional studies are needed to dematmshe effectiveness of these drugs.

Neuraminidase Inhibitor (peramivir)
Overview

Backgroundln 1987, scientists at The University of Alabam@mmingham (“UAB”), in collaboration with our saiists, began
determining the molecular structure of the influemeuraminidase enzyme from several differentrtraf influenza, using X-ray
crystallography. Subsequently, our scientists aA® dcientists developed numerous new inhibitorefe enzymes using structure-based
drug design. We licensed the influenza neuramieigmegram from UAB in 1994 and proceeded to corepiet studies of the enzyme’s
molecular structure needed to advance the developoi@euraminidase inhibitors. The structure @ #ctive site of influenza neuraminidase
is similar among different viral strains. Becau$éhis similarity, we believe that our neuraminidashibitors may be effective in the
treatment and prevention of influenza, regardléshanges in the virus.

Current status of peramiviDue to the recent international concern about arg@l influenza pandemic that could be initiatgdalsian
strains of the virus, peramivir has received cossitlle attention, since it is positioned to be oiheery few advanced antiviral alternatives
behind oseltamivir, or Tamiflu, for addressing aguial pandemic. As a result, we re-initiated ¢heical development of peramivir during
2006.

Current Development Strategy

Preclinical studies comparing peramivir wither anti-influenza drugs have demonstrated thamieir has outstanding broad-spectrum
potency against multiple strains of influenza, intithg the avian strain H5N1. In addition, peramieitains activity against nearly all Tamiflu-
resistant strains of influenza that have been ifiedtto date. We are currently focusing on injéttsformulations of peramivir that may
achieve high blood levels that should be effecéigainst most strains of influenza, including stsaimat may be resistant to Tamiflu. Our
investigational new drug application (“IND") fowi.peramivir became effective in December 2005fandm. in November 2006. We
received fast track designation from the FDA inukag 2006 and initiated a Phase | clinical triathaiiv. peramivir in March 2006. During
2006, we conducted multiple Phase | clinical trinlsealthy volunteers in preparation for the PHasgals to be initiated during the 2006-
2007 influenza season, which began with the initiedf a Phase Il study with the i.m. formulationJanuary 2007.

Our plan is to develop two injectable formidas, including intravenous peramivir for treatimgutely ill patients, and an intramuscular
injectable formulation for treatment of earlierggtanfected patients. We expect the clinical dgwedent for these injectable formulations to
follow a classical development pathway. Initialtiteg in patients infected with seasonal flu begaththe initiation of the Phase Il study with
the i.m. formulation in January 2007. Preclinidaidées have indicated that a single injection abpavir is effective at preventing death in
mice from infections with virulent strains of inflaza. If this finding can be confirmed in clini¢aals, we believe the i.m. formulation will
have considerable potential for treating patierith seasonal influenza infections, in addition toyading an effective mechanism for treating
large numbers of patients rapidly in the event fifigpandemic.

Congress approved an appropriation of $3IBhifor 2006 to support the development of varioaantermeasures for a flu pandemic.
appropriation included funding for the developmeinew antiviral agents. In January 2007, we annedrthat HHS had awarded the
Company a $102.6 million, four-year contract fag tdvanced development of peramivir for U.S. liceasFunding from the contract will
support manufacturing of clinical lots, processdation, clinical studies and other product apptegguirements needed for U.S. licensure.

Hepatitis C Polymerase Inhibitors

Overview

Hepatitis C virus (“HCV”) infection has beeasttribed in the New England Journal of Medicinéhasnhation’s most common chronic
blood-borne infection. According to the World Héafdrganization, 3% of the world’s population arfeated with HCV and are at risk of
developing liver cirrhosis and/or liver cancer. TOIBC estimates there are an estimated 4.1 millioredcans (approximately 1.6% of the
population) that have been infected with HCV,
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of whom 3.2 million are chronically infected. Acdang to the CDC, as many as 55-85% of those infestith HCV will have chronic
infection and 70% of those will develop chronicelivdisease. While there are several approved tegdsnfior chronic HCV using a
combination therapy of interferon and ribavirineith are some potentially severe side effects wetheatments.

Background In June 2000, we licensed intellectual propemtynf Emory University (“Emory”yelated to the hepatitis C polymerase ta
associated with hepatitis C viral infections. Untler original terms of the agreement, the reseiangstigators from Emory provided us with
materials and technical insight into the target.

Current Development Strategy

We are targeting HCV polymerase through caltabive and in-house efforts. Specifically, we foeused on development of orally active
inhibitors against the RNA-dependent RNA polymer&ampetition for this target is less intense tf@mrthe HCV protease target and history
suggests the likelihood of designing a useful iitbibagainst this target may be better than desmitihibitors against the protease.

We have designed, synthesized and screenedtbicompounds against HCV polymerase. Spedyicalr scientists have measured the
potency and ability of potential drug candidatebltk the replication of HCV polymerase in vitay,in test tubes. These experiments
measure the potency of each selected compoundity abiblock replication. Advanced screening wésoaused to measure the fit of
promising compounds in the HCV polymerase actitee @sing X-ray crystallography and computer molacutodeling. The goal has been to
identify a series of compounds that are potenttiio vnhibitors of the active site of the HCV polgmase for further testing and lead
optimization.

During 2005, we identified a lead compound XB84578, for which we have made progress in thelprieal development, plus major
improvements in the large-scale synthesis. In additve have identified a number of other prechhitandidates for this therapeutic area and
we are currently evaluating and prioritizing whitdndidate(s) to bring into clinical development.

Structure-Based Drug Design

Structure-based drug design is a drug disgoapproach by which we design synthetic compouraa fdetailed structural knowledge of
the active sites of enzyme targets associatedpaitticular diseases. Enzymes are proteins thatsacatalysts for many vital biological
reactions. Our goal generally is to design a comgdhat will fit in the active site of an enzymabdtactive site of an enzyme is the area into
which a chemical or biological molecule fits totiaie a biochemical reaction) and thereby interfeita the progression of disease.

Our structure-based drug design involves gptieation of both traditional biology and medicithemistry and an array of advanced
technologies. We use X-ray crystallography, compmnedeling of molecular structures and advancednistey techniques to focus on the
three-dimensional molecular structure and actiteectiaracteristics of the enzymes that controutaailbiology.

We believe that structure-based drug desigmiglogies are superior to drug screening techsigdg identifying the target enzyme in
advance and by discovering the chemical and maestiucture of the enzyme, we believe it is pdedit design a better drug to interact
with the enzyme. In addition, the structural datgamed by X-ray crystallographic analysis allovd#idnal analysis and compound
modification at each stage of the biological evaara This capability makes structure-based drugjgiea powerful tool for efficient
development of drugs that are highly specific fartigular enzyme target sites.

Research and Development

We initiated our research and developmentnamgn 1986, with drug synthesis beginning in 1982 have assembled a scientific
research staff with expertise in a broad base wfacked research technologies including proteinHaotstry, X-ray crystallography,
chemistry and pharmacology. Our research facilitiekide protein biochemistry and organic synth&ieratories, testing facilities, X-ray
crystallography, computer and graphics equipmedtfaailities to make drug candidates on a smalkesfa early stage clinical trials.
Beginning in June 2006, we began
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building an internal clinical development and regaty team, based in Cary, North Carolina to marnhgealevelopment strategy for our
products.

During the years ended December 31, 2006, 26052004, we spent $47.1, $23.6 and $18.9 millespectively, on research and
development. Approximately $13.4, $9.1 and $8.0ionilof those respective amounts were spent oroursé research and development, and
$33.7, $14.5 and $10.9 million, respectively wererg on contract research and development.

Collaboration and In-License Relationships

We seek to enter into collaborations with leggharmaceutical and biotechnology companies wieefeel it is advantageous to leverage
these companies’ resources to develop and comrtizectaur drug candidates on a global basis. Thanal us to remain focused on our
strength of early stage discovery and developmdtuy candidates. To date, we have two major bolations for the development and
commercialization of our lead PNP inhibitors an@ twollaborations for the development and commeeeitbn of peramivir in certain
countries outside the U.S. In addition, in Jani0§7, we announced that HHS had awarded the Cong&t®2.6 million, fourear contrac
for the advanced development of peramivir for Uicgnsure.

Another important component of our strategiaugment our internal discovery programs thratinghselective in-licensing of potential
drug development targets or early stage compowrdtése specific targets.

Corporate Alliances

Roche. In November 2005, we entered into an exclusisenise with Roche for the development and commeératain of our second
generation PNP inhibitor, BCX-4208, for the prevemtof acute rejection in transplantation and far treatment of autoimmune diseases.
Under the terms of the agreement, Roche obtaineliiwide rights to BCX-4208 in exchange for an uprArpayment of $30 million, which
included a payment as reimbursement for a limitggply of material during the first 24 months of t@laboration. There could also be fut
event payments for achieving specified developmegtlatory and commercial milestones (includingsé#evel milestones following a
product’s launch) for certain indications. In aduit we will receive royalties based on a perceatignet product sales, which varies
depending upon when certain indications receive Nipproval in a major market country and can vargduyntry depending on the patent
coverage or sales of generic compounds in a p&ticountry. We licensed this compound and othelP Rthibitors from AECOM and IRL
and will owe sublicense payments to these thirtiggon the upfront payment, future event paymantsroyalties received by us for the
sublicense of these inhibitors.

Roche has a right of first negotiation, uncketain conditions, on existing backup PNP inhitsitwe develop through Phase IlIb in
transplant rejection and autoimmune diseases,iyuh@w PNP inhibitors are exempt from this agrearaed we retain all rights to such
compounds. We retain the right to co-promote BCR8H the U.S. for several indications. Roche hatain obligations under the terms of
the agreement to use commercially reasonable sffordevelop, manufacture and commercialize tren$ed product. The agreement may be
terminated by either party following an uncured eniai breach by the other party or may be eithly far partially terminated by Roche
without cause under certain conditions and alltsgtiata, materials, products and other informationld be transferred to us at no cost.

Mundipharma. In February 2006, we entered into an exclusiegalty bearing right and license in the specifieditory (primarily
Europe, Asia and Australasia) with Mundipharmatfar development and commercialization of our lelé ihhibitor, Fodosine ™pr use in
oncology. Under the terms of the agreement, Muratipia obtained oncology rights to Fodosine™ in frex#ied territory in exchange for a
$10 million up-front payment. Mundipharma will sk&0% of the documented out of pocket developmestsdncurred by us in respect of
our current and planned trials as of the effeatiate of the agreement provided that Mundiphasmaaximum contribution to these trials st
be $10 million. In addition, Mundipharma will conztiadditional clinical trials at their own cost tgpa maximum of $15 million. The license
provides for future event payments for achievingcsiied development, regulatory and commercial &véncluding certain sales level
amounts following a product’s launch) for certaidications. In addition, we will receive royaltieased on a percentage of net product sales,
which varies depending upon when certain indicati@teive NDA approval in a major market countrgt aan vary by country depending on
the patent
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coverage or sales of generic compounds in a p&ticountry. Generally, all payments under the agrent are nonrefundable and non-
creditable, but they are subject to audit. We lssghthis compound and other PNP inhibitors from @B&Cand IRL and will owe sublicense
payments to these third parties on the upfront manfuture event payments and royalties receiyedstfor the sublicense of these
inhibitors.

Within five years of the effective date of thgreement, Mundipharma will has a right of firspaotiation on existing backup PNP inhibit
we develop through Phase IIb in oncology, but agy PNP inhibitors are exempt from this agreemedtva retain all rights to such
compounds. We retain the rights to Fodosine™ inthited States (“U.S.”) and Mundipharma is oblighby the terms of the agreement to
use commercially reasonable efforts to develogitemsed product in the territory specified by #ygeement. The agreement will continue
for the commercial life of the licensed productst imay be terminated by either party following acured material breach by the other party
or in the event the pre-existing third party licengith AECOM and IRL expires. It may be terminatgdMundipharma upon 60 days written
notice without cause or under certain other cood#ias specified in the agreement and all riglatts, dnaterials, products and other
information would be transferred to us at no cysthe event we terminate the agreement for matéefault or insolvency, we could have to
pay Mundipharma 50% of the costs of any independatat owned by Mundipharma in accordance withéhms of the agreement.

Shionogi & Co., Ltdin March 2007, the Company entered into an excubbense agreement with Shionogi & Co., Ltd. (8tagi”) to
develop and commercialize the Company’s lead imfftaeneuraminidase inhibitor, peramivir, in Japartlie treatment of seasonal and
potentially life-threatening human influenza. Untlee terms of the agreement, Shionogi obtainedsitghinjectable formulations of
peramivir in Japan in exchange for a $14 milliorfrgnt payment. The license provides for futurergygayments for achieving specified
development, regulatory and commercial events(ttiop certain sales level amounts following a pattduaunch) for certain indications. In
addition, the Company will receive royalties basada percentage of net product sales. Generallgagiments under the agreement are
nonrefundable and non-creditable, but they areestihp audit. The Company developed peramivir uaderense from UAB and will owe
sublicense payments to them on the upfront payeuethany future event payments and/or royaltiesvedeoy the Company from Shionogi.
The Company retains all rights to commercializeapgvir in North America, Europe, and other courgtriitside of Korea and Japan.

Green Cross Corporation (“Green Cross'ln June 2006, the Company entered into an agreemitnGreen Cross to develop and
commercialize peramivir in Korea. Under the terrhthe agreement, Green Cross will be responsiblalfalevelopment, regulatory, and
commercialization costs in Korea. The Company ket one-time license fee and may also receiveddvent payments as well as
royalties on product sales of peramivir. In additithe Company will share in any profits resultfrgn the sale of peramivir to the Korean
government for stockpiling purposes. Furthermonee@ Cross will pay the Company a premium ovecats to supply peramivir for
development and any future marketing of peramixadpcts in Korea.

Academic Alliances

Albert Einstein College of Medicine of Yeshiva @nsity and Industrial Research, Ltd, New Zealaha June 2000, we licensed a series
of potent inhibitors of PNP from AECOM and IRL. Tlead drug candidates from this collaboration avédsine™ and BCX-4208. We have
obtained worldwide exclusive rights to develop atitmately distribute these compounds or any otlrag candidates that might arise from
research on these inhibitors. We have agreed te@agin milestone payments for future developneéihese inhibitors, certain royalties on
sales of any resulting product, and to share iaréupayments received from other third-party pagnié any. In addition, we have agreed to
pay an annual license fee that is non-refundabieiskcreditable against actual royalties and offagrments due to AECOM and IRL. This
agreement may be terminated by us at any time\igggb60 days advance notice or in the event of matencured breach by AECOM and
IRL.

The University of Alabama at Birminghard/e have had a close relationship with UAB singeformation. Our Chairman, Dr. Charles
Bugg, was the previous Director of the UAB CentarMacromolecular Crystallography, and our Prediderd Chief Operating Officer, Dr.
Claude Bennett, was the former President of UAB,ftiimer Chairman of the Department of Medicine&aB and a former Chairman of the
Department of Microbiology at UAB. Several of oarly programs originated at UAB.
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We currently have agreements with UAB forufhza neuraminidase and complement inhibitors. Utheeterms of these agreements,
UAB performed specific research for us in returnrissearch payments and license fees. UAB hasagtarst certain rights to any discoveries
in these areas resulting from research developadiA®y or jointly developed with us. We have agreegay royalties on sales of any
resulting product and to share in future paymesteived from other third-party partners. We havagleted the research under both the
complement and influenza agreements. These twengmats have initial 25-year terms, are automagicatiewable for five-year terms
throughout the life of the last patent and are teafle by us upon three months notice and by UA8eurertain circumstances. There is
currently no activity between us and UAB on thegeaments, but when the Company licenses this tdotppn, such as in the case of the
Shionogi and Green Cross agreements, or commeeiatoducts related to these programs, we will smi@icense fees or royalties on
amounts we receive.

Emory. In June 2000, we licensed intellectual propemyrf Emory related to the HCV polymerase targete@ased with hepatitis C viral
infections. Under the original terms of the agresinthe research investigators from Emory providedvith materials and technical insight
into the target. We have agreed to pay Emory rigatin sales of any resulting product and to simafiure payments received from other
third party partners, if any. We can terminate #gseement at any time by giving 90 days advanteeo

Government Contracts

In January 2007, we announced that HHS haddrdehe Company a $102.6 million, four-year caritfar the advanced development of
peramivir for U.S. licensure. Funding from the ¢ant will support manufacturing of clinical lotg,geess validation, clinical studies and of
product approval requirements needed for U.S. $§aen HHS has indicated that antiviral drugs arergortant element of their pandemic
influenza preparedness efforts and that theireggaincludes not only stockpiling of existing aimid@ drugs but also seeking out new antiviral
medications to further broaden their capabiliteefréat and prevent all forms of influenza. Peramsvin the same class of neuraminidase
inhibitors as oseltamivir (Tamiflu) and zanamivitglenza), all of which are antiviral drugs, but thethod of delivery for peramivir will be
parenteral (i.m. and i.v.) as compared to the Baahiflu or inhaled Relenza. We are committed tokiray with HHS for the development of
these parenteral formulations of peramivir whichlddoe especially useful in hospital settings andeamic situations due to the ability to
achieve high levels of the drug rapidly throughthet body.

This contract is a cost-plus-fixed-fee contradich is milestone-driven. HHS will make periodissessments of progress and the
continuation of the contract is based on our peréorce, timeliness and quality of deliverables, ather factors. The government has rights
under certain contract clauses to terminate thigraot.

Patents and Proprietary Information

Our success will depend in part on our abtlitpbtain and enforce patent protection for omdprcts, methods, processes and other
proprietary technologies, preserve our trade sgcaeid operate without infringing on the proprigtaghts of other parties, both in the United
States and in other countries. We own or havegitgghtertain proprietary information, proprietagghnology, issued and allowed patents and
patent applications which relate to compounds weedaveloping. We actively seek, when appropriataegtion for our products, proprietary
technology and proprietary information by meant/@&. and foreign patents, trademarks and contrbattengements. In addition, we rely
upon trade secrets and contractual arrangemeptstiect certain of our proprietary information, prietary technology and products.

The patent positions of companies like ouesgimerally uncertain and involve complex legal faadual questions. Our ability to maintain
and solidify our proprietary position for our techogy will depend on our success in obtaining @ffecpatent claims and enforcing those
claims once granted. We do not know whether arguofpatent applications or those patent applicattbat we license will result in the
issuance of any patents. Our issued patents asd that may issue in the future, or those licetsers, may be challenged, invalidated,
rendered unenforceable or circumvented, which churidl our ability to stop competitors from markegi related products or the length of
term of patent protection that we may have formnaducts. In addition, the rights granted underiasyed patents may not provide us with
competitive advantages against competitors withlairmompounds or technology. Furthermore, our cetibprs may independently develop
similar technologies or duplicate any technologyadeped by us in a manner that does not infringepatents or other intellectual property.
Because of the extensive time required for develpintesting and regulatory review of a potentialdoict, it is possible that, before any of
our drug candidates or those
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developed by our partners can be commercializedrelated patent may expire or remain in forcediolly a short period following
commercialization, thereby reducing any advantdgheopatent.

As of February 20, 2007, we have been iss@ad.3. patents that expire between 2009 and 2023het relate to our PNP, serine prote
and neuraminidase inhibitor compounds. We havegsied six additional composition of matter patent @vo pending composition of mat
patents from AECOM and IRL for our PNP inhibitopys additional manufacturing patents related &s¢hPNP inhibitors and one patent
from Emory related to hepatitis C. Additionally, Wwave 16 U.S. patent applications pending relaid®NP, neuraminidase, RNA viral
polymerase, paramyxovirus neuraminidase, and spriotease inhibitors. Our pending applications matyresult in issued patents, and our
patents may not provide us with sufficient protectagainst competitive products or otherwise bernemgially viable.

Our success is also dependent upon the dkiltsyledge and experience of our scientific anthézal personnel, none of which is
patentable. To help protect our rights, we reqgairemployees, consultants, advisors and partoegater into confidentiality agreements,
which prohibit the disclosure of confidential infioation to anyone outside of our company and, whessible, requires disclosure and
assignment to us of their ideas, developmentspdés@es and inventions. These agreements may nwidgradequate protection for our trade
secrets, know-how or other proprietary informatiothe event of any unauthorized use or disclosutée lawful development by others of
such information.

Marketing and Sales

We currently plan to market, distribute anlil Bedosine™ in the U.S. for use in treatment aféllt and B-cell cancers. Although our
general strategy is to rely on major marketing camgs for worldwide commercialization of most protfuwe may develop, we believe that
we can manage the highly specialized oncology mdokd-odosine™ within the U.S. Most patients wattivanced T-cell malignancies in the
U.S. are treated at major referral cancer cendd many of these centers have been participatingri Fodosine™ clinical trials and will
thus be familiar with Fodosine™ if it reaches tharket. However, we lack experience in marketingtritiuting and selling pharmaceutical
products. Our general strategy is to rely on pastrieeensees or arrangements with others to peofadthe marketing, distribution and sales
of products we may develop. We may not be ablestabdish and maintain acceptable commercial arraegés with partners, licensees or
others to perform such activities.

Competition

The pharmaceutical and biotechnology indusisie intensely competitive. Many companies, indgdbiotechnology, chemical and
pharmaceutical companies, are actively engagedtivitees similar to ours, including research amelopment of drugs for the treatment of
cancer, infectious, autoimmune, inflammatory andic&ascular diseases and disorders. Many of tbesganies have substantially greater
financial and other resources, larger researctdandlopment staffs, and more extensive marketignaanufacturing organizations than we
do. In addition, some of them have considerableg&pce in preclinical testing, clinical trials aotther regulatory approval procedures. For
example, in October 2005, the FDA announced theoappof Arranon (nelarabine) for the treatmenadtilts and children with T-cell acute
lymphoblastic leukemia. This drug was approved utige FDA'’s orphan drug and accelerated approweat (fack) programs and is being
distributed and marketed by GSK. We are curremtdying Fodosine™ in T-cell ALL and have also reediboth orphan drug and fast track
designation from the FDA. There are also acadensititutions, governmental agencies and other reseaganizations that are conducting
research in areas in which we are working. They alsy market commercial products, either on thein or through collaborative efforts.

We expect to encounter significant competifimnany of the pharmaceutical products we pladeeelop. Companies that complete
clinical trials, obtain required regulatory apprtsvand commence commercial sales of their prochefisre their competitors may achieve a
significant competitive advantage. Such is the eatie GSK'’s Arranon for T-cell ALL and the curreneuraminidase inhibitors marketed by
GSK and Roche for influenza. In addition, severanmaceutical and biotechnology firms, includingen@harmaceutical companies and
specialized structure-based drug design compamie® announced efforts in the field of structuredohdrug design and in the fields of PNP,
HCV, influenza, and other therapeutic areas whereme focusing our drug discovery efforts.
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In order to compete successfully, we must bgvproprietary positions in patented drugs fordipeutic markets that have not been
satisfactorily addressed by conventional resedreltegjies and, in the process, expand our expéntisteucture-based drug design. Our
products, even if successfully tested and developeg not be adopted by physicians over other misdand may not offer economically
feasible alternatives to other therapies.

Government Regulation

The FDA regulates the pharmaceutical and biotelogy industries in the U.S., and our drug cdatdis are subject to extensive and
rigorous domestic government regulations priordmmercialization. The FDA regulates, among othergs$, the development, testing,
manufacture, safety, efficacy, record-keeping, liagestorage, approval, advertising, promotiorke sand distribution of pharmaceutical
products. In foreign countries, our products ase aubject to extensive regulation by foreign goments. These government regulations will
be a significant factor in the production and ménrgof any pharmaceutical products that we deveft@plure to comply with applicable FC
and other regulatory requirements at any stageduhie regulatory process may subject us to sarg;tincluding:

. delays;

. warning letters

. fines;

. product recalls or seizure

. injunctions;

. penalties

. refusal of the FDA to review pending market appt@gplications or supplements to approval apploces;
. total or partial suspension of productic

. civil penalties;

. withdrawals of previously approved marketing apaiicns; anc
. criminal prosecutions

The regulatory review and approval processrigthy, expensive and uncertain. Before obtainggulatory approvals for the commercial
sale of any products, we or our partners must deinate that our product candidates are safe ardtiafé for use in humans. The approval
process takes many years, substantial expenseberiagurred and significant time may be devoteditacal development.

Before testing potential candidates in humamscarry out laboratory and animal studies tomeitge safety and biological activity. After
completing preclinical trials, we must file an IND¢luding a proposal to begin clinical trials, wthe FDA. We have filed thirteen INDs to
date and plan to file, or rely on future partnergile, additional INDs in the future as our poiehtirug candidates advance to that stage of
development. Thirty days after filing an IND, a Bea human clinical trial can start, unless the Riddces a hold on the study.

Our Phase | trials are designed to determafetysin a small group of patients or healthy vodans. We also assess tolerances and the
metabolic and pharmacologic actions of our drugladates at different doses. After we complete tiitgal trials, we conduct Phase Il trials
assess safety and efficacy and establish the dpdiosa in patients. If Phase Il trials are sucagésgfe or our partners conduct Phase lll trials
to verify the results in a larger patient populatiBhase I trials are required for FDA approwahtarket a drug. A Phase Il trial may require
hundreds or even thousands of patients and is tis expensive to conduct. The goal in Phase tb mollect enough safety and efficacy data
to obtain FDA approval of a drug for treatment gfaaticular disease. For some clinical indicatitives are
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especially serious and for which there are no &ffedreatments, such as refractory cancers, conditapproval can be obtained following
Phase Il trials.

Initiation and completion of the clinical trjghases are dependent on several factors incluldings that are beyond our control. For
example, the clinical trials cannot begin at aipatar site until that site receives approval frissinstitutional Review Board (“IRB”), which
reviews the protocol and related documents. Ttosgss can take from several weeks to several mdnthsidition, clinical trials are
dependent on patient enrollment, but the rate &thwbatients enroll in the study depends on:

. willingness of investigators to participate in adst;
. ability of clinical sites to obtain approval froinetir IRB;
. the size of the patient population we intend tati
. the availability of patients
. the willingness of patients to participate; ¢
. the patients meeting the eligibility criter
Delays in planned patient enrollment may reisuincreased expense and longer developmentitiesel

After completion of the clinical trials of aquluct, we or our partners must submit a NDA toRB&\ for marketing approval before
commercialization of the product. The FDA may niarg approval on a timely basis, if at all. The F24 a result of the Food and Drug
Administration Modernization Act of 1997, has sixmnths to review and act upon license applicationgfiority therapeutics that are for life-
threatening or unmet medical needs. Standard review take between one and two years, and cana@eionger if significant questions
arise during the review process. The FDA may wilkdany required approvals, once obtained.

In addition to clinical development regulatiome and our contract manufacturers and partnass comply with the applicable FDA
current good manufacturing practice (“GMP”) regigas. GMP regulations include requirements relatonquality control and quality
assurance as well as the corresponding mainterdimeeords and documentation. Manufacturing faeglitare subject to inspection by the
FDA. Such facilities must be approved before we usathem in commercial manufacturing of our péééproducts. We or our contract
manufacturers may not be able to comply with thaieable GMP requirements and other FDA regulateguirements. If we or our contract
manufacturers fail to comply, our business, finahcondition and results of operations will be mialey adversely affected.

Human Resources

As of February 28, 2007, we had 85 employekahom 61 were engaged in research and developameh24 were in general and
administrative functions. Our scientific staff, @8Bwhom hold Ph.D. or M.D. degrees, has diversiBggerience in biochemistry,
pharmacology, X-ray crystallography, synthetic aigachemistry, computational chemistry, and meditghemistry. We consider our
relations with our employees to be satisfactory.

Scientific Advisory Board and Consultants

Our scientific advisory board (“SAB”) is coniged of five scientific advisors who are leaderséntain of our core disciplines or who
otherwise have specific expertise in our therapdotius areas. The SAB meets as a group at schiechdetings and consists of the following
individuals:

Name Position
Albert F. LoBuglio, M.D. (Chairman) Director Emeritusand Distinguished Professor,
Comprehensive Cancer Center , University Of Alabaina
Birmingham
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Name Position
Gordon N. Gill, M.D. Professor of Medicine and Cellular and Moleculardidee; Dean of Translational
Medicine, University of California, San Diego SchobMedicine.

Lorraine J. Gudas, Ph.D. Professor and Chairman, Department of Pharmacdlgilt Medical College of
Cornell University, Revlon Pharmaceutical ProfessfdPharmacology and
Toxicology.

Herbert A. Hauptman, Ph.D. President of the Hauptman-Woodward Medical Reselastitute, Inc. (formerly the

Medical Foundation (Buffalo), Inc.), and Researcbf&ssor in Biophysical Sciences
and Distinguished Professor in Structural Biologyhe State University of New
York (Buffalo). Recipient of the Nobel Prize in Ghistry (1985).

Hamilton O. Smith, M.D. Professor, Molecular Biology and Genetics Departra¢ihe Johns Hopkins
University School of Medicine, retired, and SciéintDirector of the Synthetic
Biology and Biological Energy Groups at the J. Grdenter Institute in Rockuville,
Maryland. Recipient of the Nobel Prize in Medicii®78).

The SAB members are reimbursed for their egperand receive periodic options to purchase slbamsnmon stock. We also have
consulting agreements with a number of other sisisntvith expertise in our core disciplines or vdre specialists in diseases or treatmen
which we focus. The SAB members and other consisli@mre all employed by or have consulting agreesneith entities other than us, some
of which may compete with us in the future. They expected to devote only a small portion of thigie to our business, although no spe:
time commitment has been established. They arexpaicted to participate actively in our affairsrothe development of our technology.
Several of the institutions with which the SAB mergand the consultants are affiliated may adoptnegulations or policies that limit their
ability to consult with us. The loss of the sergicd the SAB members and the consultants couldradiyeaffect us to the extent that we are
pursuing research or development in areas relgégaheir expertise. To the extent members of ouB $#embers or the consultants have
consulting arrangements with or become employearyyof our competitors, we could be materially adely affected.

Any inventions or processes independentlyalisced by the SAB members or the consultants mapewmme our property and will
probably remain the property of such persons @uch persons’ employers. In addition, the institugiwith which they are affiliated may
make available the research services of their peepincluding the SAB members and the consultdatsur competitors pursuant to
sponsored research agreements. We require the Sibers and the consultants to enter into confidiytagreements which prohibit the
disclosure of confidential information to anyondside of our company and require disclosure andjasgent to us of their ideas,
developments, discoveries or inventions. Howewver competitors may gain access to trade secretsthed proprietary information
developed by us and disclosed to the SAB membetshenconsultants.

Available Information

We have available a website on the Internat.d@ldress is www.biocryst.com. We make availablauawebsite our Annual Reports on
Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, CuriiReports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those efited or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as soreasonably practicable after we electronicdysich material with, or furnish it to, the
SEC. We also make available at our website codiesiaudit committee charter, compensation conemittharter, corporate governance and
nominating committee charter and our code of bsim®nduct, which applies to all employees of BysCas well as the members of our
Board of Directors.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

An investment in our stock involves a high degfa&sk. You should consider carefully the followitgks, along with all of the other
information included in our other filings with tigecurities and Exchange Commission, before dectdibgy our common stock. Additional
risks and uncertainties not currently known to ushat we currently deem to be immaterial may afspair our business operations. If we
are unable to prevent events that have a negaffeetdrom occurring, then our business may suffgative events are likely to decrease
our revenue, increase our costs, make our finaneisiilts poorer and/or decrease our financial sg#émn and may cause our stock price to
decline. In that case, you may lose all or a pdya@ur investment in our common stock.

Risks Relating to Our Business
We have incurred substantial losses since our inth@p in 1986, expect to continue to incur such less and may never be profitable.

Since our inception in 1986, we have not h@efitable. We expect to incur additional lossestfe foreseeable future, and our losses
could increase as our research and developmemtseffimgress. As of December 31, 2006, our accueulildeficit was approximately
$195.5 million. To become profitable, we must sssteally develop drug product candidates, enter imafitable agreements with other
parties and our product candidates must receivdatayy approval. We or these other parties muest guccessfully manufacture and market
our product candidates. It could be several yebeser, before we receive royalties from any cotrer future license agreements or revenues
directly from product sales.

Because of the numerous risks and uncertaiasociated with developing our product candidatelstheir potential for
commercialization, we are unable to predict themixbf any future losses or when we will becomditaiole, if at all. Even if we do achieve
profitability, we may not be able to sustain orrgase profitability on a quarterly or annual baisie are unable to achieve and sustain
profitability, the market value of our common stogll likely decline.

Our success depends upon our ability to advance praducts through the various stages of developmesipecially through the clinical
trial process.

To receive the regulatory approvals necesairthe sale of our product candidates, we or @uingrs must demonstrate through
preclinical studies and clinical trials that eacbduct candidate is safe and effective. The clirtital process is complex and uncertain.
Because of the cost and duration of clinical triale may decide to discontinue development of pcodandidates that are unlikely to show
good results in the trials, unlikely to help advaacproduct to the point of a meaningful collaborgtor unlikely to have a reasonable
commercial potential. We may suffer significantosetks in pivotal clinical trials, even after earlidinical trials show promising results. Any
of our product candidates may produce undesiratiéeeffects in humans. These side effects couldecas or regulatory authorities to
interrupt, delay or halt clinical trials of a prarficandidate. These side effects could also réestite FDA or foreign regulatory authorities
refusing to approve the product candidate for angeted indications. We, our partners, the FDAoeeifyn regulatory authorities may susp
or terminate clinical trials at any time if we by believe the trial participants face unacceptakelalth risks. Clinical trials may fail to
demonstrate that our product candidates are saftfemtive.

Our ability to successfully complete clini¢aéls is dependent upon many factors beyond ontrah including:
. our ability to find suitable clinical sites and gstigators to enroll patient
. the availability of and willingness of patientsgarticipate in our clinical trials
. difficulty in maintaining contact with patients psovide complete data after treatme

. our product candidates may not prove to be eitafer ar effective
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. manufacturing or quality problems could affect slpply of drug product for our trial
. delays or changes in requirements by governmegaalaes

Clinical trials are lengthy and expensive. @eur partners incur substantial expense for,d@wbte significant time to, preclinical testing
and clinical trials, yet cannot be certain thattiésts and trials will ever result in the commdrsae of a product. For example, clinical trials
require adequate supplies of drug and sufficietiepaienrollment. Delays in patient enrollment casult in increased costs and longer
development times. Even if we or our partners ssgfodly complete clinical trials for our productnthdates, we or our partners might not file
the required regulatory submissions in a timely nesrand may not receive regulatory approval forpteeluct candidate.

If we fail to obtain additional financing, we mayeunable to complete the development and commeimatibn of our product candidate
or continue our research and development programs.

To date, we have financed our operations pilynfrom sale of our equity securities and casinfrcollaborative and other research and
development agreements, and, to a lesser extéertesh. For the year, our cash, cash equivalectsramnketable securities balance has
decreased from $60.0 million as of December 31520(46.2 million as of December 31, 2006, prifyatiie to the monthly cash burn from
operations less the cash received from collabarstiwhich totaled to approximately $31.8 milliort nésublicense fees.

With the award of the HHS contract to fund dexelopment of peramivir and the current and pdarnials for Fodosine™, we expect an
increase in our operating expenses for 2007. Howeuith the expected reimbursement from the HHStremh and our other partners, we are
projecting our net cash burn rate to average appairly $3.0 million per month in 2007. We cautibat both our expenses and our cash
flows will vary significantly from quarter to quartdue to the nature of the trials in influenza #vedreimbursement from HHS.

As our clinical programs continue to grow gradient enrollment increases, our costs will insee®ur current and planned clinical trials
plus the related manufacturing, personnel resownddesting required for supporting the developmeéour drug candidates will consume
significant capital resources and will increase expenses. Our expenses, revenues and burn rdteveoy significantly depending on many
factors, including our ability to raise additiomalpital, the development progress of our collateagreements for our drug candidates, the
amount of funding we receive from HHS for peramitlire amount of funding or assistance, if any, @eeive from other governmental
agencies or other new partnerships with third parfior the development of our drug candidatesptbgress and results of our current and
proposed clinical trials for our most advanced douaducts, the progress made in the manufactufimgiolead products and the progression
of our other programs.

As of December 31, 2006, we had $46.2 mililonash, cash equivalents and marketable secuMigh our currently available funds and
amounts to be received from HHS, Shionogi (andotleer collaborators), we believe these resourcderisufficient to fund our operations
for at least the next twelve months. However, ihis forward looking statement, and there may laanghs that would consume available
resources significantly before such time. Our lo@gn capital requirements and the adequacy of waitadble funds will depend upon many
factors, including:

. our ability to perform under the contract with HIdSd receive reimbursemel
. the progress and magnitude of our research, degpaery and development prograt
. changes in existing collaborative relationshipg@rernment contract

. our ability to establish additional collaborativeationships with academic institutions, biotecloggi or pharmaceutical compan
and governmental agencies or other third par

. the extent to which our partners, including goweental agencies will share in the costs associatitdthe development of our
programs or run the development programs themse

. our ability to negotiate favorable development aratketing strategic alliances for our drug candig;

18




Table of Contents

. the scope and results of preclinical studies aimicell trials to identify and evaluate drug candedq

. our ability to enroll sites and patients in oundal trials;

. the scope of manufacturing of our drug candidaiesipport our preclinical research and clinicall$:;i

. increases in personnel and related costs to suffdevelopment of our drug candida

. the scope of validation for the manufacturing of dug substance and drug products required foréduNDA filings;
. competitive and technological advanc

. the time and costs involved in obtaining regulat@pprovals

. the costs involved in preparing, filing, prosecgtimaintaining and enforcing patent clair

. our dependence on others for development and cocmatization of our product candidates; ¢

. successful commercialization of our products cdestswith our licensing strateg

We expect that we will be required to raisdigonal capital to complete the development anghimrcialization of our current product
candidates. Additional funding, whether throughitdidal sales of securities or collaborative orestarrangements with corporate partners or
from other sources, including governmental agenamegeneral and from the HHS contract specifigaiihay not be available when needed or
on terms acceptable to us. The issuance of preferreommon stock or convertible securities, wints and prices significantly more
favorable than those of the currently outstandimgimon stock, could have the effect of diluting dversely affecting the holdings or rights
of our existing stockholders. In addition, colladiive arrangements may require us to transferioematerial rights to such corporate
partners. Insufficient funds may require us to getzale-back or eliminate certain of our researth development programs.

If HHS were to eliminate or reduce funding from owrontract, this would have a significant negativ@pact on our anticipated revenut
and cash flows and the development of peramivir.

Our projections of revenues and incoming dhsiis for 2007 are substantially dependant upon Heél@bursement for the costs related to
our peramivir program. If HHS were to eliminatereduce the funding for this program, we would htovebtain additional funding for
development of this drug candidate or significanéiguce or stop the development effort.

In contracting with HHS, we are subject toieas U.S. government contract requirements, inclgdjeneral clauses for a cost-
reimbursement research and development contraathwamay limit our reimbursement or if we are founde in violation could result in
contract termination. U.S. government contractécalfy contain unfavorable termination provisiomglaare subject to audit and modification
by the government at its sole discretion. The lddvernment may terminate its contract with us eifoeits convenience or if we default by
failing to perform in accordance with the contrachedule and terms, which would have a significegative impact on our cash flows and
operations.

Our contract with HHS has special contracting reqements, which create additional risks or reduction loss of funding.

We have entered into a contract with HHS figr advanced development of our neuraminidase tohjigeramivir. In contracting with
HHS, we are subject to various U.S. governmentrashtequirements, including general clauses fsi-reimbursement research and
development contract. U.S. government contractisdyly contain unfavorable termination provisiomglaare subject to audit and
modification by the government at its sole disanetiwhich subjects us to additional risks. Thesksrinclude the ability of the U.S.
government to unilaterally:

. terminate or reduce the scope of our contract;
. audit and object to our contr-related costs and fees, including allocated intlicests.
The U.S. government may terminate its contnatit us either for its convenience or if we defday failing to perform in accordance with
the contract schedule and terms. Termination favenience provisions generally enable
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us to recover only our costs incurred or committed] settlement expenses and profit on the workpeted prior to termination. Terminati
for default provisions do not permit these recaari

As a U.S. government contractor, we are reguio comply with applicable laws, regulations atahdards relating to our accounting
practices and are subject to periodic audits avigwes. As part of any such audit or review, the §&/ernment may review the adequacy of,
and our compliance with, our internal control syséeand policies, including those relating to ourcpasing, property, estimating,
compensation and management information systensedan the results of its audits, the U.S. govemimmy adjust our contract-related
costs and fees, including allocated indirect cdataddition, if an audit or review uncovers anynwper or illegal activity, we may be subject
to civil and criminal penalties and administratsanctions, including termination of our contraétsfeiture of profits, suspension of
payments, fines and suspension or prohibition fdmimg business with the U.S. government. We colsd suffer serious harm to our
reputation if allegations of impropriety were madginst us. In addition, under U.S. governmentlmsing regulations, some of our costs
may not be reimbursable or allowed under our catdrdurther, as a U.S. government contractor, r&esabject to an increased risk of
investigations, criminal prosecution, civil frawghistleblower lawsuits and other legal actions Baigilities as compared to private sector
commercial companies.

If we fail to establish collaborative relationshige commercialize certain of our drug product camidites or if any partner terminates «
fails to perform its obligations under agreementsthvus, the commercialization of our product candites could be delayed or terminate

A key aspect of our business strategy is teranto successful collaborative arrangements pltirmaceutical companies, research
institutions, the United States government and ensities for the preclinical development, clinidavelopment, regulatory approval,
marketing, domestic and international sales anliliigion of our drug product candidates. Our gahstrategy is to rely upon other parties
for all of these steps so that we can focus exgdlision the key areas of our expertise. For somalenmiche markets, we may perform these
steps ourselves and outsource those functions wiedd not have the internal expertise.

Currently, we have established collaboratelationships with four pharmaceutical companiesshHeo Mundipharma, Shionogi and Green
Cross for development and commercialization of B&208, Fodosine™ and peramivir, respectively. Tloe@ss of establishing and
implementing collaborative relationships is difficdime-consuming and involves significant uncary Heavy reliance upon collaborative
relationships with these third parties for thestoad functions presents several risks, including:

. our partners may seek to renegotiate or termitate relationships with us due to unsatisfactiyical results, a change in
business strategy, a change of control or othesores

. our contracts for collaborative arrangements mapjrex

. our partners may choose to pursue alternative tdabies, including those of our competitc

. we may have disputes with a partner that could teditigation or arbitration

. we do not have day to day control over the acésitf our partners and have limited control oveirttecisions

. our ability to generate future event paymentsraydlties from our partners depends upon thelitisi to establish the safety and
efficacy of our drug candidates, obtain regulatpprovals and achieve market acceptance of prodeetdoped from our drug
candidates

. our partners may not properly maintain or defeandintellectual property rights, where applicaldethey may utilize our
proprietary information in such a way as to invitigation that could jeopardize or potentially adidate our proprietary
information or expose us to potential liabili

. our partners may not devote sufficient capitalemources towards our product candidates;

. our partners may not comply with applicable goveentregulatory requirement
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If any partner fails to fulfill its responsiities in a timely manner, or at all, our commeliz@tion efforts related to that collaboration abul
be delayed or terminated, or it may be necessanysoo assume responsibility for activities thaid otherwise have been the responsibility
of our partner. If we are unable to establish aaihtain collaborative relationships on acceptabtens, we may have to delay or discontinue
further development of one or more of our prodactdidates, undertake commercialization activitiesua own expense or find alternative
sources of funding. Any delay in the developmentanmercialization of our compounds would seveadfgct our business, because if our
compounds do not progress through the developmeneps or reach the market in a timely mannert all,ave may not receive additional
future event payments and may never receive praafuctyalty payments.

If our contract research organizations do not suasdully carry out their duties or if we lose ourlegionships with contract researc
organizations, our drug development efforts could telayed.

We depend on contract research organizatibind;party vendors and investigators for preclmiesting and clinical trials related to our
drug discovery and development efforts, includimg iHHS contract. We intend to depend on them tistaasour future discovery and
development efforts. These parties are not our eyegls and we cannot control the amount or timingsdurces that they devote to our
programs. If they fail to devote sufficient timedamesources to our drug development programstbeif performance is substandard, it will
delay the approval of our products. The partiet wihich we contract for execution of our clinicahts play a significant role in the conduct
of the trials and the subsequent collection andyaisaof data. Their failure to meet their obligets could adversely affect clinical
development of our products. Moreover, these mamiay also have relationships with other commeamsitties, some of which may compete
with us. If they assist our competitors it couldrhaur competitive position.

If we lose our relationship with any one ormnof these parties, we could experience a sigmifidelay in both identifying another
comparable provider and then contracting for itsises. We may be unable to retain an alternatie@iger on reasonable terms, if at all.
Even if we locate an alternative provider, it kely that this provider may need additional timedspond to our needs and may not provide
the same type or level of service as the originaviger. In addition, any provider that we retaiill Wwe subject to current Good Laboratory
Practices (“cGLP"), current Good Manufacturing Riaes (“cGMP”), or current Good Clinical PractiggsGCP”), and similar foreign
standards and we do not have control over commiavith these regulations by these providers. Caresatty, if these practices and standards
are not adhered to by these providers, the devedopand commercialization of our product candidatadd be delayed.

We have not commercialized any products or techiggds and our future revenue generation is uncertain

We have not yet commercialized any productgadnnologies, and we may never be able to do sor&enue from collaborative
agreements is dependent upon the status of ouircatand clinical programs. If we fail to advanthese programs to the point of being |
to enter into successful collaborations, we will receive any future event or other collaboratiagments.

Any future revenue directly from product salesuld depend on our ability to successfully contgldinical studies, obtain regulatory
approvals, manufacture, market and commercialigeapproved drugs.
If our development collaborations with other partdail, the development of our drug product candtda will be delayed or stoppe
We rely heavily upon other parties for manypartant stages of our drug development progranchyding:

. discovery of proteins that cause or enable biolgeactions necessary for the progression otiibease or disorder, called
enzyme target:

. licensing or design of enzyme inhibitors for deyehent as drug product candidat
. execution of some preclinical studies and-stage development for our compounds and produclidates;

. management of our clinical trials, including mediicenitoring and data manageme
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. execution of additional toxicology studies that niiyrequired to obtain approval for our productdidates;

. manufacturing the starting materials and drug sutest required to formulate our drug products aediting products to be used
both our clinical trials and toxicology studit

. management of our regulatory function; ¢
. manufacturing, sales, marketing and distributioonwf product candidate

Our failure to engage in successful collaboret at any one of these stages would greatly itmuarcbusiness. If we do not license enzyme
targets or inhibitors from academic institutionsrom other biotechnology companies on acceptadtad, our product development efforts
would suffer. Similarly, if the contract researalganizations that conduct our initial or latge clinical trials, conduct our toxicology se&
manufacture our starting materials, drug substandedrug products or manage our regulatory fundii@ached their obligations to us, this
would delay or prevent the development of our podb@andidates.

Our development of both intravenous and intramusauidosing of peramivir for avian flu is subject tall disclosed drug development and
potential commercialization risks and numerous atidnal risks. Any potential revenue benefits to ase highly speculative

Further development and potential commerasiin of peramivir is subject to all the risks anttertainties disclosed in our other risk
factors relating to drug development and commaeeezitibn. In addition, potential commercializatiohpramivir is subject to further risks,
including the following:

. the injectable versions of peramivir are at afyestage of development and have been testediinited number of humans,
primarily healthy volunteers, and may not be safeffective;

. necessary government or other third party funding clinical testing for further development ofgaivir may not be available
timely, at all, or in sufficient amount

. the avian flu prevention or treatment concerns matymaterialize at all, or in the near futu
. advances in flu vaccines could substantially replaatential demand for an antiviral such as perar

. any substantial demand for avian flu treatmerdag ntcur before peramivir can be adequately deeel@md tested in clinical
trials;

. numerous large and wadktablished pharmaceutical and biotech companiébavcompeting to meet the market demand for &
flu drugs and vaccine

. regulatory authorities may not make needed accomatiwt to accelerate the drug testing and appmealess for peramivir; ar

. in the next few years, it is expected that atlehinumber of governmental entities will be thenaiy potential customers for
peramivir and if we are not successful at markegiagamivir to these entities for any reason, wé nt receive substantial
revenues

If any or all of these and other risk factocgur, we will not attain significant revenues oogs margins from peramivir and our stock p
will be adversely affected.

Because we have limited manufacturing experience, @epend on thir-party manufacturers to manufacture our drug prodticandidates
and the materials for our product candidates. If veannot rely on third-party manufacturers, we wible required to incur significant costs
and potential delays in finding new third-party mafacturers.
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We have limited manufacturing experience amlgt @ small scale manufacturing facility. We cuthemely upon third-party manufacturers
to manufacture the materials required for our graduct candidates and most of the preclinical@imital quantities of our product
candidates. We depend on these third-party manuréastto perform their obligations in a timely manand in accordance with applicable
governmental regulations. Our third-party manufestsimay encounter difficulties with meeting oujugements, including problems
involving:

. inconsistent production yield

. difficulties in scaling production to commercialdawalidation sizes

. interruption of the delivery of materials requiried the manufacturing proces

. scheduling of plant time with other vendors or yreted equipment failur

. potential catastrophes that could strike theirlitaes;

. poor quality control and assurance or inadequategss controls; ar

. lack of compliance with regulations and specificas set forth by the FDA or other foreign regulgtagencies

These contract manufacturers may not be abieanufacture the materials required or our draglpet candidates at a cost or in quantities
necessary to make them commercially viable. We lads@ no control over whether third-party manufeartsibreach their agreements with us
or whether they may terminate or decline to rengme@ments with us. To date, our third party martufacs have met our manufacturing
requirements, but they may not continue to do sathérmore, changes in the manufacturing procepsamedure, including a change in the
location where the drug is manufactured or a chafigethird-party manufacturer, may require prieview and approval in accordance with
the FDA’'s cGMPs, and comparable foreign requirementis review may be costly and time-consuming@mndd delay or prevent the
launch of a product. The FDA or similar foreignuegory agencies at any time may also implement stewdards, or change their
interpretation and enforcement of existing stansléod manufacture, packaging or testing of produ€ise or our contract manufacturers are
unable to comply, we or they may be subject to lagry action, civil actions or penalties.

If we are unable to enter into agreements adttiitional manufacturers on commercially reasamédaims, or if there is poor manufactur
performance on the part of our third party manufests, we may not be able to complete developmientr anarket, our product candidates.

Our raw materials, drug substances, and drodugts are manufactured by a limited group of §appand some at a single facility. If any
of these suppliers were unable to produce thesssjtthis could significantly impact our supply otigs for further preclinical testing and
clinical trials.

If the clinical trials of our drug product candidats fail, our product candidates will not be markdteand we will not realize product relatt
revenue.

To receive the regulatory approvals necesgairthe sale of our product candidates, we or @utrers must demonstrate through
preclinical studies and clinical trials that eacbduct candidate is safe and effective. If we tieothird party partners are unable to
demonstrate that our product candidates are safeféective, our product candidates will not reesiegulatory approval and will not be
marketed, and we will not realize product related
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revenue. The clinical trial process is complex andertain. Because of the cost and duration ofcdlinrials, we may decide to discontinue
development of product candidates that are unlit@show good results in the trials, unlikely tdphadvance a product to the point of a
meaningful collaboration, or unlikely to have ageaable commercial potential. Positive results fpyeclinical studies and early clinical
trials do not ensure positive results in clinic#ls designed to permit application for regulatapproval, called pivotal clinical trials. We nr
suffer significant setbacks in pivotal clinicaldls, even after earlier clinical trials show proimgsresults. Any of our product candidates may
produce undesirable side effects in humans. THdseeffects could cause us or regulatory authaeritieinterrupt, delay or halt clinical trials
of a product candidate. These side effects cowsld rdsult in the FDA or foreign regulatory authestrefusing to approve the product
candidate for any targeted indications. We, outryeais, the FDA or foreign regulatory authoritiesynsaspend or terminate clinical trials at
any time if we or they believe the trial participaface unacceptable health risks. Clinical tnaégsy fail to demonstrate that our product
candidates are safe or effective.

We negotiated a special protocol assessmeBR A, with the FDA for the recently initiated ptabclinical trial of our lead anti-cancer
compound, Fodosine™. An SPA is an agreement betae@pplicant and the FDA on the design and tredizlinical trials that is intended
to form the basis of a New Drug Application (“NDA®nce the FDA and an applicant reach an agreeomeah SPA, the SPA cannot be
changed after the clinical trial begins, excegtrivited circumstances such as a change in the sgienclinical knowledge about the
conditions being studied. Any significant changéhi® protocols for a clinical trial subject to aR/Awould require prior FDA approval, whi
could delay implementation of such a change andirmgattion and completion of the related clinicé@ltrReceipt of the SPA does not ensure
that Fodosine™ will receive FDA approval or tha firocess will be accelerated.

Clinical trials are lengthy and expensive. BY@ur partners incur substantial expense for,dewbte significant time to, preclinical testing
and clinical trials, yet cannot be certain thattdsts and trials will ever result in the commdrsade of a product. For example, clinical trials
require adequate supplies of drug and sufficietiepaienrollment. Delays in patient enrollment casult in increased costs and longer
development times. Even if we or our partners ss&fodly complete clinical trials for our productnchdates, we or our partners might not file
the required regulatory submissions in a timely nesrand may not receive regulatory approval foptteeluct candidate.

If we or our partners do not obtain and maintain gernmental approvals for our products under devetopnt, we or our partners will nc
be able to sell these potential products, which vaosignificantly harm our business because we weékeive no revenue.

We or our partners must obtain regulatory applrbefore marketing or selling our future drugducts. If we or our partners are unable to
receive regulatory approval and do not market brose future drug products, we will never receasmy revenue from such product sales. In
the United States, we or our partners must obtBiA Bpproval for each drug that we intend to comnadize. The FDA approval process is
typically lengthy and expensive, and approval igeneertain. Products distributed abroad are albgest to foreign government regulation.
Neither the FDA nor foreign regulatory agenciesehapproved any of our drug product candidates. #¥e Beveral drug products in varic
stages of preclinical and clinical development; beer, we are unable to determine when, if ever,adriiese products will be commercially
available. Because of the risks and uncertaintigsdpharmaceutical development, our product catdilcould take a significantly longer
time to gain regulatory approval than we expectay never gain approval. If the FDA delays regulatipproval of our product candidates,
our management’s credibility, our company’s valod aur operating results may suffer. Even if theAR®D foreign regulatory agencies
approve a product candidate, the approval may timeitindicated uses for a product candidate amd&y require post-marketing studies.

The FDA regulates, among other things, thenctkeeping and storage of data pertaining to pisdgrharmaceutical products. We
currently store most of our preclinical researctadaur clinical data and our manufacturing datauatfacility. While we do store duplicate
copies of most of our clinical data offsite andgn#icant portion of our data is included in regubackups of our systems, we could lose
important data if our facility incurs damage. If get approval to market our potential products, tivein the United States or internatione
we will continue to be subject to extensive requiatrequirements. These requirements are wide mgreid govern, among other things:

. adverse drug experience reporting regulati
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. product promaotion
. product manufacturing, including good manufactuingctice requirements; al
. product changes or modificatior

Our failure to comply with existing or futuregulatory requirements, or our loss of, or changepreviously obtained approvals, could
have a material adverse effect on our businesaibeaae will not receive product or royalty reveniiege or our partners do not receive
approval of our products for marketing.

In June 1995, we natified the FDA that we siited incorrect data for our Phase Il studies ofXB&! applied to the skin for CTCL and
psoriasis. In November 1995, the FDA issued adfishspectional Observations, Form FDA 483, whiitha: our failure to follow good
clinical practices. The FDA also inspected us ineJi996. The focus was on the two 1995 Phase #-dorgging studies of topical BC34 for
the treatment of CTCL and psoriasis. As a resulhefinvestigation, the FDA issued us a Form FDA&,4ghich cited our failure to follow
good clinical practices. We are no longer develg@BCX-34; however, as a consequence of these twastigations, our ongoing and future
clinical studies may receive increased scrutinyictvimay delay the regulatory review process.

If our drug product candidates do not achieve broathrket acceptance, our business may never becoroétable.

Our drug product candidates may not gain theket acceptance required for us to be profitatdan éf they successfully complete initial
and final clinical trials and receive approval §ale by the FDA or foreign regulatory agencies. dégree of market acceptance of any
product candidates that we or our partners dewslbplepend on a number of factors, including:

. our clinical evidence of safety and effica

. cos-effectiveness, convenience and ease of use ofrodupt candidate:

. their safety, availability and effectiveness relatto alternative treatment

. the actual and potential side effects or othertieas;

. reimbursement policies of government and -party payers; an

. the effectiveness of marketing and distributiongarpfor our product candidate

Physicians, patients, payers or the medicaingonity in general may not accept or use our prodadidates even after the FDA or
foreign regulatory agencies approve the drug catésd If our product candidates do not achieveifsignt market acceptance, we will not
have enough revenues to become profitable.

We face intense competition, and if we are unaldecompete effectively, the demand for our produdtsny, may be reduced.

The biotechnology and pharmaceutical industaie highly competitive and subject to rapid amastantial technological change. We face,
and will continue to face, competition in the lisérg of desirable disease targets, licensing afalgle drug product candidates, and
development and marketing of our product candidimtas academic institutions, government agenciesgarch institutions and
biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies. Cotnetinay also arise from, among other things:

. other drug development technologi
. methods of preventing or reducing the incidencdisdéase, including vaccines; a

. new small molecule or other classes of therapewggnts
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Developments by others may render our prodaatlidates or technologies obsolete or noncompetiti

We and our partners are performing researabr aleveloping products for the treatment of selaismrders including T-cell mediated
disorders (T-cell cancers, psoriasis, transplgetten, and rheumatoid arthritis), oncology, idfhza, hepatitis C and cardiovascular
disorders. We expect to encounter significant cditipe for any of the pharmaceutical products wamplo develop. Companies that complete
clinical trials, obtain required regulatory apprsvand commence commercial sales of their produsfisre their competitors may achieve a
significant competitive advantage. Such is the eéife GSK’s Arranon for T-cell ALL and the curreneuraminidase inhibitors marketed by
GSK and Roche for influenza. In addition, sevetanmaceutical and biotechnology firms, includingengharmaceutical companies and
specialized structure-based drug design compames, announced efforts in the field of structuredabdrug design and in the fields of PNP,
influenza, hepatitis C, and in other therapeut&marwhere we have discovery efforts ongoing. Ifanmore of our competitors’ products or
programs are successful, the market for our preduety be reduced or eliminated.

Compared to us, many of our competitors artdriiml competitors have substantially greater:
. capital resource
. research and development resources, including peetand technolog)
. regulatory experienct
. preclinical study and clinical testing experien
. manufacturing and marketing experience;
. production facilities

Any of these competitive factors could reddeenand for our products.

If we fail to adequately protect or enforce our gitectual property rights or secure rights to patsrof others, the value of those righ
would diminish.

Our success will depend in part on our abdityl the abilities of our partners to obtain pafeptection for our products, methods,
processes and other technologies we may licendevalop, to preserve our trade secrets, and t@atgpeiithout infringing the proprietary
rights of third parties both domestically and alokoBhe patent position of biotechnology and phaemnécal companies is generally highly
uncertain, involves complex legal and factual goestand has recently been the subject of mu@atitbn. Neither the United States Patent
and Trademark Office (“USPTQ") nor the courts haveonsistent policy regarding the breadth of claafimved or the degree of protection
afforded under many biotechnology and pharmacduyietznts. The validity, enforceability and comnigirgalue of these rights, therefore, is
highly uncertain.

Our success depends in part on avoiding thiegement of other parties’ patents and proprietaghts as well as avoiding the breach of
any licenses relating to our technologies and petsdun the U.S., patent applications filed in rgcgears are confidential for 18 months, w
older applications are not published until the patsesues. As a result, avoiding patent infringemmeay be difficult and we may inadvertently
infringe third-party patents or proprietary righthese third parties could bring claims againsbus,partners or our licensors that even if
resolved in our favor, could cause us to incur &uiigl expenses and, if resolved against us, caddiitionally cause us to pay substantial
damages. Further, if a patent infringement suit@ought against us, our partners or our licensoesor they could be forced to stop or
delay research, development, manufacturing or sdlamy infringing product in the country or couas covered by the patent we infringe,
unless we can obtain a license from the patentenoflich a license may not be available on accleptaims, or at all, particularly if the third
party is developing or marketing a product compatitvith the infringing product. Even if we, ourrr@ers or our licensors were able to ob
a license, the rights may be nonexclusive, whichldigive our competitors access to the same imteli property.
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If we or our partners are unable to adequatsdject or enforce our intellectual property rigyfdr our products, methods, processes and
other technologies, the value of the drug prodaodadates that we license to derive revenue wonhihish. Additionally, if our products,
methods, processes and other technologies infthrgproprietary rights of other parties, we coulcur substantial costs. The USPTO has
issued to us a number of U.S. patents for our uarioventions and we have in-licensed several pafesm various institutions. We have
filed additional patent applications and provisiop@tent applications with the USPTO. We have féegumber of corresponding foreign
patent applications and intend to file additiorakfgn and U.S. patent applications, as appropNggcannot assure you as to:

. the degree and range of protection any patentsaffidtd against competitors with similar produc
. if and when patents will issue;
. whether or not others will obtain patents claimaggpects similar to those covered by our patenicgifuns.
If the USPTO upholds patents issued to otheisthe USPTO grants patent applications filedotiyers, we may have to:
. obtain licenses or redesign our products or presessavoid infringemen
. stop using the subject matter claimed in thosenpsiter
. pay damage:

We may initiate, or others may bring agairsstliigation or administrative proceedings relatedntellectual property rights, including
proceedings before the USPTO. Any judgment adverss in any litigation or other proceeding arisingonnection with a patent or patent
application could materially and adversely affeat business, financial condition and results ofrafiens. In addition, the costs of any such
proceeding may be substantial whether or not weaceessful.

Our success is also dependent upon the dkiltsyledge and experience, none of which is pabdataf our scientific and technical
personnel. To help protect our rights, we requlireraployees, consultants, advisors and partneester into confidentiality agreements that
prohibit the disclosure of confidential informatitmanyone outside of our company and require aisgk and assignment to us of their ideas,
developments, discoveries and inventions. Thesseagents may not provide adequate protection fotrade secrets, know-how or other
proprietary information in the event of any unautbed use or disclosure or the lawful developmegnotiners of such information, and if any
of our proprietary information is disclosed, oushmess will suffer because our revenues depend apoability to license our technology a
any such events would significantly impair the watif such a license.

If we fail to retain our existing key personnel dail to attract and retain additional key personnghe development of our drug produ
candidates and the expansion of our business wildelayed or stopped.

We are highly dependent upon our senior managéand scientific team, the loss of whose sesvicight impede the achievement of our
development and commercial objectives. Competithorkey personnel with the experience that we neqigiintense and is expected to
continue to increase. Our inability to attract aethin the required number of skilled and expegehnmanagement, operational and scientific
personnel, will harm our business because we by these personnel for many critical functionswf business. In addition, we rely on
members of our scientific advisory board and cdmsi$ to assist us in formulating our researchdmatlopment strategy. All of the memb
of the scientific advisory board and all of our soliants are otherwise employed and each such nreankensultant may have commitments
to other entities that may limit their availability us.

We may be unable to establish sales, marketing distribution capabilities necessary to successfudlymmercialize products we may
develop.

We currently have no marketing capability addirect or third-party sales or distribution claitisies. If we successfully develop a drug
product candidate and decide to commercializertalues rather than relying on third parties, asaveeconsidering doing in the United Ste
for Fodosine™, we may be unable to establish mendgesales and distribution capabilities necessagommercialize and gain market
acceptance for that product.

If users of our drug products are not reimbursedrfose, future sales of our drug products will ded.

The lack of reimbursement for the use of cwdpct candidates by hospitals, clinics, patientdaztors will harm our business. Medicare,
Medicaid, health maintenance organizations andrattiel-party payers may not authorize or otherviiedget for the reimbursement of our
products. Governmental and third-party payersm@eeeasingly
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challenging the prices charged for medical prodant$ services. We cannot be sure that third-payeis would view our product candidates
as cost-effective, that reimbursement will be aldé to consumers or that reimbursement will bégeht to allow our product candidates to
be marketed on a competitive basis. Changes irbrgisement policies, or attempts to contain costeérhealth care industry could limit or
restrict reimbursement for our product candidatebswaould materially and adversely affect our busindecause future product sales would
decline and we would receive less product or rgyatenue.

The Medicare prescription drug coverage legislatiand future legislative or regulatory reform of thieealthcare system may affect our
ability to sell our products profitably.

In the United States, there have been a nuofdegislative and regulatory proposals, at bo#hfederal and state government levels, to
change the healthcare system in ways that coudtttadiur ability to sell our products profitably aipproved. For example, the Medicare
Prescription Drug and Modernization Act of 2003 {M”), went into effect in 2006 and has changed the tgpelsugs covered by Medica
and the methodology used to determine the pricedoh drugs. Further federal and state proposdlfi@althcare reforms are likely. Our
business could be harmed by the MMA, by the possiffiect of this legislation on amounts that pevpayors will pay and by other
healthcare reforms that may be enacted or adoptégtifuture.

There is a substantial risk of product liability &ims in our business. If we are unable to obtainfScient insurance, a product liability
claim against us could adversely affect our busises

We face an inherent risk of product liabikbyposure related to the testing of our product ickates in human clinical trials and will face
even greater risks upon any commercialization bgfumir product candidates. We have product ligbitisurance covering our clinical trials
in the amount of $10 million. Clinical trial andqutuct liability insurance is becoming increasingipensive. As a result, we may be unab
obtain sufficient insurance or increase our exgstinverage at a reasonable cost to protect ussidagses that could have a material adverse
effect on our business. An individual may bringraduct liability claim against us if one of our pects or product candidates causes, or is
claimed to have caused, an injury or is found taitsuitable for consumer use. Any product liabititgim brought against us, with or without
merit, could result in:

. liabilities that substantially exceed our prodieility insurance, which we would then be reguiito pay from other sources, if
available;

. an increase of our product liability insuranceseor the inability to maintain insurance coveragne future on acceptable terms,
or at all;

. withdrawal of clinical trial volunteers or patien

. damage to our reputation and the reputation opooducts, resulting in lower sale
. regulatory investigations that could require costlyalls or product modification

. litigation costs; ani

. the diversion of managem’'s attention from managing our busine

If our computer systems fail or our facility incurdamage, our business will suffe

Our drug development activities depend orsewurity, integrity and performance of the compaietems supporting them, and the fail
of our computer systems could delay our drug dgraknt efforts. We currently store most of our @rechl and clinical data at our facility.
Duplicate copies of most critical data are storffesive in a bank vault. Any significant degradatior failure of our computer systems could
cause us to inaccurately calculate or lose our. dlatss of data could result in significant delay®ur drug development process and any
system failure could harm our business and opa&mstio
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In addition, we store numerous clinical arabgity samples at our facility that could be damegf our facility incurred physical damage
in the event of an extended power failure. We Haakup power systems in addition to backup genexadomaintain power to all critical
functions, but any loss of these samples couldtressignificant delays in our drug developmenbgess.

If, because of our use of hazardous materials, vigate any environmental controls or regulationsahapply to such materials, we mi
incur substantial costs and expenses in our remédidia efforts.

Our research and development involves theralhed use of hazardous materials, chemicals andwsradioactive compounds. We are
subject to federal, state and local laws and reigumis governing the use, storage, handling anddedpof these materials and some waste
products. Accidental contamination or injury frone$e materials could occur. In the event of andeatj we could be liable for any damages
that result and any liabilities could exceed osoregces. Compliance with environmental laws andleg@ns could require us to incur
substantial unexpected costs, which would matgréaild adversely affect our results of operations.

Risks Relating to Our Common Stock
Our stock price is likely to be highly volatile anitie value of your investment could decline sigoéntly.

The market prices for securities of biotecligglcompanies in general have been highly volatié may continue to be highly volatile in
the future. Moreover, our stock price has fluctddtequently, and these fluctuations are oftenralated to our financial results. For the
twelve months ended December 31, 2006, the 52-vawje of the market price of our stock was fron288o0 $23.00 per share. The
following factors, in addition to other risk facsodescribed in this section, may have a significaptct on the market price of our common
stock:

. announcements of technological innovations or nemdycts by us or our competito

. developments or disputes concerning patents origtapy rights;

. status of new or existing licensing or collaboratagreements and government contr:

. we or our partners achieving or failing to achieegelopment milestone

. publicity regarding actual or potential medicaluiésrelating to products under development byrusus competitors
. publicity regarding certain public health conceforswhich we are or may be developing treatme

. regulatory developments in both the United Statekfareign countries

. public concern as to the safety of pharmaceuticzadycts;

. actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operatiegults;

. changes in financial estimates or recommendatigrseburities analyst:

. changes in the structure of healthcare paymenessstincluding developments in price control legisi;

. announcements by us or our competitors of sigmifie@quisitions, strategic partnerships, joint uees or capital commitment
. additions or departures of key personnel or memdsieosir board of director:

. sales of substantial amounts of our stock by exgsttockholders, including officers or directc

. economic and other external factors or other disasir crises; an
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. perioc-to-period fluctuations in our financial resul

Because stock ownership is concentrated, you arfteotnvestors will have limited influence on stoctitier decisions

As of December 31, 2006, our directors, exgeutfficers and some principal stockholders aradrtaffiliates beneficially owned
approximately 31.7% of our outstanding common stmotk common stock equivalents. As a result, theiiels, if acting together, are able
significantly influence matters requiring stockheddpproval, including the election of directorkisTconcentration of ownership may delay,
defer or prevent a change in our control.

We have anti-takeover provisions in our corporateacter documents that may result in outcomes withieh you do not agree.

Our board of directors has the authority smésup to 4,955,000 shares of undesignated prdfstoek and to determine the rights,
preferences, privileges and restrictions of thémeress without further vote or action by our stodkieecs. The rights of the holders of any
preferred stock that may be issued in the futurg attversely affect the rights of the holders of owon stock. The issuance of preferred s!
could make it more difficult for third parties toquire a majority of our outstanding voting stock.

In addition, our certificate of incorporatiprovides for staggered terms for the members obdzed of directors and supermajority
approval of the removal of any member of the badrdirectors and prevents our stockholders fronmgdby written consent. Our certificate
also requires supermajority approval of any amemdrogthese provisions. These provisions and gihevisions of our by-laws and of
Delaware law applicable to us could delay or makeendifficult a merger, tender offer or proxy casttavolving us.

In June 2002, our board of directors adoptetbekholder rights plan and, pursuant theretoeidgpreferred stock purchase rights
(“Rights”) to the holders of our common stock. TRights have certain anti-takeover effects. If teggd, the Rights would cause substantial
dilution to a person or group of persons who aegumore than 15% (19.9% for William W. FeatheringilDirector who owned
approximately 9.58% as of December 31, 2006, buteslimore than 15% at the time the Rights wererpptace) of our common stock on
terms not approved by the board of directors.

We have never paid dividends on our common stocH do not anticipate doing so in the foreseeableufia.
We have never paid cash dividends on our stékcurrently intend to retain all future earninany, for use in the operation of our
business. Accordingly, we do not anticipate payiagh dividends on our common stock in the forededature.

Information Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This discussion contains forward-looking staats, which are subject to risks and uncertainfibese forward-looking statements can
generally be identified by the use of words suctnaay,” “will,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “articipates,” “expects,” “estimates,”
“predicts,” “potential,” “hope,” the negative ofébe words or similar expressions. Statements #safrithe our future plans, strategies,
intentions, expectations, objectives, goals orpeots are also forward-looking statements. Disomsscontaining these forward-looking
statements are principally contained in “Busines®i “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Firer@ondition and Results of
Operations”, as well as any amendments we makesetsections in filings with the SEC. These fodaanking statements include, but are
not limited to, statements about:

. the initiation, timing, progress and results of pueclinical and clinical trials, research and depment programs
. the further preclinical or clinical development asammercialization of our product candidal

. the implementation of our business model, stratplgins for our business, product candidates arfuhtdogy;
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. our ability to establish and maintain collabayas with biotechnology or pharmaceutical compaaies governmental agencies or
other third parties

. the scope of protection we are able to estabihmaintain for intellectual property rights caagrour product candidates and
technology;

. our ability to operate our business without infiimggthe intellectual property rights of othe

. estimates of our expenses, future revenues, capgalrements and our needs for additional finagc
. the timing or likelihood of regulatory filings aragbprovals

. our negotiations with the FDA for a special protcgssessmen

. our financial performance; ar

. competitive companies, technologies and our ingu

These statements reflect our current viewbk vaspect to future events and are based on assmsphd subject to risks and uncertainties
which may cause our actual results, performan@ebievements to be materially different from antyfa results, performances or
achievements expressed or implied by the forwao#titmy statements. Given these uncertainties, youldmot place undue reliance on these
forward-looking statements. We discuss many ofahiesks in greater detail in “Risk Factors.” Alsbese forward-looking statements
represent our estimates and assumptions only tag afate of this document.

You should read this discussion completely witd the understanding that our actual future itesnay be materially different from what
we expect. We may not update these forward-looktatements, even though our situation may changeeifuture. We qualify all of our
forward-looking statements by these cautionaryestants.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our administrative offices and principal rasbdacilities are located in 50,150 square fedea$ed space in Riverchase
Industrial/Research Park in Birmingham, Alabamae Tgase runs through June 30, 2010 with an opti@artew the lease for an additional
five years at current market rates. In addition,congently lease 5,375 square feet of office spacgary, NC through February 2010 for our
clinical and regulatory operation. We believe thiat facilities are adequate for our current opereti

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

None.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
None.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ GlobalkétSMunder the symbol BCRX. The following table setdtidhe low and high
sales prices of our common stock as reported by DX Global Marke®#Mfor each quarter in 2006 and 2005:

2006 2005

Low High Low High
First quartel $15.8( $23.0( $4.32 $ 6.91
Second quarte 10.8¢ 18.11 3.6¢ 5.2t
Third quartel 8.2(C 14.9¢ 4.9C 10.4¢
Fourth quarte 10.8( 12.8¢ 9.7( 18.6¢

The last sale price of the common stock on Marc2007 as reported by NASDAQ Global Mark&twas $9.64 per share.

Holders

As of March 7, 2007, there were approximately 26Riérs of record of our common stock.

Dividends

We have never paid cash dividends and do not patieipaying cash dividends in the foreseeabledutur

Stock Performance Graph
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This performance graph is not “soliciting matetias, not deemed filed with the SEC and is not torte®iporated by reference in any filing
us under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended‘8hcurities Act”), or the Exchange Act, whetheada before or after the date hereof and
irrespective of any general incorporation languiageny such filing. The stock price performancevshmn the graph is not necessarily
indicative of future price performance.

PERFORMANCE GRAPH FOR BIOCRYST
Indexed Comparison Since 2001

TAN
AN

Ddollars
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Baolryst Pharmaceubicals. Inc. . == ===== The Masdag Stock Market{ LIS} il Masdag Pharmaccutical Stocks

Beginnin
Invgstmer?t Investment Investment Investment Investment Investment
12/31/01 at 12/31/02 at 12/31/03 at 12/31/04 at 12/31/05 at 12/31/06
BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, In $100.0( $24.2¢ $172.9¢ $145.9¢ $422.9¢ $291.9:
The NASDAQ Stock Marke 100.0( 69.1: 103.3¢ 112.4¢ 114.8¢ 126.2:
NASDAQ Pharmaceutical Stoc| 100.0( 64.62 94.7: 100.8¢ 111.0¢ 108.7¢

The above graph measures the change in a $10Grmeisin the Company’s common stock based ondisirn) price of $3.96 on
December 31, 2001 and its year-end closing prieetifter. The Company’s relative performance ia t@mpared with the CRSP Total
Return Indexes for the NASDAQ Stock Market (US) &ABISDAQ Pharmaceutical Stocks.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
None.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

We did not repurchase any of our equity securdi@ing the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.
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Statement of Operations Data:

Total revenue
Research and development exper

Net loss

Amounts per common shal
Basic and diluted net loss per sh

Weighted average shares outstant

Balance Sheet Data:

Cash, cash equivalents and secur
Total asset

Long-term deferred revent
Accumulated defici

Total stockholdel' equity

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Years Ended December 31,
(In thousands, except per share data)

34

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
$ 6,21 $ 15z $ 337 $ 658 $ —
47,08 23,64: 18,86¢ 11,52: 15,47:
(43,61%) (26,099 (21,109 (12,700 (16,929
$ (1.50 $ (1.0 $ (1.00) $ (72 $ (.96
29,147 25,72 21,16¢ 17,708 17,64
December 31
(In thousands)
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
$ 46,23¢ $ 59,98¢ $ 28,70¢ $ 25,73 $ 36,16
68,48¢ 99,24¢ 32,46¢ 30,09¢ 41,30(
36,59¢ 29,42¢ 30C 30C 30C
(195,48)) (151,867 (125,769 (104,66() (91,960
21,15t 58,44( 29,33¢ 28,44 40,12¢
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certaatesnents of a forward-looking nature relating ttufie events or the future financial
performance of BioCryst. Such statements are amgliptions and the actual events or results mafedihaterially from the results discuss
in the forward-looking statements. Factors thatldozause or contribute to such differences inclthdese discussed below as well as those
discussed in other filings made by BioCryst with 8ecurities and Exchange Commission.

This discussion of our financial condition and rksof operations should be read together with IterBusiness and the financial
statements, including the notes thereto, containdtém 8 of this Form 10-K .
Overview

Since our inception in 1986, we have been gedan research and development activities andnizgtonal efforts, including:

. identifying and licensing enzyme targe

. drug discovery

. structur-based design of drug candidat

. smal-scale synthesis of compouni

. conducting preclinical studies and clinical tri¢

. establishing collaborative relationships withrdhparties for contract research related to theligament of our drug candidates to
support manufacturing, clinical development andiutagpry compliance

. establishing collaborative relationships withtbhnology or pharmaceutical companies and goventahagencies or other third
parties for the further development and potentimhmercialization of our compounc

. recruiting our scientific and management persor
. establishing laboratory facilities; al
. raising capital

Our revenues have generally been limitedcenise fees, event payments, research and develbfaasnand interest income. Revenue is
recognized in accordance with Staff Accounting 8l No. 104 Revenue RecognitidiSAB No. 104") and Emerging Issues Task Force
Issue 00-21Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliveralff&8TF Issue 00-21"). License fees, future evengmants, and research and
development fees are recognized as revenue wharathigs process is complete and we have no furtivinuing performance obligations
or we have completed the performance obligatiomeuthe terms of the agreement. Fees received lindasing agreements that are related
to future performance are deferred and recognigeshened over an estimated period determined byageanent based on the terms of the
agreement and the products licensed. For exammptbeiRoche and Mundipharma licenses agreementdefeered the upfront payments o
the remaining life of the patents which are thro@0B3 and 2017, respectively. We are currentlywatalg the period of deferral for the
upfront payment related to the Shionogi agreemarnhe event a license agreement contains multiplverables, we evaluate whether the
deliverables are separate or combined units ofiatow in accordance with EITF Issue 00-21. Revisito revenue or profit estimates as a
result of changes in the estimated revenue per@degognized prospectively.

Future event payments are recognized as revgpon the achievement of specified events ifi{@)dvent is substantive in nature and the
achievement of the event was not reasonably assiitee inception of the agreement and
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(2) the fees are non-refundable and non-credit@tsig.event payments received prior to satisfyingsthcriteria are recorded as deferred
revenue.

Under the guidance of EITF Issue 99-19 and=HEBue 01-14, reimbursements received for diretbb-pocket expenses related to
research and development costs are recorded aweeirethe income statement rather than as a lieduatexpenses. For example, the
amounts received from our collaboration with Murdipma for the reimbursement of clinical trial castsl the costs received from HHS for
reimbursement will be recorded as revenue in thimgehe related costs were recorded. Significamctl costs incurred upon entering into a
licensing arrangement, such as our sublicensetde®ECOM and IRL, are deferred and charged to egpém proportion to the revenue
recognized.

Royalty revenue is recognized based on estsnaitroyalties earned during the applicable pesiod adjusted for differences between the
estimated and actual royalties in the followingiger If royalties can not be reasonably estimatedenue is recognized upon receipt of
royalty statements from the licensee. We have ex#tived any royalties from the sale of licensedplaaeutical products.

It could be several years, if ever, beforewilerecognize significant revenue from royaltieseived pursuant to our license agreements or
revenue directly from product sales. Future revenifi@ny, are likely to fluctuate substantiallprin quarter to quarter.

We have incurred operating losses since aapition. Our accumulated deficit at December 30620as $195.5 million. We expect to
incur substantial expenditures relating to the traent of our current and future drug candidaiasing the three years ended
December 31, 2006, we spent 66.0% of our researtid@velopment expenses on contract research astbgenent, including:

. payments to consultant

. funding of research at academic institutic

. toxicology studies on existing and potential drt

. manufacturing of our raw materials, drug substara®drug products

. large scale synthesis and formulation of compou

. preclinical studies

. payments of amounts to academic institutions ahdretas a result of our recent collaboratic
. engaging investigators to conduct clinical tri:

. hiring contract research organizations for regujasmd clinical functions; an

. using statisticians to evaluate the results oficdintrials.

The above expenditures for contract reseandidavelopment for our current and future drug cdatds will vary from quarter-to-quarter
depending on the status of our research and dawelafpprojects. For example, during the third quaste2006, we incurred significant costs
related to the Phase | trials with peramivir anel dhgoing validation manufacturing for peramiviaglisubstance. Results from these Phase |
trials have enabled us to design the Phase Istbiaginning in the 2006-2007 flu season. In addlitiee initiated a Phase Il pivotal trial with
Fodosine™ in January 2007. As these trials progaedsadditional trials are started in other indarat, our costs for clinical studies will
increase significantly. In addition, the costs assed with the manufacturing of Fodosine™ and iéva will increase as we continue
scaling up to the larger production runs requikadcfinical development, manufacturing validatiordadditional toxicology studies for these
programs.
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Changes in our existing and future researchd@velopment and collaborative relationships alllampact the status of our research and
development projects. For example, in January 2@@7announced a $102.6 million contract with HH6tFe full funding of the
development, manufacturing and clinical trials rieggl for licensure of peramivir with both the iand i.m. formulations. In March 2007, we
announced a license agreement with Shionogi fod#velopment and commercialization of peramividépan for an upfront payment of
$14 million. In November 2005 we entered into &atise agreement with Roche for the worldwide devetagt and commercialization for our
second PNP inhibitor, BCX-4208. In addition to gofrant payment plus an advance payment for manufimct we performed, Roche has
taken over the development and is paying all casteciated with this program. In February 2006ligemsed Fodosine™ to Mundipharma
for the development and commercialization of thisgdn Europe, Asia and Australasia. In additioth® upfront payment of $10 million,
Mundipharma is paying 50% of the clinical developineosts we incur for Fodosine™ on existing anchipadl clinical trials, but their portion
shall not exceed $10 million.

For the Roche and Mundipharma collaboratiaresyill owe sublicense payments to AECOM and IRLadirupfront, future event
payments and royalties. For the Shionogi and G@ress collaborations, we will owe sublicense paytisiem UAB. For 2006, we paid
approximately $8.2 million related to the Roche &hghdipharma agreements. The revenue from thesgeagmts has been recorded as
deferred revenue on our balance sheet and wikbegnized over the remaining patent life of thatesl drug candidate. The payments to
AECOM and IRL have been recorded as deferred asaatsir balance sheet and will be recognized dveperiod of the related revenue
recognition. Due to the nature of the potentialestibnes in our collaborations, it is difficult teedict if and when particular milestones will
achieved by us or our partners.

The contract with HHS is a standard cost-ffixisd-fee contract which provides for the reimbunseat of allowable costs plus an element
of overhead and profit. This is expected to has@aificant positive revenue impact on our finahsiatements. As the costs of our peramivir
program increase for the clinical trials, manufaicty and other expenses we will submit invoiceBlKSS for reimbursement of expenses
allowable under the contract. The expenses arededas R&D expenses and reimbursements are recasdevenue. In the same way, as
we incur R&D costs for our Fodosine™ program thatr@imbursable under the Mundipharma contract&lD Rxpenses for peramivir that
are related to the Shionogi contract, we will irseothe respective company for those costs. The atmoeimbursable will be recorded as
revenue in the same period the costs are incubnedng January 2007, we initiated a pivotal clinité@l with Fodosine™ in T-ALL, which
triggered a $5 million milestone payment from Mptdirma. The revenues expected from the Mundiphagreement in 2007 will consist
continuing reimbursement of R&D expenses in acawcdavith the contract and the amortization of thrant and milestone payments. The
primary revenue expected from the Roche agreeme007 is the continuing amortization of the upfrpayment received.

Although we may, in some cases, be able ttrabtie timing of development expenses, in parabgelerating or decelerating certain
costs, many of these costs will be incurred irretpe of whether we are able to discover drug odaugis or obtain collaborative partners for
commercialization. In addition, the achievemeninilestones in our collaboration agreements is uageand unpredictable and would most
likely have a significant impact on our operatiegults in the periods they are achieved. As atiesalbelieve that quarter-to-quarter
comparisons of our financial results are not nearlganeaningful and should not be relied uponraidication of future performance. If we
fail to meet the research, clinical and financigdectations of securities analysts and investbrsuld have a material adverse effect on the
price of our common stock.

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared with the Ye&nded December 31, 2005

Collaborative and other research and developnexenue was $6,212,000 for the year compar&d5@,000 for 2005. The increase for
2006 was primarily due to amounts earned purswantit collaboration agreements with MundipharmaRaodhe, plus the continuing
amortization of the upfront payments from thosesagrents.

Research and development expenses for 2006$4&,083,000, a 99.1% increase from 2005 experisk3,642,000, primarily
attributable to the clinical and manufacturing sastour expanded peramivir and Fodosine™ prograrfd, 549,000 non-cash share-based
compensation charge related to adoption of Stateofdfinancial Accounting Standards No. 123(R) (A&F123R") in January 20086,
increases in personnel and related costs to sufiodinical development of our pipeline, and @ases in consulting and toxicology. As of
December 31, 2006, the Company had incurred appately $2.3 million of pre-contract costs direatyated to the Phase 2 trials for both
the
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intravenous and intramuscular peramivir produckt®sE costs were incurred in anticipation of a @mitaward from HHS and were required
to meet the delivery schedule of the proposed aohttn accordance with the provisions of Federauisition Regulation 31.205-32, the
costs were included in the Company'’s request foppsal and are eligible for reimbursement from HH® $2.3 million of costs incurred
prior to the contract award date were deferredaaadncluded in other current assets on the Compédmayance sheet at December 31, 2006.
In the first quarter of 2007, the $2.3 million iasts will be billed and expensed. Concurrentlyerexe will be recognized for these costs plus
the applicable fixed fee.

General and administrative expenses for 208@ 6,108,000, an increase of 65.7% over the 2RpBnse of $3,686,000, primarily due
the $1,790,000 non-cash shé@sed compensation charge related to SFAS 123R¢eease in professional fees, and an increasersopne
related expenses. These increases were partifdigtdiy an increase in costs allocated to researdidevelopment.

Interest income for 2006 was $3,362,000, aZhlincrease compared to $1,078,000 in 2005. Tciease was due to a higher average
cash balance during 2006 and a more favorablecistteate environment as compared to 2005.

The net loss for the year ended December@®16 %vas $43,618,000, or $1.50 per share, comparaaét loss of $26,099,000, or $1.01
per share in 2005.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared with the Ye&nded December 31, 2004

Collaborative and other research and developneeenue was $152,000 for the year compared3a@,$80 for 2004 due to completion of
work performed under the NIH grant for hepatitis@ing 2005. Also, there was an NIH grant durin@£26€r our TF/FVIla program that
totaled approximately $100,000, which was compléte2D04.

Research and development expenses for 2005$28;642,000, a 25.3% increase from 2004 experist8,868,000, which is directly
related to the additional contract research, dinidal and toxicology expenses required for tineHer development of our lead drug
candidates during 2005 and an increase in perscost.

General and administrative expenses for 208% 83,686,000, an increase of 14.4% over the 2Rpdnse of $3,221,000, primarily due
an increase in legal fees related to the Mundiphaand Roche collaborations and an increase in peesoelated expenses.

Interest income for 2005 was $1,078,000, 4%6ncrease compared to $648,000 in 2004. Thisas® was due to a higher average cash
balance during 2005 and a more favorable inteagstanvironment as compared to 2004.

The net loss for the year ended December@®15 %vas $26,099,000, or $1.01 per share, comparaaét loss of $21,104,000, or $1.00
per share in 2004.
Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash expenditures have exceeded revenuesainagception. Our operations have principallymé&eded through public offerings and
private placements of equity and debt securitiescash from collaborative and other research amdldpment agreements and to a lesser
extent interest. For example, during December 2@@5:aised $30.0 million (approximately $29.9 roifinet of expenses) through a sale of
2,228,829 shares of our common stock. During 20@6received cash from collaborative and other meseand development agreements
(primarily Roche and Mundipharma) of approximai®84.8 million net of sublicense fees. Based orcigrdted cash receipts from the HHS
contract and the collaborations with Shionogi, Miphdrma and Roche we expect such cash receiptsrteaise significantly. Other source:
funding have included the following:

. other collaborative and other research and devedopagreement:
. government grants and contrac

. equipment lease financin

38




Table of Contents

. facility leases
. research grants; at
. interest income

In addition, we have attempted to containcastd reduce cash flow requirements by rentinqisieequipment and facilities, contracti
with other parties to conduct certain researchdmalopment and using consultants. We expect to iadditional expenses, potentially
resulting in significant losses, as we continupudcsue our research and development activitiegnske additional preclinical studies and
clinical trials of compounds which have been or haydiscovered and as we increase the manufactofiogr compounds for clinical trials
and for the continuation of the validation procé¥® also expect to incur substantial expenseseetlatthe filing, prosecution, maintenance,
defense and enforcement of patent and other intalieproperty claims and additional regulatoryts@s our clinical products advance
through later stages of development.

We invest our excess cash principally in Wn@rketable securities from a diversified portfaiainstitutions with strong credit ratings and
in U.S. government and agency bills and notes bgnablicy, limit the amount of credit exposure ayane institution. These investments are
generally not collateralized and mature within tyears. We have not realized any losses from suastments.

We have financed some of our equipment puashadgth lease lines of credit. Our lease for ourent Birmingham facilities expires on
June 30, 2010. We have an option to renew the feasms additional five years at the current mark¢ in effect on June 30, 2010 and a one-
time option to terminate the lease on June 30, 2008 termination fee of approximately $124,008eTease requires us to pay monthly rent
currently at $37,963 per month in December 2006emualating annually to a minimum of $41,481 penthan the final year, plus our pro
rata share of operating expenses and real eska&® itaexcess of base year amounts.

In August 2006, we opened an office in CargrtN Carolina for the establishment of our cliniaall regulatory operation. We currently
have 5,375 square feet under lease through Feb204fy. This lease requires us to pay $7,391 pethreord escalates annually to $7,841 per
month in the final year.

We have not incurred any significant chargeated to building renovations since 2001. Ourtedypiosts during 2006 were approximately
$1.4 million and we anticipate capital costs of mpgmately $2.0 million in 2007.

At December 31, 2006, we had Iaiegm operating lease obligations, which providedggregate minimum payments of $549,758 in 2
$565,257 in 2008 and $538,351 in 2009. These diBigainclude the future rental of our operatingilfaes.

We plan to finance our needs principally frtva following:

. payments under our contract with HF

. our existing capital resources and interest eaonetthat capital

. payments under collaborative and licensing agre¢smeith corporate partners; a
. lease or loan financing and future public or prévihancing.

For the year, our cash, cash equivalents ar#ietable securities balance has decreased frormiii@n as of December 31, 2005 to
$46.2 million as of December 31, 2006, primarilyeda the monthly cash burn from operations lescés received from collaborations,
which totaled to approximately $31.8 million netsablicense fees.

The collaboration with Roche for the worldwidievelopment and commercialization of BCX-4208 pted an upfront payment of
$30 million, which was received in 2006. Roche te&n over the development and is paying all casteciated with this program. The
agreement also provides for future event paymamsayalties to be made by Roche upon the achieneafieertain clinical, regulatory and
sales events.
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In February 2006, we licensed Fodosine™ to difimarma for the development and commercializadiothis drug in Europe, Asia and
Australasia. In addition to the upfront paymen$a0 million, which was received in February 2006ridipharma is paying 50% of the
clinical development costs we are incurring for &side™ on existing and planned clinical trials, thgir portion shall not exceed
$10 million. In addition, Mundipharma will conduatiditional clinical trials at their own cost upaanaximum of $15 million. The agreement
also provides for future event payments and rogslid be made by Mundipharma upon the achievenfieetrin clinical, regulatory and
sales events. In January 2007, we initiated owtphstudy with Fodosine™ in T-cell leukemia patgenwhich triggered a $5 million event
payment from Mundipharma.

In January 2007, we announced that HHS haddrdehe Company a $102.6 million, four-year caritfar the advanced development of
peramivir. Funding from the contract will supporamufacturing, process validation, clinical stuciesl other product approval requirements
for peramivir. The contract is a standard cost fiked fee contract, which will have a significgrgsitive impact on our financial position and
cash flow. We will bill our incurred costs to HH& a monthly basis. Any significant delays in payi@ncancellation of this contract by
HHS would have a significant negative effect on fingincial position.

In January 2007, we announced the initiatiba pivotal Phase Ilb clinical trial with Fodosinei¥patients with T-ALL. This trial is being
conducted under a SPA negotiated with the FDAdutiteon, we are in active discussions with the FidAletermine what would be required
to initiate a pivotal clinical trial with Fodosined CTCL patients later in 2007. With the initiatiof the pivotal Phase llb clinical trial, we
achieved one milestone related to our collaboratith Mundipharma, which triggered a $5.0 millioayment. In addition, Mundipharma
will reimburse us for our clinical development cosf Fodosine™ up to the $10 million defined in agreement. In March 2007, we
announced a collaborative agreement with Shiormgiifihts to peramivir in Japan. This agreementiireg an upfront payment of
$14 million that will be received in 2007.

With the award of the HHS contract to fund dexelopment of peramivir and the current and pdarnials for Fodosine™, we expect an
increase in our research and development expeos@807. However, with the expected reimbursememh fthe HHS contract and our other
partners, we are projecting our net cash burnteadeerage approximately $3.0 million per mont2@97. We caution that both our expenses
and our cash flows will vary significantly from quter to quarter due to the nature of the trialmfluenza and the reimbursement from HHS.

As our clinical programs continue to grow gadient enroliment increases, our costs will insee®ur current and planned clinical trials
plus the related manufacturing, personnel resowndgesting required to support the developmentuiofdrug candidates will consume
significant capital resources and will increase expenses. Our expenses, revenues and burn rdteveoy significantly depending on many
factors, including our ability to raise additiomalpital, the development progress of our collatweagreements for our drug candidates, the
amount of funding we receive from HHS for peramitlire amount of funding or assistance, if any, aeive from other governmental
agencies or other new partnerships with third parfior the development of our drug candidatesptbgress and results of our current and
proposed clinical trials for our most advanced douaducts, the progress made in the manufactufimgiolead products and the progression
of our other programs.

As of December 31, 2006, we had $46.2 miliilonash, cash equivalents and marketable secuftigh our currently available funds and
amounts to be received from HHS, Shionogi (andotheer collaborators), we believe these resourcderisufficient to fund our operations
for at least the next twelve months. However, ihis forward looking statement, and there may laanghs that would consume available
resources significantly before such time. Our lé@gn capital requirements and the adequacy of waitadle funds will depend upon many
factors, including:

. our ability to perform under the contract with HIdSd receive reimbursemel

. the progress and magnitude of our research, dagpaery and development prograt

. changes in existing collaborative relationshipg@rernment contract

. our ability to establish additional collaboratiredationships with academic institutions, biotemlogy or pharmaceutical companies
and governmental agencies or other third par
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. the extent to which our partners, including goweental agencies will share in the costs associatitdthe development of our
programs or run the development programs themse

. our ability to negotiate favorable development aratketing strategic alliances for our drug candid;
. the scope and results of preclinical studies aimicell trials to identify and evaluate drug candedq

. our ability to enroll sites and patients in oungal trials;

. the scope of manufacturing of our drug candidaiesipport our preclinical research and clinicall$:;i
. increases in personnel and related costs to sufidevelopment of our drug candida

. the scope of validation for the manufacturing of drug substance and drug products required foréuiDA filings;
. competitive and technological advanc

. the time and costs involved in obtaining regulat@pprovals

. the costs involved in preparing, filing, prosecgtimaintaining and enforcing patent clair

. our dependence on others for development and cocmatization of our product candidates; ¢

. successful commercialization of our products cdestswith our licensing strateg

We expect that we will be required to raisditinal capital to complete the development anahimercialization of our current product
candidates. Additional funding, whether throughitdidal sales of securities or collaborative orestarrangements with corporate partners or
from other sources, including governmental ageniciggeneral and from the HHS contract specificaliay not be available when needed or
on terms acceptable to us. The issuance of préferreommon stock or convertible securities, wéints and prices significantly more
favorable than those of the currently outstandimgimon stock, could have the effect of diluting dversely affecting the holdings or rights
of our existing stockholders. In addition, collabiive arrangements may require us to transferioaematerial rights to such corporate
partners. Insufficient funds may require us to geszale-back or eliminate certain of our researmth development programs.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As part of our ongoing business, we do notigipate in transactions that generate relatiorshigth unconsolidated entities or financial
partnerships, such as entities often referred girastured finance or special purpose entitie®ES’), which would have been established
the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet ageaments or other contractually narrow or limitedpmses. As of December 31, 2006, we are
not involved in any material unconsolidated SPBféibalance sheet arrangements.

Contractual Obligations

In the table below, we set forth our enfordeamd legally binding obligations and future cortmmants and obligations related to all
contracts that we are likely to continue regardt€fshe fact that they are cancelable as of Dece®be2006. Some of the amounts we
include in this table are based on managemeniimatgts and assumptions about these obligationsidimg their duration, the possibility of
renewal, anticipated actions by third parties, athetr factors. Because these estimates and assumsipiie necessarily subjective, the
obligations we will actually pay in future periodsy vary from those reflected in the table.
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Payments due by period

Less than More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Operating Lease Obligatiol $ 1,909,20! $ 549,75 $1,103,60: $255,84: $ —
Purchase Obligations ( 16,174,05 14,894,05 460,00( 460,00( 360,00(
Other Long-Term Liabilities Reflected on BioCryst’s
Balance Sheet Under GAA 300,00 — — — 300,00
Total $18,383,25 $15,443,80 $1,563,60: $715,84: $660,00(

(1) Purchase obligations include commitmentstedldo clinical development, manufacturing and aeste operations and other significant
purchase commitment

In addition to the above, we have committethtike potential future “sublicense” payments toddparties as part of in-licensing and
development programs. Payments under these agréegearerally become due and payable only upon aement of certain developmental,
regulatory and/or commercial milestones. Becausathievement of these milestones is neither ptelraly reasonably estimable, such
contingencies have not been recorded on our bakires.

Critical Accounting Policies

We have established various accounting pdalitiat govern the application of accounting prifesmenerally accepted in the United St
which were utilized in the preparation of our fical statements. Certain accounting policies ingdignificant judgments and assumptions
by management that have a material impact on tirgicg value of certain assets and liabilities. Mgament considers such accounting
policies to be critical accounting policies. Thdgments and assumptions used by management ackdrabéstorical experience and other
factors, which are believed to be reasonable uti@ecircumstances. Because of the nature of ttggjedts and assumptions made by
management, actual results could differ from thjedgments and estimates, which could have a matergsmct on the carrying values of
assets and liabilities and the results of operation

While our significant accounting policies anere fully described in Note 1 to our financialtstaents included in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 200&hslieve that the following accounting policies #re most critical to aid you in fully
understanding and evaluating our reported finamemllts and affect the more significant judgmemtd estimates that we use in the
preparation of our financial statements.

Revenue Recognitio

Our revenues have generally been limitedceenise fees, event payments, research and develbfemenand interest income. Revenue is
recognized in accordance with SAB No. 104 and HEHee 00-21. License fees, future event paymentsyesearch and development fees
are recognized as revenue when the earnings priscessiplete and we have no further continuinggremince obligations, or we have
completed the performance obligations under thageaf the agreement. Fees received under licermgjragments that are related to future
performance are deferred and recognized as eaueedn estimated period determined by managemeetban the terms of the agreement
and the products licensed. For example, in the Racid Mundipharma licenses agreements, we deféreagpfront payments over the
remaining life of the patents which are 2023 anti720espectively. We are currently evaluating tetedal period for recognizing the upfront
payment from Shionogi. In the event a license agese contains multiple deliverables, we evaluatetiver the deliverables are separate or
combined units of accounting in accordance withFEISsue 00-21. Revisions to revenue or profit esté® as a result of changes in the
estimated revenue period are recognized prospéctive

Future event payments are recognized as revegpen the achievement of specified events iff{@)avent is substantive in nature and the
achievement of the event was not reasonably assititbé inception of the agreement and
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(2) the fees are non-refundable and non-credit@tsig.event payments received prior to satisfyingsthcriteria are recorded as deferred
revenue.

Under the guidance of EITF Issue 99-19 and=HEBue 01-14, reimbursements received for diretbb-pocket expenses related to
research and development costs are recorded aweeirethe income statement rather than as a lieduatexpenses. For example, the
amounts received from our collaboration with Murdipma for the reimbursement of clinical trial castsl the costs received from HHS for
reimbursement will be recorded as revenue in thimgehe related costs were recorded. Significamctl costs incurred upon entering into a
licensing arrangement, such as our sublicensetde®ECOM and IRL, are deferred and charged to egpém proportion to the revenue
recognized.

Royalty revenue is recognized based on estsnaitroyalties earned during the applicable pesiod adjusted for differences between the
estimated and actual royalties in the followingiger If royalties can not be reasonably estimatedenue is recognized upon receipt of
royalty statements from the licensee. We have ex#tived any royalties from the sale of licensedplaaeutical products.

Research and Development Expent

Major components of R&D expenses consist o§@enel costs, including salaries and benefits,ufzaturing costs, clinical, regulatory,
and toxicology services performed by contract regearganizations (CRQO’s), materials and supphesl overhead allocations consisting of
various administrative and facilities related co®¥® charge these costs to expense when incuwadistent with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 2ccounting for Research and Development Co$tese costs are a significant component of R&peeases.
Most of our manufacturing and our clinical and firécal studies are performed by third-party CROAe accrue costs for studies performed
by CRO'’s over the service periods specified indbmetracts and adjust our estimates, if requiresetaipon our on-going review of the level
of services actually performed. We expense bottirdarnal and external research and developmenms essincurred.

Additionally, we have license agreements whind parties, such as AECOM and IRL that requidntenance fees or fees related to
sublicense agreements. These fees are generaipsag as incurred unless they are related to regehat have been deferred in which case
the expenses will be deferred and recognized dnerdlated revenue recognition period.

We group our R&D expenses into two major catiep: direct external expenses and all other R&Peases. Direct external expenses
consist of costs of outside parties to conductratooy studies, to develop manufacturing proceasesmanufacture the product candidate, to
conduct and manage clinical trials and similar sostated to our clinical and preclinical studiesese costs are accumulated and tracked by
program. All other R&D expenses consist of costsaimpensate personnel, to purchase lab suppliesamites, to maintain our facility,
equipment and overhead and similar costs of owared and development efforts. These costs applptk on our clinical and preclinical
candidates as well as our discovery research sffdhtese costs have not been charged directlyctoagram historically because the
number of product candidates and projects in rekeand development may vary from period to periodl ldecause we utilize internal
resources across multiple projects at the same time

The following table summarizes our R&D expenfe the periods indicated:

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Direct external R&D expenses by program:
PNP Inhibitor (Fodosir™) $17,667,59 $9,256,41 $8,031,92;
PNP Inhibitor (BC>-4208) 643,60! 3,563,96! 2,815,77.
Neuraminidase Inhibitor (peramivi 11,352,73 1,454,73 27,05¢
Hepatitis C Polymerase Inhibit 1,673,48! 446,82¢ 205,74
Tissue Factor/Factor Vlla Inhibit 153,32t 25,07: 472,63:
Other 52,85( 21,167 19,45:
All other R&D expenses:
Compensation and fringe bene 6,870,19 3,813,28. 3,115,23
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Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Supplies and service 3,366,68. 572,05t 88,51¢
Maintenance, depreciation, and amortiza 975,79( 984,68( 1,227,11
Overhead allocation and ott 4,327,10i 3,504,17. 2,864,67
Total R&D expenses $47,083,37 $23,642,37  $18,868,11

At this time, due to the risks inherent in tiaical trial process and given the stages ofvarious product development programs, we are
unable to estimate with any certainty the costswileincur in the continued development of our dreaindidates for potential
commercialization. While we are currently focusedanlvancing each of our development programs,urd R&D expenses will depend on
the determinations we make as to the scientificcdimital success of each drug candidate, as wadngoing assessments as to each drug
candidate’s commercial potential. As such, we aable to predict how we will allocate availableaexes among our product development
programs in the future. In addition, we cannot éast with any degree of certainty the developmeogness of our existing partnerships for
our drug candidates, which drug candidates willigject to future collaborations, when such arraraggs will be secured, if at all, and to
what degree such arrangements would affect oudol@vent plans and capital requirements.

The successful development of our drug cane&dia uncertain and subject to a number of ridkes cannot be certain that any of our drug
candidates will prove to be safe and effective irmeet all of the applicable regulatory requirerteeneeded to receive and maintain
marketing approval. Data from preclinical studied alinical trials are susceptible to varying ipetations that could delay, limit or prevent
regulatory clearance. We, the FDA or other regujasmthorities may suspend clinical trials at ametif we or they believe that the subjects
participating in such trials are being exposedrtaagzeptable risks or if such regulatory agencigs dieficiencies in the conduct of the trials or
other problems with our products under developnmiatays or rejections may be encountered basediditianal governmental regulation,
legislation, administrative action or changes inAR@ other regulatory policy during developmentioe review process. Other risks
associated with our product development programslascribed in Risk Factors in Part I, Item 1Ahi$ Annual Report on Form 10-K, as
updated from time to time in our subsequent pecioelports and current reports filed with the SEQe b these uncertainties, accurate and
meaningful estimates of the ultimate cost to barngoduct to market, the timing of completion oy af our product development programs
and the period in which material net cash inflovesf any of our product development programs withagence are unavailable.

Accrued Expense

As part of the process of preparing finanstatements, we are required to estimate accruezhegp. This process involves reviewing ¢
contracts and purchase orders, communicating witlapplicable personnel to identify services thatéehbeen performed on our behalf and
estimating the level of service performed and teoeiated cost incurred for the service when we ime¢ yet been invoiced or otherwise
notified of actual cost. The majority of our seevigroviders invoice us monthly in arrears for seggiperformed. We make estimates of our
accrued expenses as of each balance sheet datefinamcial statements based on facts and ciramst known to us. We periodically
confirm the accuracy of our estimates with the iserproviders and make adjustments if necessagmiples of estimated accrued expenses
include:

. fees paid to contract research organizations imection with preclinical and toxicology studies attidical trials;

. fees paid to investigative sites in connection withical trials;

. fees paid to contract manufacturers in connectiith thie production of our raw materials, drug sahse and drug products; a
. professional service fee

We base our expenses related to clinicaktoal our estimates of the services received awdtefxpended pursuant to contracts with
multiple research institutions and clinical res@ascganizations that conduct and manage clinigabkton our behalf. The financial terms of
these agreements are subject to negotiation, vany ¢ontract to
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contract and may result in uneven payment flowgntemts under some of these contracts depend ardastich as the successful enroliment
of patients and the completion of clinical triall@sitones. In accruing service fees, we estimatéinteperiod over which services will be
performed and the level of effort to be expendegaoh period. If the actual timing of the performaief services or the level of effort varies
from our estimate, we will adjust the accrual adaugly. If we do not identify costs that we havebe to incur or if we underestimate or
overestimate the level of services performed orctists of these services, our actual expenses ddted from our estimates.

Stock-Based Compensation

At December 31, 2006, we have two stock-baseployee compensation plans, the Stock Incentiar &hd the Employee Stock Purchase
Plan. Prior to January 1, 2006, we accounted fesdlplans under the recognition and measuremevisigaes of Accounting Principles Boa
Opinion No. 25Accounting for Stock Issued to Employeasd other related Interpretations, as permitie8tatement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 128¢ccounting for Stock-Based CompensafiBtatement No. 123”). No stock-based compensatast related
to our employees was recognized in the Statemém@perations for any period ending prior to Janugr2006, as all options granted to our
employees had exercise prices equal to the maake¢ wf the underlying common stock on the datgraht. Effective January 1, 2006, we
adopted the fair value recognition provisions @&t&tent of Financial Accounting Standards No. ¥28iged 2004)Share-Based Payment
(“Statement No. 123R”), using the modified prospectransition method. Compensation cost recognizethg 2006 included:

(a) compensation cost for all share-based payngeatged prior to, but not yet vested as of DecerBtieR2005, based on the grant date fair
value estimated in accordance with the originaljsions of Statement No. 123, and (b) compensatash for all share-based payments
granted subsequent to January 1, 2006, based gnahedate fair value estimated in accordance thighprovisions of Statement No. 123R.
Results for prior periods have not been restated.

Under the fair value recognition provisionsSthtement No. 123R, stock-based compensatioricestimated at the grant date based on
the fair value of the award and is recognized a&psge over the requisite service period of the éwaonsistent with the valuation method
used for disclosure-only purposes under the prongsbdf Statement No. 123, we use the Black-Schagden pricing model to estimate fair
value under Statement No. 123R. Determining thegpiate fair value model and the related assumptfor the model requires judgment,
including estimating the life of an award, the &tpcice volatility, and the expected term. Compdéiosacost is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the requisite service period.

7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES
ABOUT MARKET RISK.

The primary objective of our investment adi@s is to preserve principal while maximizing theome we receive from our investments
without significantly increasing our risk. We inte&xcess cash principally in U.S. marketable séiesrfrom a diversified portfolio of
institutions with strong credit ratings and in UgBvernment and agency bills and notes, and bgydlmit the amount of credit exposure at
any one institution. Some of the securities we swe may have market risk. This means that a chamgrevailing interest rates may cause
the principal amount of the investment to fluctudte minimize this risk, we schedule our investrsgonthave maturities that coincide with
our expected cash flow needs, thus avoiding thd teeeedeem an investment prior to its maturityedaiccordingly, we believe we have no
material exposure to interest rate risk arisingnfimur investments. Therefore, no quantitative tabdisclosure is provided.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2006 2005
Assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 4,417,521 $ 29,156,82
Marketable securitie 33,040,03 21,103,57
Receivables from collaboratio 4,556,14! 30,000,00
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 3,775,97! 839,66
Total current asse 45,789,68 81,100,06
Marketable securitie 8,778,02! 9,727,50:
Furniture and equipment, n 3,029,27. 2,407,95.
Patents and licenses, net of accumulated amodizafi$32,094 in 2006 and $13,076 in 2( 290,69« 187,63!
Deferred collaboration expen 10,597,75 5,825,24.
Total asset $ 68,48542 $ 99,248,39
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Accounts payabl $ 588696 $ 8,812,98
Accrued expense 1,506,71. 1,252,01
Accrued vacatiol 641,47: 442,97
Deferred revenu 2,699,46. 873,78t
Total current liabilities 10,734,61 11,381,76
Deferred revenu 36,595,79 29,426,21
Stockholder equity:
Preferred stock: shares authorized - 5,000,00@S8&iJunior Participating Preferred stock, $.001 pa
value; shares authoriz- 45,000; shares issued and outstan— none — —
Common stock, $.01 par value; shares authoriz&g008,000; shares issued and outstanding -
29,248,84< 2006; 28,813,53— 2005 292,48t 288,13!
Additional paic-in capital 216,310,57 210,014,94
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 32,46 —
Accumulated defici (195,480,52) (151,862,66)
Total stockholdel equity 21,155,00 58,440,41.
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 68,485,42 $ 99,248,39

See accompanying notes to financial statements

46




Table of Contents

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues
Collaborative and other research and developi

Expenses
Research and developmt
General and administrati
Total expense
Loss from operation
Interest and other incon

Net loss
Basic and diluted net loss per common sl

Weighted average shares outstant

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

$ 621193 $ 151,860 $ 336,90:

47,083,37 23,642,37 18,868,11
6,108,37 3,686,32: 3,220,65!
53,191,74 27,328,70 22,088,76

(46,979,80)  (27,176,83)  (21,751,86)

3,361,95I 1,078,06! 647,74

$(43,617,85) $(26,098,76) $(21,104,12)

$ (1.50 $ (1.0) $ (1.00)

29,147,39 25,721,038 21,165,31
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Balance at December 31, 2003

Net loss

Unrealized gain on marketable
securities availab-for-sale

Comprehensive incorr

Sale of common stock, 3,571,667
shares

Exercise of stock options, 283,636
shares

Employee stock purchase plan sale
31,695 share

Stocl-based compensation expel

Balance at December 31, 20C

Net loss

Unrealized gain on marketable
securities availab-for-sale

Comprehensive incorr

Sale of common stock, 6,578,829
shares

Exercise of stock options, 450,717
shares

Employee stock purchase plan sale
25,700 share

Stocl-based compensation expel

Balance at December 31, 20C

Net loss

Unrealized gain on marketable
securities availab-for-sale

Comprehensive incorr

Exercise of stock options, 409,328
shares, ne

Employee stock purchase plan sales,
25,988 share

Stocl-based compensation expel

Balance at December 31, 20C

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated Total
Additional Other Stock-
Common Paid-in Comprehensive Accumulated holders’ Comprehensive
Stock Capital Income Deficit Equity Income
$178,71. $132,92820 $ — $(104,659,77) $ 28,447,14
— — — (21,104,12)  (21,104,12) $(21,104,12)
$(21,104,12)
35,717 20,244,13 — — 20,279,85
2,83¢ 1,077,501 — — 1,080,33!
317 118,26( — — 118,57
— 512,42° — — 512,42
217,58 154,880,52 — (125,763,89) 29,334,21
— — — (26,098,76)  (26,098,76) $(26,098,76)
$(26,098.76)
65,78¢ 52,498,06 — — 52,563,85
4,507 2,473,39! — — 2,477,90:
257 136,56 — — 136,82:
— 26,39 — — 26,39:
288,13 210,014,94 — (151,862,66) 58,440,41
— — — (43,617,85)  (43,617,85) $(43,617,85)
— — 32,46: — 32,46: 32,46
$(43,585,39)
4,09: 2,765,80: — — 2,769,89.
26C 191,07( — — 191,33(
— 3,338,76: — — 3,338,76.
$292,48¢ $216,310,57 $ 32,46: $(195,480,52) $ 21,155,00
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities
Net loss

Years Ended December 31,

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities

Depreciation and amortization of furniture and equént

Gain on disposal of furniture and equipm

Impairment of furniture and equipme

Amortization of patents and licens

Impairment of patents and licens

Stocl-based compensation expel
Changes in operating assets and liabilii

Receivables from collaboratio

Prepaid expenses and other current a:

Deferred collaboration expen

Accounts payabl

Accrued expense

Accrued vacatiol

Deferred revenu

Net cash used in operating activitie

Investing activities

Acquisitions of furniture and equipme
Purchases of patents and licen
Purchases of marketable securi
Maturities of marketable securiti

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Sale of common stock, net of issuance c
Exercise of stock optior

Employee stock purchase plan s

Net cash provided by financing activities

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivz
Cash and equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of ye:i

See accompanying notes to financial statements

2006 2005 2004
$(43,617,85) $(26,098,76) $(21,104,12)
802,17 854,26 955,54
(25,18() — —
— 52,21t 10,92:
19,01¢ 10,29¢ 2,97¢
14,29¢ 101,43° 8,33¢
3,338,76. 26,39: 512,42
25,443,85  (30,000,00) —
(2,936,31) (140,37¢) (23,37))
(4,772,50)  (5,825,24) —
(2,926,01) 6,842,54; 1,330,09:
254,69 688,05° 96,27
198,49° 143,02: 59,58:

8,995,25  30,000,00

(15,211,31)  (23,346,15)  (18,151,33)
(1,398,31) (497,28 (275,919
(136,37) (50,782 (80,44%)
(42,870,52)  (29,695,35)  (18,879,23)
31,916,00 18,729,36  16,398,62
(12,489,20)  (11,514,05)  (2,836,96)
—  52,563,85  20,279,85
2,769,89. 2,477,90; 1,080,33
191,33( 136,82 118,57
2,961,22. 5517857 _ 2147876
(24,739,29)  20,318,36 490,46:
29,156,82 8,838,46. 8,348,00;
$ 441752 $29156,82 $ 8,838,46.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Significant Accounting Policies
The Company

BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the “Compang’Pelaware corporation, is a biotechnology comyphat designs, optimizes, and
develops novel drugs that block key enzymes invbimecancer, cardiovascular diseases, autoimmugsasiés, and viral infections. The
Company integrates the necessary disciplines dddpyo crystallography, medicinal chemistry, and poaer modeling to effectively use
structure-based drug design to discover and destagl molecule pharmaceuticals. The Company hdspieuresearch projects in different
stages of development from early discovery to aaivPhase Il trial of the Company’s most advardred) candidate, Fodosine™. While the
prospects for a project may increase as the pragances to the next stage of development, agtroge be terminated at any stage of
development. Until the Company generates revermoes éither a research project or an approved ptothe Company’s ability to continue
research projects is dependent upon its abilitaige funds through the sale of equity securitrehimugh collaborative arrangements with
government agencies or third-party partners.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company generally considers cash equitaterbe all cash held in money market accounisvastments in debt instruments with
maturities of three months or less at the timeuwtpase in accordance with Statement of Finanaiab&nting Standards No. 9Statement ¢
Cash Flowg“Statement No. 95”).

Marketable Securitie:

The Company is required to classify securiig¢rading, available-for-sale, or held-to-majurithe appropriateness of each classification
is assessed at the time of purchase and at eagttingpdate. At December 31, 2006, the Company3#4d818,058 marketable securities of
which $15,276,235 is classified as available-fde-sad $26,541,823 is classified as held-to-matuBecurities available-fosale consisted
U.S. Agency securities carried at estimated fauwes The estimated fair value of these secunities based on independent quoted market
prices. At December 31, 2006, the amortized costotirities available-for-sale was $15,243,772 edlized gains and losses on securities
available-for-sale are recognized in other compmsive income. Securities held-to-maturity consigigoharily of U.S. Agency securities
carried at amortized cost. The estimated fair vafusecurities held-to-maturity at December 31,20@s $26,459,243 based on independent
guoted market prices. While this represents analizesl loss position, the loss does not represeotlzer-than-temporary impairment, as the
Company has the ability and intent to hold the g&ea until maturity, at which time the cost oktmvestments will be recovered. At
December 31, 20086, all of the non-current portioiharketable securities mature in 2008.

Included in held-to-maturity securities, i8l&. Treasury security in the amount of $132,000s Fecurity is held in escrow for the
payment of rent and performance of other obligatigpecified in the Company’s lease on the fadliteBirmingham, Alabama. The amount
deposited in escrow decreases $65,000 annuallyghout the term of the lease.

Receivables from Collaboratior

The Company records amounts due from parfoe@mounts related to up-front payments, eventats, and research and development
fees. These receivables are evaluated to deteifrang reserve or allowance should be establishedeh reporting date. To date, the
Company has not established a reserve and hasmey@ny default of amounts from partners.

Furniture and Equipment

Furniture and equipment are recorded at &rpreciation is computed using the straight-linehod with estimated useful lives of five
and seven years. Laboratory equipment, office egeiq, leased equipment, and software are deprdaatr a life of five years. Furniture
and fixtures are depreciated over a life of seveary. Leasehold improvements are amortized overabgmated useful lives or the remain
lease term, whichever is less. In accordance wate$ent of Financial Accounting Standards No. gounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Lon-Lived Asset§'Statement No. 144"), the Company periodicallyiesys its furniture and equipment for impairment whe
events or changes in circumstances indicate teatdtrying amount of such assets may not be reableerDetermination of recoverability is
based on an estimate of undiscounted future casls ftesulting from the use of the asset and itatexa disposition. In the event that such
cash flows are not expected to be sufficient tovec the carrying amount of the assets, the aasetaritten down to their estimated fair
values. Furniture and equipment to be disposedeofeported at the lower of carrying amount or failue less cost to sell.
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Patents and License

Patents and licenses are recorded at costrandized on a straight-line basis over their estéd useful lives or 20 years, whichever is
less. The Company periodically reviews its patanis licenses for impairment in accordance withestaint No. 144 to determine any
impairment that needs to be recognized. During efthe last three preceding years, the Compamnytifikd certain patents and licenses that
no longer met its strategic objectives, which waégtermined to be unrecoverable, and for which the@any had no alternative future uses.
Accordingly, the Company recorded impairment logsesuch patents and licenses totaling $14,29613B7, and $8,339 for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, resplgcfifeese impairment losses are included in geramrdladministrative expenses in the
statements of operations.

Accrued Expense

The Company records all expenses in the pénimgred. In addition to recording expenses fapines received, the Company estimates
the cost of services provided by third parties aterials purchased for which no invoices have lreeaived as of each balance sheet date.
Accrued expenses as of December 31, 2006, 2003@consisted primarily of development and chhicial expenses payable to contract
research organizations in connection with the Camijsaresearch and development programs.

Income Taxes

The liability method is used in accounting iflcome taxes in accordance with Statement of Eia&iccounting Standards No. 109,
Accounting for Income Taxi(“Statement No. 109”). Under this method, defeitadassets and liabilities are determined baseatifterences
between financial reporting and tax bases of assetdiabilities and are measured using the endatethtes and laws that will be in effect
when the differences are expected to reverse.

Comprehensive Income

Accumulated other comprehensive income is et of unrealized gains and losses on secudtiagable-for-sale and is disclosed as a
separate component of stockholders’ equity. The @2omw had $32,463 of unrealized gains on its seesitihat are included in accumulated
other comprehensive income at December 31, 2006.

Revenue Recognitio

The Company’s revenues have generally beetelinto license fees, event payments, researcldevelopment fees, and interest income.
Revenue is recognized in accordance with Staff Antag Bulletin No. 104Revenue RecognitidhSAB No. 104”) and Emerging Issues
Task Force Issue 00-2Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliveralfl&@TF Issue 00-21"). License fees, future evengrpants, and
research and development fees are recognized @sugwhen the earnings process is complete ar@aimpany has no further continuing
performance obligations, or the Company has coragldte performance obligations under the termbefigreement. Fees received under
licensing agreements that are related to futurtopaance are deferred and recognized over an estihpeeriod determined by management
based on the terms of the agreements and the pisdibensed. In the event a license agreement ioentaultiple deliverables, the Company
evaluates whether the deliverables are separatenabined units of accounting in accordance withFEIsue 00-21. Revisions to revenue or
profit estimates as a result of changes in thenedéid revenue period are recognized prospectively.

Future event payments are recognized as revgpon the achievement of specified events ifi{&)dvent is substantive in nature and the
achievement of the event was not reasonably assiitbee inception of the agreement and (2) the deesion-refundable and non-creditable.
Any event payments received prior to satisfyingstheriteria are recorded as deferred revenue.
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Significant direct costs incurred upon entgiiimto a licensing arrangement are deferred antgekato expense in proportion to the reve
recognized. Under the guidance of Emerging Issaas& Force Issue 99-1Bgporting Revenue Gross as a Principal Versus BlenaAgent
(“EITF Issue 99-19"), and Emerging Issues Task Edssue 01-14ncome Statement Characterization of Reimburseniteteived for “Out-
of-Pocket” ExpensefEITF Issue 01-14"), reimbursements received fioect out-of-pocket expenses related to researdidamelopment
costs are recorded as revenue in the income stateatber than as a reduction in expenses.

Royalty revenue is recognized based on estsnaitroyalties earned during the applicable peaiod adjusted for differences between the
estimated and actual royalties in the followingigerIf royalties can not be reasonably estimatedenue is recognized upon receipt of
royalty statements from the licensee. The Compasyntot received any royalties from the sale ohkesl pharmaceutical products.

Research and Development Expen:

In accordance with Statement of Financial Artimg Standards No. Accounting for Research and Development Coists Company
expenses research and development costs as inceeselarch and development expenses include, aotbagitems, personnel costs,
including salaries and benefits, manufacturingsadinical, regulatory, and toxicology servicesfpemed by contract research organizations
(“CRO’s"), materials and supplies, and overheadcaltions consisting of various administrative aadlities related costs. Most of the
Company’s manufacturing and clinical and preclingtadies are performed by third-party CRO’s. Cdstsstudies performed by CRO’s are
accrued by the Company over the service periodsfggin the contracts and estimates are adjusteelquired, based upon the Company’s
on-going review of the level of services actuakyfprmed.

Additionally, the Company has license agreamueiith third parties, such as Albert Einstein @g# of Medicine of Yeshiva University
(“AECOM") and Industrial Research, Ltd. (“IRL”") thaequire maintenance fees or fees related tocide agreements. These fees are
generally expensed as incurred unless they areddia revenues that have been deferred, in wisish the expenses are deferred and
recognized over the related revenue recognitioroger

Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2004, the Financial Accountingh8&ads Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Finan&iedounting Standards No. 123
(revised 2004)Share-Based PaymefiStatement No. 123R"), which revises Statemerfiafincial Accounting Standards No. 123,
Accounting for Sto-Based CompensatiqfiStatement No. 123"), supersedes Accounting Ppiesi Board Opinion No. 2%ccounting for
Stock Issued to Employe@APB No. 257), and amends Statement No. 95. Gdhethe approach in Statement No. 123R is sintitathe
approach described in Statement No. 123. Howevatei@ent No. 123R requires all share-based payne@etsployees, including grants of
stock options, to be recognized in the income state based on their fair values. Pro forma diselsallowed by Statement No. 123, is no
longer an alternative.

In March 2005, the Securities and Exchange B@sion (“SEC”) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin NtO7,Share-Based Paymenivhich
provided further clarification on the implementatiof Statement No. 123R. Statement No. 123R orlilginaquired adoption no later than
July 1, 2005. In April 2005, the SEC issued a redethat delayed the effective date for Statementl®8R until January 1, 2006.

Statement No. 123R permits companies to aitoptquirements using one of two methods, a “nediprospectivetransition method or
“modified retrospective” transition method. Both tmeds are similar, except that the modified reteasipe transition method permits entities
to restate, based on the amounts previously rezedninder Statement No. 123 for purposes of prodatisclosures, either (a) all prior
periods presented or (b) prior interim periodshaf year of adoption.

At December 31, 2006, the Company had twoksbased employee compensation plans, the StocktineePlan (“Plan”)which amende
and restated the Company’s 1991 Stock Option P#9( Plan”), and the Employee Stock Purchase PB8PP”). These stock-based
compensation plans are described in more detailibehd in Note 7. Prior to January 1, 2006, the gamy accounted for those plans under
the recognition and measurement provisions of ARB2% and other related Interpretations, as pezthltly Statement No. 123. No stock-
based compensation cost related to the Companyptogees was recognized in the Statements of Opasafor any period ending prior to
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January 1, 2006, as all options granted by the Gompad exercise prices equal to the market vdltleeaunderlying common stock on the
date of grant. For the year ended December 31,, 2008k-based compensation cost of $26,392 wagnéed by the Company for options
granted to non-employee consultants. For the yeded December 31, 2004, stock-based compensatiit$512,427 was recognized by
the Company for options granted to non-employeesuaibents and due to a modification of options @utding to outside Directors. Effective
January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair walcegnition provisions of Statement No. 123R, gdive modified prospective transition
method. Under that transition method, total compgas cost of $3,338,761 ($3,243,751 of expenseedlto the Plan and $95,010 of
expense related to the ESPP) was recognized d20idg and includes: (a) compensation cost for afesfvased payments granted prior to,
but not yet vested as of December 31, 2005, basd¢leogrant date fair value estimated in accordantethe original provisions of Statem
No. 123, and (b) compensation cost for all s-based payments granted subsequent to Januar@@,, l2dsed on the grant-date fair value
estimated in accordance with the provisions ofedt@nt No. 123R. In accordance with the modifiedpective transition method adopted,
results for prior periods have not been restatéd. following table illustrates the pro forma effect net loss and net loss per share had the
Company applied the fair value recognition provisiof Statement No. 123R for the years ended Deeei1h 2005 and 2004. For purposes
of the pro forma disclosure, the value of the amtivas estimated using a Black-Scholes optionmgrimiodel and amortized to expense over
the vesting periods of the options using a straliglet expense attribution method.

2005 2004

Net loss as reporte $(26,098,76) $(21,104,12)
Add stocl-based compensation expense for consultants incindegorted net los 26,39: 512,42
Deduct total stock-based compensation expensarfployees and consultants as determined under

Statement No. 12 (1,779,99) (2,260,55)
Pro forma net los $(27,852,36) $(22,852,24)
Amounts per common shal
Net loss per share, as repor $ (1.0) % (1.00)
Pro forma net loss per shs $ (1.0¢) $ (1.0¢)

As of December 31, 2006, there was approxin$®,386,233 of total unrecognized compensaticst oelated to non-vested employee
stock option awards granted under the Plan an&8RP. That cost is expected to be recognized lasvi&l$3,562,441 in 2007, $2,716,561
2008, $2,194,977 in 2009, and $912,254 in 2010.

Statement 123R also requires that the berfedits tax deductions in excess of recognized corsaton cost should be reported as a
financing cash flow rather than as an operating @asv. The Company has never recognized any benfeim such tax deductions, as the
Company has always maintained a loss position.

Net Loss Per Shar

The Company computes net loss per share oréacce with Statement of Financial Accounting 8sads No. 128arnings Per Share
Net loss per share is based upon the weighted gevenamber of common shares outstanding duringehiegh Diluted loss per share
equivalent to basic net loss per share for allqusripresented herein because common equivalemissinam unexercised stock options and
common shares expected to be issued under the @giaganployee stock purchase plan were anti-didutiv
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements infeomity with accounting principles generally acasgin the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiéetttae amounts reported in the financial statetieExamples include accrued clinical
and preclinical expenses. Actual results couldcediffom those estimates.

Note 2 — Furniture and Equipment

Furniture and equipment consisted of the faithg at December 31:
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Furniture and fixture
Office equipmen
Software

Laboratory equipmer
Leased equipmel
Leasehold improvemen
Constructiorin-progress

Less accumulated depreciation and amortize
Furniture and equipment, n

Note 3 — Concentration of Credit and Market Risk

2006 2005
$ 406,86 $ 339,63
685,20 589,70:
516,28: 485,55
4,802,48; 4,013,70:
62,71: 62,71:
4,731,40: 4,624,32.
309,00 —
11,513,94 10,115,63
(8,484,67)  (7,707,68)
$ 3,029.27.  $ 2,407,95.

The Company invests its excess cash pringijiall.S. marketable securities from a diversifpedtfolio of institutions with strong credit
ratings and in U.S. government and agency billsratds and, by policy, limits the amount of crediposure at any one institution. These
investments are generally not collateralized antureawithin less than three years. The Companynbasealized any losses from such
investments. At December 31, 2006, $2,445,758 maessted in the Merrill Lynch Premier Institutiorfaind, a money market mutual fund
that invests in near cash securities with weiglateztage maturities of less than 90 days. The Méxgmich Premier Institutional Fund is not

insured.

The Company’s raw materials, drug substaranes drug products are manufactured by a limitedgaf suppliers and some at a single
facility. If any of these suppliers were unablgtoduce these items, this could significantly intghe Company’s supply of drugs for further

preclinical testing and clinical trials.

Note 4 — Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses were comprised of the foligweit December 31:

Accrued clinical trials

Accrued professional fet

Stock purchase plan withholdin
Other

Accrued expense

Note 5 — Lease Obligations and Other Contingencies

The Company has the following lease obligatiahDecember 31, 2006:

2007
2008
2009
2010

Total minimum payment
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2006 2005

$1,155,84 $ 877,88
177,95: 256,05:
106,67( 81,46(
66,24+ 36,62
$1,506,71. $1,252,01

Operating

Leases
$ 549,75¢
565,25
538,35:
255,84
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Rent expense for operating leases was $5668560,322, and $583,969 in 2006, 2005, and 2@3pectively. The commitment for
operating leases is primarily related to buildiagdes in Birmingham, Alabama and Cary, North CaaolThe lease for the building in
Birmingham, Alabama expires in June 2010. Thisdeas amended effective December 1, 2005 for actieaiuin occupied space, currently
requires monthly rents of $37,963 in December 28@b escalates annually to a minimum of $41,48reth in the final year. The
Company has an option to renew the Birmingham, &iad lease for an additional five years at the otmmearket rate on the date of
termination and a one-time option to terminateléase on June 30, 2008, subject to a reasonabintgion fee. The lease for the building in
Cary, North Carolina expires in July 2009. Thisskeaas amended effective October 1, 2006 for arase in occupied space, requires
monthly rents of $4,500 beginning in October 2008 ascalates annually to a minimum of $4,774 pentmin the final year. The lease was
subsequently amended in February 2007 for an addit2,000 square feet requiring monthly rents891 beginning in March 2007 and
ending in February 2010. The Company has an opdicwice renew the Cary, North Carolina lease fomdditional three years at the current
market rate prior to lease termination.

On August 5, 2002, at the request of the cors@igon committee, the CompasyBoard of Directors approved a reduction in satdr5%
for Dr. Charles E. Bugg, Chairman and Chief Exemu®fficer and Dr. J. Claude Bennett, PresidentefdDperating Officer and Medical
Director, effective August 1, 2002. In the eventafy change of control of the Company, any cumegagialary reductions up to the date of
change of control would become due and payable nTdwethly amount of the reduction was $14,677 comthitOn December 8, 2003, the
Board of Directors approved the recommendatiomefdompensation committee to restore their salésidseir previous amounts effective
January 1, 2004, leaving the cumulative reductio$249,509 outstanding in the event of a changmittrol.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company has asedletter of credit of $1.8 million. This lett#rcredit was originally obtained for a
customs bond that was required in order to impentain compound into the country that was manufadtabroad. The Company does not
anticipate drawing any funds against this lettecreflit in the future, but it could remain in forfoe up to one year or until customs closes the
file on the particular receipt of goods for whitte tbond was required.

Note 6 — Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes differs frone timounts computed by applying the statutory fddecame tax rate to income before
income taxes. The sources and tax effects of fifereinces are as follows:

2006 2005 2004

Federal tax benefit at statutory rate on incomeneeihcome taxe $(15,266,24) $(9,134,56) $(7,386,44)
State tax benefit, net of federal income tax bei (1,931,361 (1,120,78) (917,879
Increase in valuation allowan 21,011,95 12,706,72 9,786,92!
Permanent items (federal effe 2,338,85 1,488,58: 882,83(
R&D credit (6,561,95) (4,237,25) (2,514,34)
Othernet 408,75: 297,29« 148,91(
Total tax expens $ — 3 —  $ —

The Company has not had taxable income siremporation and, therefore, has not paid any irctares. Significant components of the
Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities arkows:

2006 2005
Deferred tax asset
Net operating losse $66,146,99 $51,727,86
General business cred 23,098,88 16,536,93
Fixed asset 696,82: 594,43:
Accrued expense 252,32 168,38t

Reserve for doubtful accour — —
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2006 2005
Deferred revenu 113,40( 113,40(
Other — —
Total deferred tax asse 90,308,42 69,141,022
Total deferred tax liabilitie — —
Net deferred tax ass 90,308,42 69,141,022
Valuation allowanct (90,308,42)  (69,141,02)
Net deferred tax asse $ — $ —

Because the majority of the deferred tax assdate to net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwauttiat can only be realized if the Company
is profitable in future periods and because the @amy has never been profitable in the past, intettain whether the Company will realize
any tax benefit related to the NOL carryforwardscérdingly, the Company has provided a valuatibowadnce against the net deferred tax
assets due to uncertainties as to their ultimatkzegion. The valuation allowance will remain la¢ full amount of the deferred tax asset until
it is more likely than not that the related tax &&s will be realized.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had petating loss and research and development craditforwards of approximately
$171,096,000 and $23,099,000, respectively, whiglire at various dates from 2007 through 2025.

Use of the carryforward tax benefits will hébgect to a substantial annual limitation due ® ¢hange of ownership provisions of the Tax
Reform Act of 1986. The annual limitation is exmgtto result in the expiration of a portion of trearyforward tax benefits before utilizatic
The ownership change which occurred in 1996 has beesidered by the Company in its computationsuSdatement No. 109. Due to
recent stock issuances, it is possible that additittimitations could currently apply. The Compdras not performed a detailed analysis to
determine if an additional ownership change hasiwed under the tax code or to determine its impadts ability to use these net operating
loss and research credit carryforwards. Howevés,ribt anticipated that any such analysis woulkerematerial impact on the balance sheet
as a result of offsetting changes in the deferagdsaluation allowance.

Note 7 — Stockholders’ Equity

On December 14, 2005, the Company enteredaistock purchase agreement with Kleiner Perkingi€ld & Byers Holdings, LLC,
KPTV, LLC and TPG Biotechnology Partners, L.P. amoection with a registered direct offering of BB29 shares of its common stock at
an offering price of $13.46 per share. The comntookswas issued pursuant to prospectus supplerfitsvith the Securities and Exchar
Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2) of the SdéiesriAct of 1933, as amended (“the Securities Adti'lconnection with a shelf takedown
from the Company’s registration statement on Forf(833-111226), which was filed on December 1&38nd which became effective on
January 5, 2004, and the Company’s registraticers@nt on Form S-3 (333-128087), which was filedSeptember 2, 2005 and which
became effective on September 20, 2005. On Deceb@h&@005, the Company issued the total 2,228,838es of common stock to the
aforementioned investors and received total praceédpproximately $30 million (approximately $29@lion net of expenses).

On February 9, 2005, the Company enteredar®tacement Agency Agreement with Leerink Swannagn@any in connection with a
registered direct offering of 4,350,000 sharesoEommon stock at an offering price of $5.50 pers. The common stock was issued
pursuant to a prospectus supplement filed withSibeurities and Exchange Commission pursuant to 84€b)(2) of the Securities Act in
connection with a shelf takedown from the Compamggistration statement on Form S-3 (333-11122iey bn December 16, 2003 and
which became effective on January 5, 2004.

On February 17, 2005, the Company enteredsitatck purchase agreements with a number of itistital investors for an aggregate of
4,350,000 shares of common stock at a gross puwegitase of $5.50 per share or approximately $23|Bom (approximately $22.7 million
net of expenses). One of these agreements wa®Bualitbr Brothers Investments, L.P., Baker Brothevestments I, L.P., Baker Biotech Ft
I, L.P., Baker Biotech Fund IlI, L.P., Baker Biotdeand Il (Z), L.P., Baker Biotech Fund Ill, L.P.aBer Biotech Fund Il (2), L.P.,
Baker/Tisch Investments, L.P., and 14159, L.PtherBaker investors, for a total of 1,454,545 share
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On February 4, 2004, the Company enteredar®tacement Agency Agreement with Leerink Swannan@any in connection with a
registered direct offering of 3,571,667 shares€ommon stock at an offering price of $6.00 pere. The common stock was issued
pursuant to a prospectus supplement filed wittSibeurities and Exchange Commission pursuant to 84€b)(2) of the Securities Act in
connection with a shelf takedown from the Compamggistration statement on Form S-3 (333-11122iey bn December 16, 2003 and
which became effective on January 5, 2004.

On February 17, 2004, the Company enteredar8tock Purchase Agreement with Caduceus Primatstments Il, LP, Caduceus Private
Investments Il (QP), LP and UBS Juniper Crossowerdi-L.L.C. As part of this agreement, the Compam@anted these investors the right to
appoint a member to its board of directors effecte of the closing of the offering. On February2(®4, the Company completed a
$21.4 million registered direct offering of 3,57876shares of its common stock to a group of insbital investors.

In June 2002, the Board of Directors adoptstbakholder rights plan and, pursuant theretoieidgreferred stock purchase rights
(“Rights”) to the holders of the Company’s commawck. The Rights have certain anti-takeover effd€tsiggered, the Rights would cause
substantial dilution to a person or group of pessaho acquires more than 15% (19.9% for WilliamPR&atheringill, a Director who owned
approximately 9.58% at December 31, 2006, but ownerk than 15% at the time the Rights were putang) of the Company’s common
stock on terms not approved by the Board of Dinectdhe rights are not exercisable until the distion date, as defined in the Rights
Agreement by and between the Company and Ameritaak Sransfer & Trust Company, as Rights Agent. Rights will expire at the close
of business on June 24, 2012, unless that finatagn date is extended or unless the rights arkee redeemed or exchanged by the
Company.

Each Right entitles the registered holderuapase from the Company one one-thousandth cdire st Series B Junior Participating
Preferred Stock (“Series B”), par value $0.001g&re, at a purchase price of $26.00, subjectjtstdent. Shares of Series B purchasable
upon exercise of the Rights will not be redeemalBéeh share of Series B will be entitled to a dévid of 1,000 times the dividend declared
per share of common stock. In the event of liquaateach share of Series B will be entitled tagment of 1,000 times the payment made
per share of common stock. Each share of Seriedl Bave 1,000 votes, voting together with the coomnstock. Finally, in the event of any
merger, consolidation, or other transaction in Whshares of common stock are exchanged, each ahSegies B will be entitled to receive
1,000 times the amount received per share of constumk. Effective in December 2005, we increasedatithorized shares available under
these rights to 45,000 to match the authorized comshares of 45,000,000. In addition, our BoarBioéctors has the authority to issue u
4,955,000 shares of undesignated preferred statkoatetermine the rights, preferences, privilegyes restrictions of those shares without
further vote or action by our stockholders.

In November 1991, the Board of Directors addghe 1991 Stock Option Plan (1991 Plan”) for keyployees and consultants of the
Company and reserved 500,000 shares of common &todsuance. The 1991 Plan was approved by tdukisblders in December 1991. 1
original term for options granted under the 19%nRkas for ten years and included provisions fwasice of both incentive stock options
non-statutory options. The exercise price of thigoog granted under the 1991 Plan is not to betless the fair market value of common
stock on the grant date. Options granted undet98& Plan generally vest 25% after one year andtmhpthereafter on a pro rata basis over
the next three years until fully vested after fgaars and expire ten years after the grant dateo@pare generally granted to all full-time
employees. The vesting and exercise provisionptibs granted under the Plan are subject to aatila in the event of certain stockholder-
approved transactions, or upon the occurrenceGifamge in Control as defined by the Plan.

The 1991 Plan was amended and restated in&ight993 to effect the following changes: (i) diwithe 1991 Plan into two separate
incentive programs: the Discretionary Option Gfaridgram and the Automatic Option Grant Program dfdside Directors), (ii) increase the
number of shares of the Company’s common stockableifor issuance by 500,000 shares andgipand the level of benefits available.
Board amended the 1991 Plan in December 1993 tedre the number of shares issuable by 500,008sshad subsequently amended and
restated the 1991 Plan in its entirety in Febrd®94. In March 1995, the Board authorized anot@@,@0 shares for issuance under the
1991 Plan. The 1991 Plan was subsequently amemdegestated in March 1997, which increased the murabshares issuable by 1,000,000
shares. The 1991 Plan (as so amended and restaed)irther amended in March 1999 to increasehheesreserve by 400,000 shares. The
Board amended and restated the 1991 Plan in its
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entirety in March 2000, increasing the reservedeshhy 1,200,000 and extending the term of the F98d for ten years from the date of the
amendment. This restatement was approved by the@uyts stockholders in May 2000. The 1991 Plan araended in March 2004 to
increase the number of shares reserved for issuant®00,000 and to amend the automatic optiontgnabgram related to initial grants,
vesting, and option terms. The automatic optiomgpaogram grants options to purchase 10,000 shanmsw non-employee Board members,
prorated from their initial appointment to the n@xinual Meeting, and an additional 10,000 sharesialty over such period of continued
service (all of which vest one-twelfth per monthjrectors receiving options under the automatiéarpgrant program will have the full term
of the original option to exercise all options wskat the time of their cessation from servicesEmendment was approved by the
Company’s stockholders in May 2004.

Most recently, the 1991 Plan was amended estdted by the Company’s Stock Incentive Plan (fBJavhich increased the number of
shares reserved for issuance by 1,500,000 shanesased the amounts of the initial automatic opgi@ants to non-employee Board members
from 10,000 shares to 20,000 shares; increaseahtioeints of the annual automatic option grants teemployee Board members from
10,000 shares to 15,000 shares; and allow the Qoyrtpamake discretionary stock issuances. The Wemsubsequently approved by the
Company’s stockholders in May 2006.

For option awards granted under the Plan du2006, 2005, and 2004, the fair value of the awaasd estimated on the date of grant using
a Black-Scholes option pricing model and the assiomg noted in the table below. The weighted aveig@ant date fair value of the options
granted under the Plan during 2006, 2005, and 2234$8.64, $3.48, and $6.83, respectively. Thevidire expense of options granted is
amortized to expense over the vesting periodsebtitions using a straight-line expense attributimthod.

Weighted Average Assumptions for Options Granted

2006 2005 2004
Expected Life 5.¢ 5.C 5.0

Expected Volatility 82.6% 96.6% 103.1%
Expected Dividend Yiel 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%
Risk-Free Interest Ral 5.C% 3.9% 4.0%

The following explanations describe the asdionp used by the Company to value the optionstgdaduring 2006. The expected life is
based on the average of the assumption that aftauting options will be exercised at full vestargl the assumption that all outstanding
options will be exercised at the midpoint of théuasion date and the full contractual term. Theemtpd volatility represents an average ol
implied volatility on the Compang’publicly traded options, the volatility over thmst recent period corresponding with the expelifiedanc
the Company’s long-term reversion volatility. Them@pany has assumed no expected dividend yieldyaedds have never been paid to
stock or option holders and will not be for thedfageable future. The weighted average risk-fregdnt rate is the implied yield currently
available on zero-coupon government issues witth@aming term equal to the expected term.

Related stock option activity under the Pkas follows:

Weighted

Options Options Average
Available Outstanding Exercise Price
Balance December 31, 20 500,81¢ 2,917,93. $ 7.2€
Options plan amende 1,000,00! — —
Options grante: (499,19) 499,19° 8.7¢
Options exercise — (283,63t 3.81
Options cancele 34,14¢ (34,149 4.1C
Balance December 31, 20 1,035,77. 3,099,34. 7.8¢
Options grante: (653,80 653,80: 4.6€
Options exercise — (450,71 5.5C
Options cancele 61,077 (61,077 5.9¢
Balance December 31, 20 443,04 3,241,35: 7.6C
Options plan amende 1,500,00! — —
Options grante: (1,222,159 1,222,15 12.3¢
Options exercise — (411,076 6.82
Options cancele 99,86 (99,867) 15.91
Balance December 31, 20 820,75¢ 3,952,56! 8.94
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The total intrinsic value of options exercisedier the Plan during 2006 was $4,697,366. Thigit value represents the total proceeds
(fair market value at the date of exercise, lessetkercise price, times the number of options ésedd received by all individuals who
exercised options during the period.

The following table summarizes, at December2BD6, by price range: (1) for options outstandinder the Plan, the number of options
outstanding, their weighted average remainingdifd their weighted average exercise price; anéb()ptions exercisable under the Plan,
number of options exercisable and their weighteztaye exercise price:

Qutstanding Exercisable

Range Number Life Price Number Price
$0to 3 466,95: 6.C $ 1.1t 449,62! $ 1.1¢
3to6 707,14( 7.€ 4.1¢ 408,93( 4.0t
6to9 1,143,94 4.9 7.7¢ 949,09 7.71
9to 12 226,95: 9.€ 10.9( 9,95: 9.8¢
12 to 15 1,170,96! 8.C 12.8¢ 259,47¢ 13.5¢
15to0 18 6,667 9.1 15.92 4,167 15.4¢
18 to 21 6,20( 9.2 19.3¢ — —
21to 24 204,12( 2.9 22.8¢ 204,12( 22.8¢
24 to 27 13,62( 3.3 25.7¢ 13,62( 25.7¢
27 to 30 6,00( 34 29.2¢ 6,00( 29.2¢
$0 to 30 3,952,56! 6.€ 8.9¢ 2,304,98! 7.9¢€

The weighted average remaining contractualdifoptions exercisable under the Plan at Dece®be2006 is 4.9 years. There were
2,199,129 and 2,220,583 options exercisable atideee31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The weightatage exercise price for options
exercisable was $8.81 and $8.94 at December 35, 20f) 2004, respectively.

The aggregate intrinsic value of options autding under the Plan at December 31, 2006 is $I4/36. The aggregate intrinsic value of
options currently exercisable under the Plan aebeser 31, 2006 is $11,417,547. The aggregate sntriralue represents the value (the
period’s closing market price, less the exercisesptimes the number of in-the-money options) thatild have been received by all option
holders under the Plan had they exercised theiomgpht the end of the period.

The following table summarizes, at December2®D6 the number of non-vested options under e &nd their weighted average grant
date fair value:

Weighted

Average Grant

Number Date Fair Value
Balance December 31, 20 1,042,18 $3.82
Options grante: 1,222,15. 8.64
Options cancele (2,526 8.5¢
Options veste: (614,229 4.0¢
Balance December 31, 20 1,647,58! 7.31

The total fair value of the options vestedemithe Plan during 2006 was $2,473,986.

As of December 31, 2006, the number of opti@sed and expected to vest under the Plan i8$70. The weighted average exercise
price of these options is $8.94 and their weiglatestage remaining contractual life is 6.5 years.

59




Table of Contents

Note 8 — Employee Benefit Plans

In January 1991, the Company adopted an eraplogtirement plan (“401(k) Plan”) under Sectiod %) of the Internal Revenue Code
covering all employees. Employee contributions fb@ynade to the 401(k) Plan up to limits establidhethe Internal Revenue Service.
Company matching contributions may be made at ig@retion of the Board of Directors. The Companydmenatching contributions of
$252,735, $205,524, and $171,601 in 2006, 20022804, respectively.

In May 1995, the stockholders approved theEE8ffective February 1995. In May 2002, the stoddtéis approved an amendment to the
ESPP to reserve an additional 200,000 shares anthale the January 2005 termination date. The Gomas reserved a total of 400,000
shares of common stock under the ESPP, of whidil8%hares remain available for purchase at Dece®ih006. Eligible employees may
authorize up to 15% of their salary to purchaseroomstock at the lower of 85% of the beginning 8¥63of the ending price during the six-
month purchase intervals. No more than 3,000 shmaagsbe purchased by any one employee at thmeith purchase dates and no empilc
may purchase stock having a fair market valueeatdmmencement date of $25,000 or more in any aleadar year.

There were 25,988, 25,700, and 31,695 shdiresnamon stock purchased under the ESPP in 20@&, 20d 2004, respectively, at a
weighted average price per share of $7.36, $5ri6$8.82, respectively. Expense of $95,010 relateéde ESPP was recognized during 2!
while expense of $73,381 and $60,759 related t&®ieP would have been recognized during 2005 a4, 28spectively, had the Company
not followed the guidance of APB No. 25. For alfipds, expense was determined using a Black-Scloptésn pricing model. The weighted
average grant date fair values of options grantettuthe ESPP during 2006, 2005, and 2004 wer& $82555, and $2.37, respectively.

Note 9 — Collaborative and Other Research and Devagyment Contracts

Green Cross Corporation (“Green Cross'ln June 2006, the Company entered into an agreemigtnGreen Cross to develop and
commercialize peramivir in Korea. Under the terrhthe agreement, Green Cross will be responsiblalfalevelopment, regulatory, and
commercialization costs in Korea. The Company restba one-time license fee and may also receiveddvent payments as well as
royalties on product sales of peramivir. In additithe Company will share in any profits resultfr@m the sale of peramivir to the Korean
government for stockpiling purposes. Furthermonee@ Cross will pay the Company a premium overats to supply peramivir for
development and any future marketing of peramixadpcts in Korea.

Mundipharma International Holdings Limited (“Mundiprma”). In February 2006, the Company entered into an skedroyalty
bearing right and license agreement with Mundiplzafon the development and commercialization of@oenpany’s lead PNP inhibitor,
Fodosine™, for use in oncology. Under the termthefagreement, Mundipharma obtained rights to Fod®?$ in markets across Europe,
Asia, and Australasia in exchange for a $10 millipafront payment. Mundipharma will share 50% & ttocumented out of pocket
development costs incurred by the Company in résifeébe current and planned trials as of the éffeadate of the agreement provided that
Mundipharma’s maximum contribution to these trighgll be $10 million. In addition, Mundipharma wéibnduct additional clinical trials at
their own cost up to a maximum of $15 million. Tleense provides for future event payments for ehig specified development,
regulatory and commercial events (including cersziles level amounts following a product’s laurfch)certain indications. In addition, the
Company will receive royalties based on a percentdget product sales, which varies depending wglten certain indications receive NI
approval in a major market country and can vargduyntry depending on the patent coverage or sélgsreric compounds in a particular
country. Generally, all payments under the agre¢mennonrefundable and non-creditable, but theysabject to audit. The Company
licensed Fodosine™ and other PNP inhibitors fronC&E and IRL and will owe sublicense payments ta¢hehird parties on the upfront
payment, future event payments, and royalties vedddy the Company from Mundipharma.

For five years, Mundipharma will have a riglifirst negotiation on existing backup PNP inhiog the Company develops through Phase
[Ib in oncology, but any new PNP inhibitors will bgempt from this agreement and the Company wilimeall rights to such compounds.
The Company retained the rights to Fodosine™ irLtl® and Mundipharma is obligated by the termthefagreement to use commercially
reasonable efforts to develop the licensed prouttie territory specified by the agreement. Theeament will continue for the commercial
life of the licensed products, but may be termiddig either party following an uncured materialdwe by the other party or in the event
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the pre-existing third party license with AECOM dRL expires. It may be terminated by Mundipharrpam 60 days written notice without
cause or under certain other conditions as spddifithe agreement and all rights, data, matentsjucts and other information would be
transferred back to the Company at no cost. Iretleat the Company terminates the agreement forrialadefault or insolvency, the
Company could have to pay Mundipharma 50% of ttetscof any independent data owned by Mundipharnae@oerdance with the terms of
the agreement.

In accordance with SAB No. 104 and EITF 1s80€21, the Company deferred the $10 million up-fimeyment that was received from
Mundipharma in February 2006. This deferred revdragan to be amortized to revenue February 2006vdheind in October 2017, which
the date of expiration for the last-to-expire pamsvered by the agreement. In accordance with E$§&e 99-19 and EITF Issue 01-14, the
costs reimbursed by Mundipharma for the current@adned trials of Fodosine™ are recorded as rexvaren the expense is incurred up to
the $10 million limit stipulated in the agreement.

Rocheln November 2005, the Company entered into an ekauicense with Roche for the development androengsialization of the
Company'’s second generation PNP inhibitor, BCX-4208the prevention of acute rejection in transpddéion and for the treatment of
autoimmune diseases. Under the terms of the agregeReche obtained worldwide rights to BCX-420&kthange for a $25 million ufpent
payment and a $5 million payment as reimbursernard fimited supply of material during the first 8®nths of the collaboration. Accordi
to the terms of the license, there could also b&réuevent payments for achieving specified devekat, regulatory and commercial
milestones (including sales level milestones foltayva product’s launch) for certain indicationsalfdition, the Company will receive
royalties based on a percentage of net product,satdch varies depending upon when certain ingtinatreceive NDA approval in a major
market country and can vary by country dependintherpatent coverage or sales of generic compouaralgarticular country. The Compa
licensed this compound and other PNP inhibitorsf@ECOM and IRL and will owe sublicense paymentthiese third parties on the upfr
payment, future event payments, and royalties vedeby the Company for the sublicense of thesditds.

Roche will have a right of first negotiatiamder certain conditions, on existing backup PNfhitors the Company develops through
Phase llb in transplant rejection and autoimmuseaties, but any new PNP inhibitors will be exemgehfthis agreement and the Company
will retain all rights to such compounds. The Compeetains the right to co-promote BG»08 in the U.S. for several indications. Roche
certain obligations under the terms of the agreentense commercially reasonable efforts to deveatagnufacture and commercialize the
licensed product. The agreement may be terminatesitiher party following an uncured material breagtthe other party or may be either
fully or partially terminated by Roche without causnder certain conditions and all rights, dataenms, products and other information
would be transferred to the Company at no cost.

At December 31, 2005, the Company recordegtaivable of $30 million due from Roche for the $2flion up-front payment and the
$5 million payment as reimbursement for supply.Sehamounts were received from Roche in January.20@&cordance with SAB No. 104
and EITF Issue 00-21, the Company also recordegfef revenue of $30 million related to the Rootiéaboration at December 31, 2005.
This deferred revenue began to be amortized tantevan October 2006, when the IND was transferoelddche, and will end in August 20
which is the date of expiration for the last-to-egpatent covered by the agreement.

In June 2006, the Company further agreed tfope specific research and clinical activitiestlehalf of Roche aside from the license
agreement described above. Based on EITF Issu&8 @8d 01-14, the Company has recorded revenud¢isoeimbursements received and
expected to be received from Roche related to itleetdout-of-pocket expenses incurred for thesearsh and clinical activities.

Albert Einstein College of Medicine of Yeshiva @nsity and Industrial Research, Ltth. June 2000, the Company licensed a series of
potent inhibitors of PNP from AECOM and IRL. Thadedrug candidates from this collaboration are Bodd™ and BCX-4208. The
Company has obtained worldwide exclusive rightdaeelop and ultimately distribute these, or anyentlrug candidates that might arise
from research on these inhibitors. The Companyalgased to pay certain milestone payments for fullerelopment of these inhibitors,
certain royalties on sales of any resulting progactl to share in future payments received frorerathird-party partners, if any. In addition,
the Company agreed to pay an annual license feésthan-refundable, but is creditable againstaatoyalties and other payments due to
AECOM and IRL. This agreement may be terminatethieyCompany at any time by giving 60 days advamtie® or in the event of material
uncured breach by AECOM and IRL.
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Upon completion of the collaborations with Miiggharma for BCX-1777 and Roche for BCX-4208, ttmpany was obligated to pay
AECOMI/IRL approximately $8.4 million. These paymemiere capitalized as a deferred expense and evdhtortized into expense in
proportion to the revenue recognized from the rethpe agreements.

The University of Alabama at Birmingham (“UABThe Company currently has agreements with UABrifluenza neuraminidase and
complement inhibitors. Under the terms of theseagrents, UAB performed specific research for then@my in return for research
payments and license fees. UAB has granted the @oyngertain rights to any discoveries in thesesaresulting from research developed by
UAB or jointly developed with the Company. The Canp has agreed to pay royalties on sales of amjtireg product and to share in future
payments received from other third-party partn€he Company has completed the research under tligedgfeements. These two
agreements have initial 25-year terms, are autaalitirenewable for five-year terms throughoutlifeeof the last patent and are terminable
by the Company upon three months notice and by UAdBer certain circumstances. There is currentlgetivity between the Company and
UAB on these agreements, but when the Companydésethis technology, such as in the case of then8bi and Green Cross agreement:
commercialize products related to these prograresyill owe sublicense fees or royalties on amowgseceive.

Emory University (“Emory”).In June 2000, the Company licensed intellectugb@rty from Emory related to the hepatitis C polyaser
target associated with hepatitis C viral infectiddader the original terms of the agreement, tiseaech investigators from Emory provided
the Company with materials and technical insigtd the target. The Company has agreed to pay Emgafties on sales of any resulting
product and to share in future payments receivam fother third party partners, if any. The Compeay terminate this agreement at any t
by giving 90 days advance notice.

3-Dimensional Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (“3DP"n December 2003, the Company transferred to 30¥haly owned subsidiary of
Johnson & Johnson, certain rights related to comete system inhibitors discovered during the Comgfsaeollaborative research agreement
with 3DP, which was terminated by the Company otofer 18, 2003. BioCryst received an initial payirfeom 3DP, and will receive
royalties on any future sales of complement inbiisitovered under the assignment.

Novartis Corporation (“Novartis”).The Company granted Novartis, formerly Ciba-Geigyforation, an option in 1990 to acquire
exclusive licenses to a class of inhibitors aridiogn research performed by the Company by Febri@®1. The option was exercised and a
$500,000 fee was paid to the Company in 1993. Kiles payments are due upon approval of a new drplication. The Company will also
receive royalties based upon a percentage of eabasy resultant products. Up to $300,000 of thttainfee received is refundable if sales of
any resultant products are below specified levetstaas been recorded as deferred revenue. Thisragr has been inactive for several
years.

Note 10 — Subsequent Events

In January 2007, the Company announced thhaiditboeen awarded a four-year contract from the Department of Health and Human
Services (“HHS") to develop its influenza neurardase inhibitor, peramivir, for the treatment ofssaeal and life-threatening influenza,
including avian flu. The contract commits $102.6liom to support the full development of both intemous and intramuscular formulations
of peramivir. In addition, the contract also furids validation of U.S. based manufacturing faeiiti

The contract with HHS is defined as a costixed-fee contract. That is, the Company is &adtito receive reimbursement for all costs
incurred in accordance with the contract provisithreg are related to the development of peramius p fixed fee, or profit. The contract is
effective January 3, 2007. As of December 31, 2@ Company had incurred approximately $2.3 nmllid pre-contract costs directly
related to the Phase 2 trials for both the intrawsrand intramuscular peramivir products. Thesesasre incurred in anticipation of a
contract award from HHS and were required to meetelivery schedule of the proposed contractctmalance with the provisions of
Federal Acquisition Regulation 31.205-32, the cestse included in the Company’s request for propasd are eligible for reimbursement
from HHS. The $2.3 million of costs incurred priorthe contract award date were deferred and ahedad in other current assets on the
Company’s balance sheet at December 31, 2006¢lfir#t quarter of 2007, the $2.3 million in cogtdl be billed and expensed.
Concurrently, revenue will be recognized for thessts plus the applicable fixed fee.
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In March 2007, the Company entered into atuskee license agreement with Shionogi & Co., l{t&hionogi”) to develop and
commercialize the Company’s lead influenza neuraase inhibitor, peramivir, in Japan for the treatrnof seasonal and potentially life-
threatening human influenza. Under the terms oftireement, Shionogi obtained rights to injecténmulations of peramivir in Japan in
exchange for a $14 million up-front payment. Thefise provides for future event payments for aahiespecified development, regulatory
and commercial events (including certain salesllar®unts following a product’s launch) for certa&idications. In addition, the Company
will receive royalties based on a percentage opnaduct sales. Generally, all payments under ¢inleeanent are nonrefundable and non-
creditable, but they are subject to audit. The Camypdeveloped peramivir under a license from UAB waill owe sublicense payments to
them on the upfront payment and any future eveptneats and/or royalties received by the Companm f&hionogi. The Company retains
rights to commercialize peramivir in North Ameriéarope, and other countries outside of Korea apad.

Note 11 — Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statenfdfinancial Accounting Standards No. 1Fajr Value Measuremen{sStatement
No. 157"). The standard provides enhanced guidance foigusiir value to measure assets and liabilitiesaiso responds to investors’
requests for expanded information about the extemhich companies measure assets and liabilititsravalue, the information used to
measure fair value, and the effect of fair valuasmeements on earnings. While the standard appliesever other standards require (or
permit) assets or liabilities to be measured atvalue, it does not expand the use of fair vatuany new circumstances. Statement No. 157 is
effective for financial statements issued for flsears beginning after November 15, 2007, andimt@eriods within those fiscal years.
Management of the Company is evaluating the imp#ttis standard, but does not anticipate thatllithave a significant impact on its
financial statements.

In July 2006, the FASB issued Financial AcdmmStandards Board Interpretation No. ABcounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,
an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, Actingrior Income Taxe§FIN No. 48”). This interpretation creates a simghodel to
address uncertainty in tax positions. FIN 48 clesithe accounting for income taxes by prescriltigminimum recognition threshold a tax
position is required to meet before being recoghinethe financial statements. The interpretatiso @rovides guidance on derecognition,
measurement, classification, interest and penalimsounting in interim periods, disclosure, arahsition. FIN 48 is effective for years
beginning after December 15, 2006. ManagementeoCiimpany is evaluating the impact of this proneament, but does not anticipate that
it will have a significant impact on its financistatements.

Note 12 — Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited) (In thousands, except per share)

First Second Third Fourth

2006 Quarters

Revenue: $ 771 $ 1,55¢ $ 1,79( $ 2,092

Net loss (7,882 (20,087 (15,607 (20,050

Net loss per shai (.27) (.39 (.53 (-39
2005 Quarters

Revenue: $ 4 $ 58 $ 32 $ 21

Net loss (5,645 (5,64¢) (7,645 (7,167)

Net loss per shai (.29) (.22 (.29 (.27)

Net loss and net loss per share each year may ftifi@ the total of the individual quarters duedanding.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sbhé&ioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. as of Decen3tie2006 and 2005, and the related
statements of operations, stockholders’ equitycash flows for each of the three years in the peginded December 31, 2006. These
financial statements are the responsibility of@mmpany’s management. Our responsibility is to egpian opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance withsthadards of the Public Company Accounting Ovétdgpard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform an &uadibtain reasonable assurance about whetheindugcfal statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on flasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statements reddrto above present fairly, in all material respethe financial position of BioCryst
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. at December 31, 2006 and, 20@bthe results of its operations and its cashidlfor each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity Wwit8. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial staets, in 2006, the Company changed its methodarfuatting for stock-based compensation
upon adoption of Statement of Financial Accounttgndards No. 123 (revised 2008hare-Based Payment

We also have audited, in accordance with téiedards of the Public Company Accounting Oversigdrd (United States), the
effectiveness of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inmtsiinal control over financial reporting as of Dexter 31, 2006, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framédwssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organinatiaf the Treadway Commission
and our report dated March 12, 2007 expressed qualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Birmingham, Alabama
March 12, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessmentgattin the accompanying Management’'s Report omratéControl Over Financial
Reporting, that BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. naimed effective internal control over financiapogting as of December 31, 2006, base
criteria established in Internal Control-Integrafedmework issued by the Committee of Sponsorirgp@irzations of the Treadway
Commission (“the COSO criteria”). BioCryst Pharmatbeals, Inc.5 management is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control ove
financial reporting and for its assessment of fifilecéiveness of internal control over financial oefing. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on management’s assessment and an opinitimreceffectiveness of the company’s internal adrdver financial reporting based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withsthedards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdigltard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing ahgaéug the design and operating effectivenessitefrnal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary airthenstances. We believe that our audit providesagonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financiapogting is a process designed to provide reasoradsierance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttiegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over fircgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainky reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and @jde reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companygseds that could have a material effect on then@izé statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, interoahtrol over financial reporting may not preventdetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periagssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeqaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’'s assessment tiwrigst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. maintained effeciiternal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in atenial respects, based on the COSO criteria. Adsour opinion, BioCryst Pharmaceuticals,
Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effegiinternal control over financial reporting as afd@mber 31, 2006, based on the COSO
criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with téwedards of the Public Company Accounting Oversigdrd (United States), the 2006
financial statements of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, &nd our report dated March 12, 2007 expressethqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP
Birmingham, Alabama
March 12, 2007
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS
ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain a set of disclosure controls amt@dures that are designed to ensure that infmeglating to BioCryst Pharmaceuticals,
Inc. required to be disclosed in our periodic fisnunder the Securities Exchange Act is recordedgssed, summarized and reported in a
timely manner under the Securities Exchange Adi9&4. We carried out an evaluation, under the stigien and with the participation of
management, including our Chief Executive Officed £hief Financial Officer, of the effectivenessiod design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures. Based uporettadiiation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chitefancial Officer concluded that, as of
December 31, 2006, our disclosure controls andgohaies are effective to ensure that informatiomired to be disclosed by BioCryst in the
reports filed or submitted by it under the Secesittxchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recordedegsed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the rules &mans of the Securities and Exchange Commissiothiiaciude controls and procedures
designed to ensure that information required tdibelosed by BioCryst in such reports is accumdlated communicated to our managem
including the Chairman and Chief Executive Offiaad Chief Financial Officer of BioCryst, as appiiepe to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Ithe {Company”) is responsible for establishing amaintaining adequate internal control
over financial reporting and for the assessmetii@kffectiveness of internal control over finahogporting. As defined by the Securities ¢
Exchange Commission, internal control over finaha@orting is a process designed by, or undestipervision of our principal executive
and principal financial officers and effected by &oard of Directors, management and other perdptmprovide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reportingdithe preparation of the consolidated financiaiesteents in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

Our internal control over financial reportiisgsupported by written policies and procedures (thapertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fagRect our transactions and dispositions of ouetss42) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to perepagation of the consolidated financial statemenécordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and exipers$ of BioCryst are being made only in accor@awith authorizations of our
management and directors; and (3) provide reaserasiurance regarding prevention or timely detecffainauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of our assets that could have a mateffiact on the consolidated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intercahtrol over financial reporting may not preventdetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periagssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeqaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In connection with the preparation of our aarfinancial statements, management has under@keissessment of the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2006, based on criteria establishedt@rrial Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (the COSO Frameworlgndfjement’'s assessment
included an evaluation of the design of our inteowatrol over financial reporting and testing bétoperational effectiveness of those
controls.

Based on this assessment, management hasided¢hat as of December 31, 2006, our internatrcbover financial reporting was
effective to provide reasonable assurance regattmgeliability of financial reporting and the peration of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accegtedunting
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principles.

Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registgrabllic accounting firm that audited our financit@tements included in this report, have
issued an attestation report on managemergsessment of internal control over financiabripg, a copy of which appears on page 65 of
annual report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There have been no changes in our interndtaaswver financial reporting that occurred durihg quarter ended December 31, 2006 that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likelynaterially affect, BioCryst's internal controler financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None

PART 1lI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RE GISTRANT

The directors and executive officers of Bio§trgre as follows:

Name Age Position(s) with the Company

Jon P. Stonehou: 46  Chief Executive Officer and Directt

J. Claude Bennett, M.L 73  President, Chief Operating Officer, and Direc

W. James Alexander 57 Senior Vice President, Clinical and Regulatory @giens and Chief
Medical Officer

Michael A. Darwin 45 Chief Financial Officer, Secretary, and Treas!

Jonathan M. P. Nuge 39 Vice President, Corporate Communicatit

Randall B. Rigg: 40 Senior Vice President, Business Developn

Charles E. Bugg, Ph.I 65 Chairman and Directc

Stephen R. Biggar, M.D., Ph.D. ( 36 Director

William W. Featheringill (1! 64 Director

Carl L. Gordon, CFA, Ph.D. (. 42  Director

John L. Higgins (2 37 Director

Zola P. Horovitz, Ph.C 72  Director

Beth C. Seidenberg, M.D. ( 49 Director

Joseph H. Sherrill, Jr. (. 66 Director

William M. Spencer, Il 86 Director

Randolph C. Steer, M.D., Ph.D. ( 57 Director

(1) Member of the Compensation Committ* Compensation Committ”).
(2) Member of the Audit Committe¢ Audit Committe).

Jon P. Stonehougeined BioCryst in January 2007 as Chief Execu@fficer and he was also appointed to the Boaramudry 2007.
Prior to joining the Company, he served as Senioe WPresident of Corporate Development for MerckaldGince July 2002. His
responsibilities included corporate mergers & asifjons, global licensing and business developrmarporate strategy and alliance
management. In March of 2002, Mr. Stonehouse wpsiafed Vice President of Global Licensing and Bass Development and Integration
where he was responsible for the
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worldwide licensing and business development a@iifor the Ethical Pharmaceutical Division of MleiKGaA. Mr. Stonehouse joined
EMD Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the US Ethical Pharmésitin for Merck KGaA) in December 1999 as Vicedent, Licensing and Business
Development —Strategy & Integration and IT. Prior to joining M&KGaA, he held a variety of roles at Astra MeAtfaZeneca including
Customer Unit Director, Director, Marketing & Sales|T, National Sales Manager, National Sales Doee— Managed Healthcare, and
Product Director — Omeprazole (the world’s mostelydorescribed prescription drug-at that time). Bitonehouse started his career in the
pharmaceutical industry as a Sales Representitatgnal Sales Trainer and District Sales ManageMerck & Co., Inc. Mr. Stonehouse
earned his BS in Microbiology at the UniversityMinnesota.

J. Claude Bennett, M.vas named President and Chief Operating OfficE&dénember 1996 and elected a Director in January.199
Dr. Bennett also served as the Medical Directomf@001 to 2006. Prior to joining us, Dr. Bennetswaesident of The University of
Alabama at Birmingham (“UAB”) from October 1993 D@cember 1996 and Professor and Chairman of tharieent of Medicine of UAB
from January 1982 to October 1993. Dr. Bennetteston our Scientific Advisory Board from 1989-96 4 a former co-editor of theecil
Textbook of Medicinand former President of the Association of AmeriP&ysicians. He is a past chair of the Scientifitvisory Committee
of the Massachusetts General Hospital, a ptstber of the Scientific Advisory Board of ZycogeéhC, and continues to hold the positior
Distinguished University Professor Emeritus at UARjosition he has held since January 1997.

W. James Alexander, M.D., M.Pjbined BioCryst in June 2006 as Senior Vice Pratid€linical and Regulatory Operations and Chief
Medical Officer. Prior to joining the Company, Btlexander was Senior Vice President, Product Dgraknt at POZEN from
November 2003 to June 2006. Dr. Alexander was QWalical Officer of Inveresk Research Group frony 2003 to October 2003. Fro
1998 to 2003, Dr. Alexander was Chief Medical/Raguly Officer at PharmaResearch Corporation, witihal responsibilities for medical
and regulatory operations and he also served asders from 1998-1999, Chief Executive Officer frd®99-2000 and was Chairman of the
Board of PharmaReseach Corporation from 2000 t8 2Bm 1996 to 1998, he served as Vice PresidehDérector, Worldwide Product
Safety and Pharmacovigilance at GlaxoWellcome, Drc Alexander received a B.S. from Mississippit&tdniversity, his M.D. from the
University of Mississippi and his M.P.H. from thexidersity of Alabama at Birmingham. He is boardtifed in internal medicine and
infectious diseases.

Michael A. Darwinjoined BioCryst in June 2000 as Controller. EffeetNovember 1, 2002, Mr. Darwin was appointed CRiafncial
Officer, Secretary and Treasurer. Prior to joinBigCryst, from June 1990 to June 2000, Mr. Darwaswhief Financial Officer of a
privately held company in the food services indudtte began his career at Ernst & Young and spenyesirs in public accounting practice.

Jonathan M. P. Nugefined BioCryst in May 2005 as Vice President, @ogte Communications. Mr. Nugent served as Seniceg V
President at Burns McClellan, Inc., Investor Reladi Division, since April 1999, except for a perfooin August 2003 to December 2003
when he served as Director of Investor Relationg&f@tech Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and from Januady 20 March 2004 when he was
performing volunteer services. He also served aoiiet Supervisor from April 1996 to April 1999, Ammt Manager from April 1994 to
April 1996, and Senior Account Executive from A893 to April 1994 at Burns McClellan.

Randall B. Rigggoined BioCryst in February 2005 as Vice PresidBassiness Development and was promoted to Sena® Riesident,
Business Development effective January 2006. MygRserved as Vice President, Business DevelopatdimansMolecular, Inc. an
emerging oncology company from September 2004 bougey 2005. Before joining TransMolecular, he seras a Corporate Licensing and
Business Development consultant for TRUBION Phaemnéicals, Inc. from March 2004 to August 2004. Riggs was previously Senior
Vice President, Corporate Licensing and Business@pment at Lexicon Genetics Incorporated fromriaty 2000 to March 2004 and
served as Vice President, Business Development Bfeaember 1998 to February 2000. Prior to joiniegiton Genetics, Mr. Riggs was
Director of Business Development for the Infecti@isease Unit of GeneMedicine, Inc. Mr. Riggs begasnpharmaceutical and
biotechnology business development career with.ilyi and Company; starting as a District Sales ldlger and advancing to Manager,
Corporate Business Development.

Charles E. Bugg, Ph.was named Chairman of the Board, Chief Executiice@&fand Director in November 1993 and President i
January 1995. He relinquished the position of Eergiin December 1996 when Dr. J. Claude Bennigigbus in that position and resigned
as Chief Executive Officer in January 2007. Pr@jdining us, Dr. Bugg had been a member of thalfpof the University of Alabama at
Birmingham (“UAB”) since 1968, having served as
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Professor of Biochemistry, Director of the CentarMacromolecular Crystallography, and AssociateeEtor of the Comprehensive Cancer
Center. He was a founder of BioCryst and servealiagirst Chief Executive Officer from 1987-1988 Wehon a sabbatical from UAB.

Dr. Bugg also served as Chairman of our Scientifizisory Board from January 1986 to November 1998 continues to hold the position
Professor Emeritus in Biochemistry and Moleculan&es at UAB, a position he has held since Janliggéd.

Stephen R. Biggar, M.D., Ph.ivas appointed to the Board in October 2005. DrgBighas served as a Partner at Baker Brothers
Investments, a family of lonterm investment funds for major university endowiseand foundations, which is focused on publichded life
sciences companies, since October 2006, servedreegpal from April 2002 to October 2006 and senaesdan Associate from April 2000 to
April 2002. Prior to joining Baker Brothers, Dr.dgjar received an M.D. and a Ph.D. in Immunologyfi@tanford University. He attended
the University of Rochester where he achieved a @efree in Genetics. Dr. Biggar serves as a dir@ftone private biotechnology
company.

William W. Featheringillvas elected a Director in May 1995. Mr. FeathetingiPresident, Chief Executive Officer and di@gtsince
1973, of Private Capital Corporation, a ventureitahpompany. He currently serves as Chairman ettbnic Healthcare Systems, Inc., a
system solutions provider to the ambulatory cadeistry, since June 1995, and Momentum Businesgi@ady Inc., a telecom and VolP
company, since May 2001. Mr. Featheringill is addtor of Altec Industries, Inc., Southern Resednstitute and the Birmingham Museum
of Art, and serves as a Trustee of Vanderbilt Ursieg. Mr. Featheringill received a BE in MechaniEagineering from Vanderbilt
University and a J.D. degree from the Columbia @rsity School of Law and a M.B.A. from the Columhlaiversity Graduate School of
Business.

Carl L. Gordon, CFA, Ph.Dwas elected a Director in March 2004. Dr. Gortoa founding General Partner of OrbiMed Advisot<L
an asset management firm focused on the globatoaaé industry, and has served in such capacitesi998. Dr. Gordon was previously a
senior biotechnology analyst at Mehta and Isaly,pgredecessor firm to OrbiMed, from 1995-1997.®ardon received a Bachelor’'s degree
from Harvard College, a Ph.D. in molecular bioldgym the Massachusetts Institute of Technology,\aad a Fellow at the Rockefeller
University.

John L. Higginswas elected a Director in May 2004. Mr. Higgin®resident and Chief Executive Officer of Ligand iaceuticals Inc.,
a publicly traded biotech company, since Januafy 2dhd has served as a director since February. PROWas most recently Chief Financial
Officer at Connetics, since 1997, and also sergdfixecutive Vice President, Finance and Adminismaand Corporate Development since
January 2002 until its acquisition by Stiefel Ladttories, Inc. in December 2006. Before joining Geiius, he was a member of the executive
management team at BioCryst. Before joining Bio€iy4994, Mr. Higgins was a member of the healtbdzanking team of Dillon, Read &
Co. Inc., an investment banking firm. He receivedAB. from Colgate University.

Zola P. Horovitz, Ph.Dwas elected a Director in August 1994. Dr. Horowts Vice President of Business Development ananitig at
Bristol-Myers Squibb from 1991 until his retirementApril 1994 and previously was Vice President@fensing at the same company from
1990 to 1991. Prior to that he spent over 30 yed@ts The Squibb Institute for Medical Research, tmesently as Vice President Research,
Planning, & Scientific Liaison. He has been an peleent consultant in pharmaceutical sciences asidéss development since his
retirement from Bristol-Myers Squibb in April 199%e serves as non executive Chairman on the Bddbitectors of Avigen, Inc. and
GenVec, Inc., and also serves on the Boards otcire of Genaera Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Palatihii@ogies, Inc., DOV Pharmaceuticals,
NitroMed, Inc. and Immunicon Corporatic

Beth C. Seidenberg, M.Bas appointed to the Board in December 2005. OdeBberg has served as Partner of Kleiner Perkinsgi€ld
and Byers (“KPCB”) since May 2005. Prior to joinikg?CB, Dr. Seidenberg served as Amgen’s Chief Maddfficer and Senior Vice
President, Global Development from January 20@2docember 2004, at Bristol-Myers Squibb Companyersd Vice President, Global
Development from September 2001 to January 2008p6¥ice President, Clinical Development & Life €@g Management from May 2000
to September 2001 and Vice President, Clinical Imohagy/Pulmonary/Dermatology from April 2000 to M3@00 and at Merck/Merck
Research Laboratories as Vice President, Pulmanamyunology from July 1998 to March 2000, Executideector from March 1996 to
June 1998, Senior Director from September 1993 twirary 1996 and also served as both Director astdate Director of Clinical
Pharmacology from September 1991 to August 1993Frama June 1989 to August 1991, respectively. ®eeived her M.D. from University
of Miami; completed post-doctoral training at Joltapkins Medical Center and specialty trainingnmmunology and infectious diseases at
the National Institutes of
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Health. Dr. Seidenberg also has a B.S. degreedlo@y and Anthropology from Barnard College. Dridé@berg was appointed to the Board
as a designee of KPCB under a Nomination and Obsé&mgreement with the Company dated December 185.20

Joseph H. Sherrill, Jwas elected a Director in May 1995. Mr. Sherrivesl as Chief Executive Officer and President o RReynolds
(“RJIR”) Asia Pacific, based in Hong Kong, wheredversaw RJR operations across Asia, including $icen joint ventures and a full line of
operating companies from August 1989 to his ret@enin October 1994. Prior management positionk RiiR include Senior Vice President
of Marketing for R.J. Reynolds International, Pdesit and Chief Executive Officer of R.J. Reynol@bdcos do Brazil, and President and
General Manager of R.J. Reynolds Puerto Rico. Merll received his M.B.A. from Columbia Univengit

William M. Spencer, llhas been a Director of BioCryst since our inceptddn Spencer, who is retired, is also a privatestor in
Birmingham, Alabama. Mr. Spencer is a Founder @iByst, and served as our Chairman of the Boam fsar founding in 1986 until
April 1992. He cofounded and operated Motion Industries from 1946uph its merger into Genuine Parts Company in 1B{g6has founde
several businesses and has served on the Boaideat@s of numerous public and private corporation

Randolph C. Steer, M.D., Ph.lvas elected a Director in February 1993. He isenily President and Chief Operating Officer of
OrthoLogic Corp., an Arizona-based biotechnologynfisince April 2006. Dr. Steer has been an indépethpharmaceutical and
biotechnology consultant since 1989, and has addvaakground in business development, medical ntiackand regulatory affairs. He was
formerly Chairman, President and CEO of Advancedrapeutics Communications International, a leading regulatory group, and served
as associate director of medical affairs at Matiahoratories, and medical director at Ciba Consupt@rmaceuticals. Dr. Steer serves or
Board of Directors of Techne Corporation and sdvatigately held companies and is trained as d@adirand chemical pathologist.

In accordance with the terms of our Certificat Incorporation, the Board of Directors has béiided into three classes with members of
each class holding office for staggered three-jeans. In accordance with our By-Laws, a directecied to fill a vacancy shall be elected
for the unexpired term of his predecessor in offaaed a director chosen to fill a position resgtfrom an increase in the number of directors
shall hold office until the annual meeting of stholders of the Corporation at which term of thesslaf directors for which he has been
chosen expires. Dr. Bugg's, Dr. Gordon’s, Mr. Higgjs, and Dr. Seidenberg’s terms expire at the 200ial meeting. Mr. Featheringill’s,
Mr. Sherrill's, Mr. Spencer’s and Mr. Stonehousteisns expire at the 2008 annual meeting. Dr. Beisn&r. Biggar’s, Dr. Horovitz's and
Dr. Steer’s terms expire at the 2009 annual mediingll cases, subject to the election and quaifon of their successors or to their earlier
death, resignation or removal). At each annualkstolcler meeting, the successors to the directorse/lerms expire are elected to serve:
the time of their election and qualification urtie third annual meeting of stockholders followthgir election and until a successor has been
duly elected and qualified. The provisions of o@rt@icate of Incorporation governing the stagged@ector election procedure can be
amended only by a shareholder’s vote of at lea% @bthe eligible voting securities. There are amily relationships among any of our
directors and executive officers. The Board hasesplution established the number of directorsiofdByst at twelve (12) commencing
January 5, 2007. Currently, the Board has detemitingt nine of our directors (Biggar, Featheringdbrdon, Higgins, Horovitz, Seidenberg,
Sherrill, Spencer and Steer) are independent asedielby the current NASDA®GM rules.

We have an Audit Committee, consisting of Bioes Gordon, Higgins, Sherrill, and Steer, whigehdsponsible for the review of internal
accounting controls, financial reporting and redateatters. The Audit Committee also recommendieédard the independent accountants
selected to be our auditors and reviews the atatit, financial statements and audit results. Thar8tdas adopted an Amended and Restated
Audit Committee Charter that meets all the applieahles of the NASDAQ Stock Market LLC (“NASDA8&V" ") and the SEC. The Audit
Committee Charter can be found on our website awvwwcryst.com. The Audit Committee members arelépendent” directors as defined
by NASDAQSMlisting standards in effect as of the date heredfrmeet NASDA@M ‘s financial literacy requirements for audit comied
members. The Board of Directors has determinedMinaHiggins qualifies as the “audit committee firtgal expert”.

We also have a Compensation Committee congisfi Directors Biggar, Featheringill, and Seidegb&he
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Compensation Committee is responsible for the dmeu#w of officer compensation and other inceatprograms and is authorized to aw
options under our Stock Option Plan. The Boardatipted a Compensation Committee Charter that nalete applicable rules of the
NASDAQ SMand the SEC. The Charter can be found on our veebsitvww.biocryst.com. The Compensation Committeenivers are
“independent” directors as defined by the NASDAQisting standards in effect as of the date hereof.

We have a Corporate Governance and Nomin&ommittee comprised of all independent directoith wérms not expiring in the current
year. The current members of the committee arecRire Biggar, Featheringill, Horovitz, Sherrill, &er and Steer. The Commit
nominates persons for election or re-election esctbrs. The Board has adopted a Corporate Govegraamd Nominating Committee Charter
that meets all the applicable rules of NASDA®and the Securities and Exchange Commission andhikable on our website at
www.biocryst.com. The Committee has establishedgutares/qualifications for selecting nominees ailldcansider nominees recommenc
in writing, including biographical information apersonal references, by stockholders. All submisshy shareholders should be sent
directly to the Chairman of the Board, Dr. Bugdhag corporate address.

We have adopted a Code of Business Condwet@bde”) applicable to all employees, includingeutive officers, and all Board
members. The Code is publicly available on our vtelzg www.biocryst.com. Any waivers of the Coddlwe disclosed through a Form 8-K
filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

Incorporated by reference from our definitRmxy Statement to be filed in connection with sbécitation of proxies for our 2007 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Incorporated by reference from our definitfixy Statement to be filed in connection with $leéicitation of proxies for our 2007 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL
OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Incorporated by reference from our definitRmxy Statement to be filed in connection with sbécitation of proxies for our 2007 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS

Incorporated by reference from our definitfixy Statement to be filed in connection with $leéicitation of proxies for our 2007 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Incorporated by reference from our definitRmxy Statement to be filed in connection with $bécitation of proxies for our 2007 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Financial Statements

Page in
Form 10K
The following financial statements appear in Itewf ghis Form 1-K:

Balance Sheets at December 31, 2006 and 46
Statements of Operations for the years ended Dese&ih 2006, 2005 and 20 a7
Statements of Stockhold’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2006, 20@52004 48
Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended DeseBih 2006, 2005 and 20 49
Notes to Financial Statemer 50 to 63
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfiimpn on Financial Statemer 64
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfingn on Internal Contrc 65

No financial statement schedules are included tscthe information is either provided in the finahstatements or is not required under
related instructions or is inapplicable and sudtedales therefore have been omitted.

(b) Exhibits
Number Description
3.1 Third Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Retgint. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1his Company’s Form B-filed

December 22, 200

3.2 Bylaws of Registrant as amended December 15, 2066tporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the @any’s Form 8-K filed
December 16, 200!

4.1 Rights Agreement, dated as of June 17, 2002, bybatwleen the Company and American Stock Transfé€rust Company, as
Rights Agent, which includes the Certificate of estion for the Series B Junior Participating Brefd Stock as Exhibit A and
the form of Rights Certificate as Exhibit B. Incorpted by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Compafgem 8-A dated June 17,
2002.

10.1& BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Stock Incentive P(garmerly the 1991 Stock Option Plan), as ameratedirestated effective
March 7, 2006. Incorporated by reference to Apperdio the Compar’s definitive proxy statement filed April 10, 20(

10.2#  License Agreement dated April 15, 1993 between @bkay Corporation (how merged into Novartis) and Registrant.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.40 to tlen@anys Form &1 Registration Statement (Registration Nc-73868).

10.3& Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Incorporated byaeeferto Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Form S-8 Riegfion Statement dated
June 14, 2002 (Registration No. -90582).

104 Warehouse Lease dated July 12, 2000 between RBP anLAlabama Limited Liability Company and the Redgint for
office/warehouse space. Incorporated by referemé&shibit 10.8 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for teea@nd quarter ending
June 30, 2000 dated August 8, 20

10.5& Employment Agreement dated March 17, 2004 betweefRegistrant and Charles E. Bugg, Ph.D. Incorpdrhy reference to
Exhibit 10.9 to the Compa’s Form 1-Q for the first quarter ending March 31, 2004 da#s/ 11, 2004

10.6& Employment Letter Agreement dated February 1, 2#veen the Registrant and Randall B. Riggs. Irarated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Compa’s Form K dated February 7, 200

10.7& Employment Letter Agreement dated May 4, 2005 betwtbe Registrant and Jonathan M. Nugent. Incotpdtay reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Compa’s Form K dated May 10, 200¢

10.8#  License Agreement dated as of June 27, 2000, byerahg Albert Einstein College of Medicine, IndisdtResearch, Ltd. and
BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc., as amended by itls¢ Amendment Agreement dated as of July 26, 20@Pthe Second
Amendment Agreement dated as of April 15, 2005rt{@&ws omitted pursuant to request for confidertti@atment.) Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Comp’s Form K dated November 30, 200

10.9# Development and License Agreement dated as of NbegeB, 2005, by and between BioCryst Pharmacdsitice. and
F.Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd and Hoffmann-La Roche [fRortions omitted pursuant to request for confitéiteatment.)
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to thenpany' s Form K/A dated November 30, 200
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Number Description

10.10  Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Decemb@0058, by and among BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Kleiner Perkins
Caufield & Byers, Texas Pacific Group Ventures &RV, LLC. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4o0lthe Company’s
Form ¢-K dated December 16, 20(

10.11  Nomination and Observer Agreement, dated as of Mbee 16, 2005, by and between BioCryst Pharmaadstimc. and Kleine
Perkins Caufield & Byers. Incorporated by refereta&xhibit 4.2 to the Compa’s Form K dated December 16, 20(C

10.12& Amended and restated Employment Letter Agreemertdeebruary 14, 2007 between Registrant and J8toRehouse
23 Consent of Ernst & Young, Independent Registerddi®éccounting Firm.

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursiido Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002

#  Confidential treatment grante
& Management contract
* Confidential treatment request¢
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 1B5¢dl) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, tkgiRrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredalp authorized on this 14th day of March, 2007.

BIOCRYST PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
By: /s/Jon P. Stonehou

Jon P. Stonehouse
Chief Executive Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secuiitiehange Act of 1934 this report has been sigiyetid following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities indicated on Ma®th2007:

Signature Title(s)
/slJon P. Stonehouse Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Jon P. Stonehous
/s/J. Claude Bennett President, Chief Operating Officer, and Director
(J. Claude Bennett, M.D
/sIMichael A. Darwin Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and dnting
(Michael A. Darwin) Officer), Secretary, and Treasurer
/sICharles E. Bugg Chairman and Director

(Charles E. Bugg, Ph.D

/s/Stephen R. Biggar Director
(Stephen R. Biggar, M.D., Ph.LC

/s/William W. Featheringill Director
(William W. Featheringill)

/s/Carl L. Gordon Director
(Carl L. Gordon, CFA, Ph.D

/slJohn L. Higgins Director
(John L. Higgins

/s/Zola P. Horovitz Director
(Zola P. Horovitz, Ph.D.

/s/Beth C. Seidenberg Director
(Beth C. Seidenberg, M.D

/slJoseph H. Sherrill, Jr. Director
(Joseph H. Sherrill, Jr

/s/William M. Spencer Director
(William M. Spencer, 111)

/s/Randolph C. Steer Director
(Randolph C. Steer, M.D., Ph.L
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Number

3.1

3.2

4.1

10.1&

10.2#

10.3&

10.4

10.5&

10.6&

10.7&

10.8#

10.9#

10.10

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Sequentially
Numbered
Description Page

Third Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Regint. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.th
Compan’s Form K filed December 22, 200l

Bylaws of Registrant as amended December 15, 2@66rporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the @any’s
Form &K filed December 16, 200!

Rights Agreement, dated as of June 17, 2002, bybatwdeen the Company and American Stock Transférust
Company, as Rights Agent, which includes the Cedti€ of Designation for the Series B Junior Pguditing
Preferred Stock as Exhibit A and the form of Righstificate as Exhibit B. Incorporated by referenc

Exhibit 4.1 to the Compars Form {-A dated June 17, 200

BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Stock Incentive P(&armerly the 1991 Stock Option Plan), as amereaiedl
restated effective March 7, 2006. Incorporateddigrence to Appendix A to the Company’s definitprexy
statement filed April 10, 200!

License Agreement dated April 15, 1993 between @bkay Corporation (now merged into Novartis) ahe t
Registrant. Incorporated by reference to Exhibi#d@Qo the Company’s Form S-1 Registration Statémen
(Registration No. 3-73868).

Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Incorporated byeeferto Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Form S-8 Regfiion
Statement dated June 14, 2002 (Registration N¢-90582).

Warehouse Lease dated July 12, 2000 between RBP ahlAlabama Limited Liability Company and the
Registrant for office/warehouse space. Incorporbteceference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s FAORQ for
the second quarter ending June 30, 2000 dated ABgR600C

Employment Agreement dated March 17, 2004 betwleefRegistrant and Charles E. Bugg, Ph.D. Incorpdrhy
reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s FormQ.&r the first quarter ending March 31, 2004 davay 11,
2004.

Employment Letter Agreement dated February 1, 2@0#%een the Registrant and Randall B. Riggs. Iraaited
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Comp’s Form K dated February 7, 200

Employment Letter Agreement dated May 4, 2005 betwbe Registrant and Jonathan M. Nugent. Incotpdra
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Comp’s Form K dated May 10, 200:

License Agreement dated as of June 27, 2000, byarwhg Albert Einstein College of Medicine, Indiadtr
Research, Ltd. and BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, &&camended by the First Amendment Agreement dateél a
July 26, 2002 and the Second Amendment Agreeméedti ds of April 15, 2005. (Portions omitted purduan
request for confidential treatment.) Incorporatgddference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Fori 8ated
November 30, 200¢

Development and License Agreement dated as of Nbge0, 2005, by and between BioCryst Pharmacedsitica
Inc. and F.Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd and Hoffmann-LaR®Inc. (Portions omitted pursuant to request for
confidential treatment.) Incorporated by referetuc&xhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K/A dated
November 30, 200t

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Decemb@008, by and among BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Kleiner

Perkins Caufield & Byers, Texas Pacific Group Veesuand KPTV, LLC. Incorporated by reference toiBii.1
to the Compar’s Form {-K dated December 16, 20(C
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10.11 Nomination and Observer Agreement, dated as of iDbee 16, 2005, by and between BioCryst Pharmacds}
Inc. and Kleiner Perkins Caufield & Byers. Incorgiad by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Companygai8-K
dated December 16, 20(
10.12& Amended and restated Employment Letter Agreemertideebruary 14, 2007 between Registrant and Jon P.
Stonehouse
23 Consent of Ernst & Young, Independent Registerddi®éccounting Firm. 83
31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursiiao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002 84
31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002 85
32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarks@ct of 86
2002.
32.2 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarksr@ct of 87
2002.
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EXHIBIT 10.12

February 14, 2007

Jon Stonehouse
7 Pine Top Place
Durham, NC 27705

Dear Mr. Stonehouse:

This amended and restated letter agreement Aireement”) will serve to confirm our agreemaiith respect to the terms and conditions
of your employment with BioCryst Pharmaceuticats,. I(“BioCryst” or the “Company”). As you know, thAgreement is identical in all
respects to the agreement originally executed poalg 5, 2007, except that it reflects the fact #ileof the initial equity awards under
Section 3 were issued under the BioCryst Pharmimedsitinc. Stock Incentive Plan.

1. Term of Employment.Subject to the terms and conditions of this AgresirBioCryst hereby employs Jon Stonehouse (theplByee”),
effective January 5, 2007, as Chief Executive @ffiof BioCryst, and Employee hereby accepts sughi@ment. During the term of this
Agreement, BioCryst shall use its best effortsrovjale that the Employee shall be elected as a reewiithe Board of Directors of BioCryst
(the “Board”). The Employee shall not, during teent of his employment, engage in any other busiaeteity that would interfere with, or
prevent him from carrying out, his duties and resgiloilities under this Agreement. Employee repré&sémat he currently serves on the Board
of Directors of River West Health Care, LLC (a tta3p company the business of which is not competitvith that of the Company) as well
as on an advisory council at Duke University, dmat heither activity will interfere materially withis duties as contemplated hereunder.
BioCryst hereby acknowledges and approves suchitaesi BioCryst further agrees and acknowledges &imy compensation which the
Employee receives from participation in any sudbvedble activities shall be outside the scope f Agreement and in addition to any
compensation received hereunder. The term of empay of Employee under this Agreement shall commaexscof the effective date set
forth above and shall continue for a period of pear, subject to earlier termination as providegtime provided, however that the term shall
be automatically extended by one additional yeagaxh anniversary of the effective date of thiselgnent, unless one party to this
Agreement provides written notice of non-renewahi® other party at least 30 days prior to the dagich automatic extension.

2. Basic Full-Time Compensation and Benefits.

(a) As basic compensation for services rerttlereler this Agreement, Employee shall be entitbeibceive from BioCryst, a salary of
$33,333 per month ($400,000 per annum) payabler@aes on the first business day of each montmduhe term of this Agreement,
beginning on February 1, 2007 for the month of aap2007. This salary will be reviewed annuallytbg Board of Directors and may be
raised at the discretion of the Board.

(b) In addition to the basic compensatiorfegh in (a) above, Employee shall be eligible émrea cash bonus of up to $300,000,
payable as soon as reasonably practicable in calgmdr 2008, based on the Company’s achievemedrdrmance related goals
proposed by management and approved by the Boatdd@ompany’s fiscal year ending December 317200e bonus actually earned,
if any, shall be based on a target amount of $2@f6r achievement of the performance goals, aall bk pro-rated or increased, as
applicable, based on the degree to which the pagoce goals have or have not been achieved ortfemreexceeded, subject to a
minimum level of achievement proposed by managemedtapproved by the Board. The amount of the beaused in accordance with
the achievement of the performance goals, as destabove, shall be prorated according to the ptage of the calendar year that
Employee is employed by the Company. The Compaal} pfovide Employee with similar annual bonus oppoities for future fiscal
years during the term of this Agreement, in amotims are commensurate with the performance o€ttrapany and of Employee.
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(c) In addition to the basic compensationfgeh in (a) and (b) above, Employee shall be kttito receive benefits and perquisites at
least as favorable as those provided to other ¢xecofficers of BioCryst, which benefits shall lnde, without limitation, reasonable
vacation, sick leave, payment of fees for Employg&rticipation in the advisory council at Duke bnsity, medical benefits, $1,000,000
of life insurance during the term of Employee’s éogment, and participation in profit sharing oriretnent plans. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the Company’s obligation to provide D00 of life insurance for Employee shall be sabjo Employee’s insurability at
rates customary for an individual of Employee’s agdm is in average physical condition. In additibtre Company shall reimburse
Employee for his reasonable attorneys fees incurrednnection with the negotiation of this Agreerme

(d) In addition to the compensation set fantparagraphs 2(a), (b) and (c) above, the Boailiactors of BioCryst may from time to
time, in its discretion, also grant such other aasbtock bonuses to the Employee either as andagraas an incentive as it shall deem
desirable or appropriate.

3. Initial Equity Awards. In connection with Employee’s execution of this Agment, Employee shall be issued initial equitgimive
awards as follows:

(a) The Company shall, on the effective datieebf, grant to Employee an option to purchase0tBDshares of the Company’s common
stock (“Common Stock”), with an exercise price dgaahe fair market value of the Common Stock loa date of the grant. The option
shall vest and become exercisable contingent ondgm@'s continued provision of services to the Campon each respective vesting
date, over a period of 4 years as follows: one pftar Employee’s start date, 25% of the awardbwest; thereafter, the remaining shares
will vest on a monthly schedule of 1/48 of the tatamber of shares subject to the grants upondhgptetion of each month of service.
The option will be an “incentive stock option” foet maximum extent allowed by the tax code.

(b) The Company shall grant to Employee 50 $fifires of its Common Stock, which shall vest io égual installments as follows: the
first installment shall vest two years after the#imgee’s start date; the second installment stest four years after the Employee’s start
date. Employee understands and acknowledges tbhat@vesting, the shares may not be transfernedvall be subject to forfeiture.

(c) All awards will be issued under and shallsubject to the terms of the BioCryst Pharmacaisti Inc. Stock Incentive Plan and
specific award agreements between the Employe¢h@@ompany, which award agreements shall provideEmployee be entitled to
exercise any vested incentive stock option or anyqualified stock option for a period of two yeatdsequent to the termination or
expiration of Employee’s employment with the Compahll shares issuable pursuant to the awardsi;Skection 3 have been registered
on Form S-8.

4. Termination.

(a) If Employee’s employment is terminateda@)a result of the Employee’s resignation or rerewal of the term, (ii) as a result of the
Employee’s death, or (iii) by the Company for Causmployee will receive base salary, as well asastyued but unused vacation (if
applicable) and other compensation, earned thrthegleffective termination date, and no additiomahpensation; provided, however, that
in the event Employee’s employment is terminated essult of the Employee’s death, and the Combasyfailed to procure and maintain
$1,000,000 in life insurance on the life of Empleye violation of its obligation pursuant to paragih 3(c), the Company shall pay to the
Employee’s personal representative $1,000,000.

For all purposes under this Agreement, a teation for “Cause” shall mean a determination lg/Bimard that Employee’s employment
be terminated for any of the following reasonsa(i)iolation of a federal or state law or regulattbat materially and adversely impacts the
business of the Company, (ii) conviction or pleaofcontest to a felony under the laws of the Wh8eates or any state, (iii) a breach of
the terms of any confidentiality, invention assigamnor proprietary information agreement with th@x@any or with a former employer
that materially and adversely impacts the Compémyfraud or misappropriation of property belongito the Company or its affiliates, or
(v) willful misconduct or gross negligence in contien with the performance of Employee’s dutiegvided, however, that no act or
failure to act on the part of the Employee
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shall be considered “willful” unless it is done,anitted to be done, by the Employee in bad faittvithout reasonable belief that the
Employee’s action or omission was in the best ety of the Company.

(b) If Employee’s employment is terminatedhj)the Company without Cause, (ii) upon non-reriefithe term by the Company,
(iii) as a result of a Constructive Termination (im) by the Company as a result of Disability, empany shall provide written notice of
termination to Employee, along with any base sadeuy accrued but unused vacation or other comgenssdrned through the effective
termination date.

In addition, and subject to the Employee {@)iag and not revoking a release of any and alhe$ against the Company, its officers,
directors and employees, (b) resigning from therBd# applicable) on the date that employment feates, and (c) returning to the
Company all of its property and confidential inf@tion that is in Employee’s possession, the Emmay#l receive:

() severance in an amount equal to the prodiigx) two, except in the event the effectiveadat termination occurs within one year
of the effective date of this Agreement, in whiese the severance multiplier shall be one, anthé/sum of (1) Employee’s annual
base salary in effect immediately prior to the effifee date of termination, and (2) Executive’s &rigonus in effect for the fiscal year of
termination, which severance amount shall be pa&tual installments over the regularly schedukeggl periods of the Company for
the two years following the effective date of temation, and

(I if Employee elects to continue healthurence coverage under COBRA following terminatibemployment, the Company sh
pay the monthly premium under COBRA until the eartf (1) twelve months following the effective datf termination, or (2) the date
upon which COBRA continuation coverage ceases.

“Disability” shall mean the inability of Empjee to perform his duties hereunder by reason wdipal or mental incapacity for ninety
(90) days, whether consecutive or not, during amsecutive twelve (12) month period.

“Constructive Termination” shall mean a resiion of employment within 30 days of the occurep€any of: (i) a reduction in
Employee’s responsibilities or any change in tla¢ust or title of Employee with regard to his emphant; (ii) a reduction in Employee’s
base salary, unless such reduction occurs priarGhange in Control (as defined below) and is niagennection with a fiscal downturn
of the Company pursuant to which the base salafial executive officers of the Company are redlbg a comparable percentage; or
(iii) a relocation of Employee’s principal office & location more than 50 miles from the locatibEmployee’s then-current principal
office.

(c) If, during Employee’s employment with tBempany, there is a Change of Control, all equitgrals granted to Employee under
paragraph 3 and otherwise shall vest in full. Iditon, if Employee’s employment is terminated éolling the Change in Control, the
provisions of paragraph (a) or (b) above shall wpgs applicable; provided, however, that in thendthe Employee’s employment is
terminated pursuant to paragraph (b) above follgwdrChange in Control and within one year of tHeative date of this Agreement, the
severance multiplier in paragraph 4(b)(l) abovdldfemtwo as opposed to one.

“Change of Control” shall be defined as (inarger or consolidation in which the Company isthetsurviving entity, except for a
transaction the principal purpose of which is tamfje the State of the Compasyncorporation, (ii) the sale, transfer or othespdsition o
all or substantially all of the assets of the Comypia liquidation or dissolution of the Companyi)(@ny reverse merger in which the
Company is the surviving entity but in which setigs possessing more than fifty percent (50%) efttital combined voting power of the
Companys outstanding securities are transferred to a pesspersons different from the persons holding¢hsecurities immediately pr
to such merger, or (iv) any person or related grafypersons (other than the Company or a persdrditectly or indirectly controls, is
controlled by, or is under common control with, @empany) directly or indirectly acquires beneficiernership (within the meaning of
Rule 13d-3 of the 1934 Act) of securities possegsiire than fifty percent (50%) of the total condarvoting power of the
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Company’s outstanding securities pursuant to agieadexchange offer made directly to the Compasidskholders.

(d) In the event (i) any payments describethis paragraph 4 would be “deferred compensatsosject to Section 409A of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”)(igrEmployee is a “specified employee” (as definedCode Section 409A(2)(B)(i)),
such payments shall, to the extent required by Guttion 409A, be delayed for the minimum period gnthe minimum manner
necessary to avoid the imposition of the tax rezplilyy Code Section 409A.

5. Non-Competition; Proprietary Information and Inv entions.

(a)_Proprietary Information and Inventions &gment As a condition precedent to the employment of Byge by the Company,
Employee shall execute the Company’s standard etapy Information and Inventions Agreement, atethereto as Exhibit A.

(b) NorCompetition AgreementThe Employee agrees that for one (1) year folhgwhe termination of this Agreement, the Employee
shall not become the Chief Executive Officer ordime a key executive of another fumsfit business enterprise whose activities asuat
time directly competitive with BioCryst.

(c) Equitable Remedie€mployee acknowledges and recognizes that atiiplaf this paragraph by Employee may cause inagea
and substantial damage and harm to BioCryst @&ffifsates, could constitute a failure of considéra, and that money damages will not
provide a full remedy for BioCryst for such violatis. Employee agrees that in the event of his brefthis paragraph, BioCryst will be
entitled, if it so elects, to institute and prosecproceedings at law or in equity to obtain darsagigh respect to such breach, to enforce
specific performance of this paragraph by Emplogee, to enjoin Employee from engaging in any atiini violation hereof.

6. Golden Parachute Provisionslf it is determined that any payment or benefityided by the Company to or for the benefit of the
Employee, whether paid or payable or distributedisiributable pursuant to the terms of this Agreetor otherwise, including, by example
and not by way of limitation, acceleration by thenipany or otherwise of the date of vesting or payrmeder any plan, program,
arrangement or agreement of the Company would bjesuto the excise tax imposed by Code sectio®49%ny interest or penalties with
respect to such excise tax (such excise tax togefitle any such interest and penalties, shall ferred to as the “Excise Tax”), then the
Company shall first make a calculation under wisichh payments or benefits provided to the Emplayeaeduced to the extent necessal
that no portion thereof shall be subject to theigxdax (the “4999 Limit"). The Company shall theampare (a) the Employee’s Net After-
Tax Benefit (as defined below) assuming applicatibthe 4999 Limit with (b) the Employee’s Net Af€ax Benefit without application of
the 4999 Limit. The Employee shall be entitledie greater of (a) or (b). “Net After-Tax Benefitial mean the sum of (i) all payments that
Employee receives or is entitled to receive thatcantingent on a change in the ownership or eéfieciontrol of the Company or in the
ownership of a substantial portion of the asseth®Company within the meaning of Code section&8()(2), less (ii) the amount of federal,
state, local, employment, and Excise Tax (if amypased with respect to such payments. If the Engady required to reduce payments to
which he is otherwise entitled such that no portlmreof is subject to the Excise Tax, the Emplastea! choose which payments shall be
reduced and the amount of the reduction of eachpay

7. Miscellaneous.

(a)_Entire AgreementThis Agreement, including the exhibits heretmstdutes the entire agreement between the paeiating to the
employment of the Employee by BioCryst and theeerar terms relating to such employment other thasd contained in this Agreeme
No modification or variation hereof shall be deemratid unless in writing and signed by the partieseto. No waiver by either party of
any provision or condition of this Agreement shldeemed a waiver of similar or dissimilar pramis or conditions at any time.

(b)_Assignability. This Agreement may not be assigned without prigiten consent of the parties hereto. To the ebadawable
pursuant to this Agreement, this Agreement shabibding upon and
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shall inure to the benefit of each of the partieseto and their respective executors, adminissafmrsonal representatives, heirs,
successors and assigns.

(c) Notices Any notice or other communication given or remdkehereunder by any party hereto shall be in vgiéind delivered
personally or sent by registered or certified maolstage prepaid, at the respective addresses phitfies hereto as set forth below.

(d) Captions The section headings contained herein are irtseriy as a matter of convenience and referenceérand way define,
limit or describe the scope of this Agreement erititent of any provision hereof.

(e)_Taxes All amounts to be paid to Employee hereundeiiratbe nature of compensation for Employee’s emmpiegt by BioCryst,
and shall be subject to withholding, income, octigpsand payroll taxes and other charges applicibéich compensation.

(f) Governing Law This Agreement is made and shall be governechdycanstrued in accordance with the laws of thé&eSth
Alabama without respect to its conflicts of lawrmiples.

(g) Date This Agreement is effective as of January 5, 2007

(h) CounterpartsThis Agreement may be executed in one or morateoparts, each of which will be deemed to be &jiral copy of
this Agreement and all of which, when taken togethwll be deemed to constitute one and the sameeagent. The exchange of copies of
this Agreement and of signature pages by facsiamilether electronic transmission shall constitifeative execution and delivery of this
Agreement as to the parties and may be used irfithe original Agreement for all purposes. Sigmes of the parties transmitted by
facsimile or other electronic means shall be deetodx their original signatures for all purposes.

81




If the foregoing correctly sets forth our uretanding, please signify your acceptance of seiahg by executing this Agreement, thereby
signifying your assent, as indicated below.

Yours very truly,

BIOCRYST PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

By: /s/ Beth C. Seidenber

Beth C. Seidenberg, ML
Chairman

By: /s/ Steve Biggar
Steve Biggar, MD, PhC

By: /s/ William W. Featheringill
William W. Featheringill

Address:

2190 Parkway Lake Drive
Birmingham, Alabama 35244

AGREED AND ACCEPTED, as of this 14 day of Redmy, 2007.

/s/ Jon Stonehoust
Jon Stonehous:

Address:

7 Pine Top Place
Durham, NC 2770t

82






EXHIBIT 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm
We consent to the incorporation by referencthé following Registration Statements:

. Registration Statements (Form S-8 Nos. 333-1203353-39484, 333-30751 and 33-95062) pertainirnpedBioCryst
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 1991 Stock Option Plan, a=naled and restated as of March 8, 2(

. Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-90582) pertaining to the BioCryst Pharmaceutidals, Employee Stock Purchase Pl

. Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-128@&Tfaining to the registration of up to $85,000,008i0Cryst Pharmaceuticals,
Inc. common stock

. Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-136p@8jaining to the BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inoc&tincentive Plan, which
amended and restated the BioCryst Pharmaceutinals]991 Stock Option Plan as of May 17, 2C

of our reports dated March 12, 2007 with respethéofinancial statements of BioCryst Pharmacel#jdac., BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
management’s assessment of the effectivenessephaitcontrol over financial reporting, and theeefiveness of internal control over
financial reporting of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals;.limcluded in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) foetyear ended December 31, 2006.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Birmingham, Alabama
March 12, 2007
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Jon P. Stonehouse, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, In

2.  Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to the
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial stateémend other financial information included imstreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this rep

4.  The registrar’other certifying officer(s) and | are responsildleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirgg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hav

a)

b)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this report isiige prepared

designed such internal control over finah@aorting, or caused such internal control ovearicial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and presentbis report our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contiots procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehlis report based on
such evaluation; ar

disclosed in this report any change in #gstrant’s internal control over financial repogdithat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regits fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyabrrg that has materiall
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyesftf, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer@m)d | have disclosed, based on our most recehiaian of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a) all significant deficiencies and materialakieesses in the design or operation of internairabaver financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectbgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; anc

b) any fraud, whether or not material, thabires management or other employees who have Hiség role in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: March 14, 2007 /s/ JON P. STONEHOUSE

Jon P. Stonehous
Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

[, Michael A. Darwin, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material facioit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisletading with respect to the
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial stateémend other financial information included imstreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this rep

4.  The registram’other certifying officer(s) and | are responsildleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hav

a.

designed such disclosure controls and puresdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this report isiige prepared

designed such internal control over finan@porting, or caused such internal control owearicial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and preséntbais report our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehlis report based on
such evaluation; ar

disclosed in this report any change in #wgstrant’s internal control over financial repogdithat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyesftf, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer@m)d | have disclosed, based on our most recehiaian of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(@spersons performing the
equivalent functions!

a. all significant deficiencies and materiakakmesses in the design or operation of internairabaver financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectbgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; anc

b. any fraud, whether or not material, thabies management or other employees who have Hiségn role in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: March 14, 2007 /s/ MICHAEL A. DARWIN

Michael A. Darwin
Chief Financial Officer and Chief Accounting
Officer
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Bio&rfPharmaceuticals, Inc. (the “Company”) on ForrKifor the period ending
December 31, 2006 as filed with the SecuritiesExchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8partlon P. Stonehouse, Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuamil8 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to 9lte Sarbane®xley Act of 2002, tha
to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgwAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ Jon P. Stonehouse
Jon P. Stonehouse
Chief Executive Officer
March 14, 2007

This certification is furnished with this Repon Form 10-K pursuant to Section 906 of the 8ads-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not,
except to the extent required by such Act, be dediterl by the Company for purposes of Section fihe Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Such certificatidhnot be deemed to be incorporated by referantany filing under the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, éxoepe extent that the Company specifically ipooates it by reference.
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Bio&r{harmaceuticals, Inc. (the “Company”) on ForrKlfdr the period ending
December 31, 2006 as filed with the SecuritiesExcthange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8pariMichael A. Darwin, Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuémtl8 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to 9lte Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that,
to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgwAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl Michael A. Darwin
Michael A. Darwin
Chief Financial Officer
March 14, 2007

This certification is furnished with this Repon Form 10-K pursuant to Section 906 of the 8ads-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not,
except to the extent required by such Act, be dediterl by the Company for purposes of Section fihe Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Such certificatidhnot be deemed to be incorporated by referantany filing under the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, éxodpe extent that the Company specifically ipooates it by reference.
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